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Strategic report

Group Business Mode! and Strategy

The business of Wittington Investments Limited and ifs
subsidiares (the "Group'}is the management of
invesiments in a wide range of assets.

The Group's invesiments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retail, Real Estate, Hotels, Private Markets &
Other Investments and Associated British Foods plc {*ABF').
The latter refers fo the Group's 56.2% shareholding in ABF
(2022: 54.5%). which is quoted on The London Stock
Exchange.

The Group fakes a long-term approach to invesiment and
is committed to increasing shareholder value through
sound business decisions which will deliver sustainable
growth in earmings and dividends.

Given the materigiity of the ABF busingss and for ease of
cross-reference to the published financial statements of
ABF, the directors have elected to provide additional
information in the notes which foliow setting out the
contribution of the ABF business to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. For clarity, all
references to the ABF business are shown in ftalics in the
notes to these statements and are consistent with the
published financial statements of ABF.

The Garfield Weston Foundation {"The Foundation} is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfietd Weston. As at 16 September 2023, the Foundation
holds 683,073 shares {2022 - 683,073} in Wittingion
investments Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79 2%) of
the Group's issued share capital and is, therefore, the
Group's ultimate controlling party.

The Trustees ot the Foundation made total grants of £21.1
million {year to 5 Aprll 2023) in support of 2,147 appedals
(20272 £89.9 million in support of 1,288 appeals). The
Foundation cccepts appeals from UK registered charities.
No applications from inclivicluals are considered and the
Trustees do not typically fund projects outside the UK.

markets. This is a long-ferm assef class and exposures are
managed to provide a diverse portfolio by sector,
geography and age of company. It also invests selectively
in special situations.

Other investrments are principally compaosed of liguid
nvestments in short-clated investment grade bonds as well
as fisted equities, which provides portfolic diversification
and enables liguidity and paortfolio needs to be met.

Associated British Foods ple

ABF is a diversified intemnational food, ingredients ang
retail Group with revenue of £19.8bn, 133,000 employees
and operations in 55 countries across Burope, southem
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Australic. Furlher details
can be found in ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found at www.abf.co.uk.

Business Sfrategies
Luxury Retail

Luxury Retall comprises Fortnum & mMason plc and Heal &
Sons Lid, two long-established retailers. The aim for ecch
of these businesses is to build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long lerm by providing an ocutstanding
customer experience through all channels and by
developing the product offer. They also aim 1o develop
their respective digital businesses and, where appropriale.
international activities.

Real Estate

The Group invests in high-quality investment properties in
the retail, offce and distribution sectors across the UK. It
also takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alengside local partners or sector specialists,
where it can use its patient capital to untock the potential
in those sifes.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate stralegy, the Group
invests in hatels with high-quaiity real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
leisure markets.

Private Markets & Other Investments
The Group invests both directly and via externally
rmanaged funds in private equity and private debt

Business Review

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & mason's financial year saw a continued
recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-
Covid tevels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% on FY22,
driven by areslient domeshc market and increased
international customer footfall. Online sales saw an 11%
reduction on FY22, not dissimilar to the wider market as
consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid,
Fortnum & rason faced challenging operating conditions
as inflation grew rapidly, particularly in food and labour.
Total Revenue grew 12% 1o £208.6m (2022: £186.5m): Profit
before taxation grew to £7.5m [2022: £5.8m) and EBITDA
grew to £16.0m (2077 £14.2m). Capital investment in the
year amounted to £8.2m (£2022: £4.2m] centred on e
refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Plccadilly flagship
store. Closing cash was £21m {2022: £17m], with no debt.

Heal's

Heal's has experienced a difficuit period for profitability as
inflationary pressure squeezed margin and increased the
cost base {with the excegption of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remained matenally flat at £37.4m
(2022: £37.0m}, however the dual challenges of supply
chain and wage imflation drove o 50% reductionin
operating profit to £0.8m (2022: £1.6m). Perhaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with old [returned and
cancelled) stock. which led to o very significant write
down which supressed profit. Heals continues to generate
a positive operating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
performance remains sound. Excluding the write-down of
stack, profit would have increased from the prior period.
The strategic focus of the company going forward s to
capitalise onits new store layout on Tottenham Court
Road and to grow its online presence, which now
accounts for half of sales revenue.

Real Estate

Three praperies were acquired during the year with an
aggregate consideration of £33m; one property was sold
for £3m. Income grew to £12.3m (2022: £11.5m} while the
operating loss in the year of £8.3m (2022 profit of £16.3m)
included an aggregate impairmen?t charge of £13.6m
(2022: £5.6m) in respect of the carrying value of some of
the office and retall properties and a residential
development. Over the year, 92.9% of rents demanded
were collecied {2022: 99%) comparning very favourably
with the sector as a whole.

Wittington Investments Financial Statermeants 2023 1



Strategic report

Hotels
Grand Hotel, Brighton

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold fo the Faltal Group in
May 2023 for £61m.,

Richmond Hill Holel

Richmond Hill Hotel conlinued e benefif from strong
demand in the leisure market. Revenue for the period was
the highest in the hotel's history at £10.1m (2022: £9.2rm),
whilst current and future bookings remain strong. Changes
1o the market value of the property resulted In an
operating loss of £2.7m (2022: profit of £13.4m. including a
one-off impairment reversal).

Private Markets & Other Investments

Qver the year the Group invested £200m in investmeant
grade credit and ¢.$130m info a global public equities
index fund. A further €40m was commitied to private
equity. The public and private equity funds held broadly
flat in GBP terms over the year, whilst the leveraged lcan
portfolio, in which the underlying investments are floating-
rate, benefitted from rising interest rates globally. The
rermaining direct portfolio companies posted modest
gains. There was an unreglised FX impact in the year
which supressed profitability. Profit after fax for the year for
Private Markets & Other Investments was £36.0m [2022:
£283m).

Associated British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despile facing very
significant econamic challenges caused in part by major
geo-political events at the start of the financial year. Itis
now well positionad for the financial year ahead.

Trading ul Primark was cxceallent under the circumstances.
Al the beginning of the year selective price increases
were implemented partially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cast inflation was
temporary. That careful pricing delivered as inlended,
with customers continuing to shop enthusiastically.
Profitability in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as ¢
result of the appeal of their products and the strength of
its brands, both of which supported the recovery of high
levels of input cost inflation withaut disrupting customer
relationships.

Although consumer demand remains uncertain, Primark is
as well placed as it has ever been and that its offeris very
attractive not just to exisiing custfemers but also 1o new
customers engaged by its digital platform, new store
openings, and word of mouth which remains as powerful
as ever. With Primark margin now moving back to ifs
historic levels, the future tor this business is viewed with
confidence. ABF's food businesses are also in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
better profitability in the year ahead.

ABF posted statutory operating profif for the year of
£1,383m (2022: £1,178m) after exceptional charges of
£109m (2022; £206m). Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and a second
share buyback programme of up o £500m on November
7th 2023.
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Directors' duties

The directors are required to actin a way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its memlzers as
a whaole and, in doing so, have regard to the matiers sel
oufin section 172(1) [a) to (f} of the Companies Act 2006.

Stakeholder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Graup and/or business unit [evel, depending on the
particular issue. Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider regular engagement with stakeholders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through
collaboration and to be fundamental to the success of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder groups
with whom engagement is fundamental o the Group's
angoing success:

1. The Garfield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Garfield Weston
Foundation, a charitable grant-making body which
supports a wide range of causes acress the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and to ensure that itisin
a poesition to pay dividends to a level commensurate
wilh the Foundation's objectives. An additicnal key
concern for the Foundotion is that the Group operate
with high ethical standards so as not to undermine the
Foundation's charitable aims and objectives,

2. Governments: The Group is impacted by changes in
laws and public policy. The key issues of concernin
relulion to the government are regulntory changes
{including tax legislation}. cimate and environmental
related matters and support of businesses and workers.
The directors of the Group engage with this
stakeholder group in various ways including meetings,
responding to requests for inputs {e.g. on sustainability
reporting quidelines) and applications fo parficipate in
government schemes.

3. Communities and the environment: As the Group's
controlling sharehaolder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in national efforts to miliyute climate
change. This is primarlly achieved through the award
of grants to relevant bodies. Through the ABF business
segment, the Group is alse engaged in community
relations at a national and international level and with
the design and implementation of strategias to
pramote climate change mitigation and a circular
econormy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
in varous ways including coaching and training
programmes and community programmes and
schemaes.

4, Customers / consumers; The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with custamers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, retail and holel operations. The key
issues of concemn to customers are health and safety,
products and services, value for money, availability of
producis and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations.
The business engages with this stakeholder group in
various ways including customer surveys, labelling,
social media and customer/consumer informaticn
lines.
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5. Employees: Our people are central fo our success. The
Group employs 134,881 pecple of which 133,000 are
employed by ABF, Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segment, ABF engages with its employees
in various ways including email. health and safety
programmes, infranet, newsletters, surveys, town halls,
training, virtlual meetings and nolice boards. The key
issues of concern to employees are health and safety,
engagement & developrment and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is committed to an active equal
opportunities palicy from recruitment ond selection,
through fraining and development, performance
reviews and promoticns to retirement. It is our policy to
promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone
receives equal tfreatment regardiess of gender, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disability, age, marntal stabus,
sexual crientation or religion. All decisions relating to
employment practices are objective, free from bigs
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
rmerit. It is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria shauld have full and fair
consideration for all vacancies. We endeavour to
retain emplayees in the workicorce If they become
disabled during employment. It is the Group's policy to
provide continuing employment wherever practicable
in the same or an alternative position and to provide
appropriate training to achieve this aim.

6. Suppliers: Thraugh the ABF business segment, the
Croun s indirectly dependent on many complex
supply chains cperating at an international level. The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices, responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainability & responsibility. The Group engages
with this stakeholder group in various ways including
conversations (face-to-face or virtual), fraining.
communications fora, corespondence, press releases
and audits,

Principal decisions

An examplc of a principnl decision taken dunng the yaear
that took stakeholder views into account is the decision to
pay a firstinterim dividend in January 2023 and a second
interim dividend in July 2023, with the primary beneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundaltion and
- indirectly — the recipients of the grants awarded by the
Foundation.

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share, paid in January 2023 which, fogether with the
second interim dividend paid in July 2023 of £69.50 per
share, made a fotal of £148.00 per share for the year,
representing 42% of distibutable profit.

The decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of £2.8
bn at the 2022 year end.

Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement

The Group Board recognises that climate change
represents o material risk throughout its supply chains and
poses challenges to some of its businesses worldwide. The
Board wholly support policies that are aligned with the
goals of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement to limit the rise
in global temperatures to well below 2°C above pre-
inclustrial levels, and to pursue efforts to imit the
temperature increase even further to 1.5°C.

This year the Wittington Group has included climale-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies [Strategic Report) [Climate-related Financial
Disclosure) Regulations 2022 (S1 2022/31}.

Governoance

The Board is responsible for overseeing climate-related
issues across the Group. The Board raviews each business
segment in depth every year, which will include a review
of materal ESG issues.

Risk management

The Board is accountable for etfective risk management,
for agreeing the principai, including emerging, rsks facing
the Group and ensuring they are successfully managed.

The process for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks is the same as for other risks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resides.

These risks. including climate risks, are collated and
reviewed at both @ business and divisional level, and then
reported to 1he Chief Financial Officer whao reviews the
key risks with the Board.

Strategy and action, meirics and targets

wittington cperates a decentralised business model
because the Group Board believes in giving the leaders of
its businesses the scope and accountability to create and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for identifying and implementing strategies
that both create value and ensure value is protected by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by the people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships wilh
the stakeholders affected. provides resiience, agility and
flexioility in planning, allowing for quick action on impacts
and opportunities.

Climate risks and opportunities
The ABF division accounts for the most material cimate
risks and epportunities in the Wittington Group.

ABF comprises businesses that provide safe, nutnhous and
affordable food, and clothing that is great value for
money. There will be many value creation opportunities
which ABF's businesses will be well positionad to take
advaniage of as the world fransifions to a low carbon
economy. There will also be physical and transitional
climate risks which they may be susceptible to. Many of
ABF's businesses rely on agricultural crops with complex
supply chains which are spread across the world, Long-
term climate change will impact agncultural crops and
workers while extrerne weather events have the potential
to cause disruption across value chains.

Cross-functional teams within the ABF business worked
with third-party experls to understand climate-related,
physical and fransition risks and opportunities. These were
included in the Group's scenario analysis.

Wittington Investments Financial Staterrents 2523 3
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Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement continued

The scenario analysis included the following scenaros:

warrning Transtional scenarnios’ Physical
frojectory by 2100 sCenanoss
<2°C CNMNet Zero Emissions by 2050 RCP2.4
Scenario {'NZE'} (1.5 C)
Sustcinable Development
Scenario {'SDS')
2:3°C Stated Policies Scenaric ('STEPS')  RCP4.5
—4'C RCP8.51

1. The Internatonal Brergy Agency’s scenarios have been used to assess transition
impacts with each scenanie built on a set of assumptions on how the energy
systern might evolve Each scenano has a different temperature outcome, ABF
used scenarios covering 1.5 C, «2° € and
<3 C

2 ABF used the Intergovernmental Panef on Climate Change's Representative
Caoncentration Pathways (RCP) to assess physical chimate risk RCPs are commanly
uset] by ehimate seientists to assess physical chmate nisk, with each pathway
representing a different greenhouse gas concentration trajectory which can then
be translated into global warming impacts. ABF used chmate data from the World
Chmate Research Programmes Coupled Model Intercomparison Project — Phase b
(CMIEP 5 adjusted far spatial resolution and bias corrected) to do this translation.
RCPs feed into climate. crop and flood madals There are four RCP pathways with
RCP8 5 representing the warst case scenark

The impact of compounding means that even small
changes in assumptions can lead o a significant range of
outcomes from climate models and scenarics. ABF
therefore placed more emphasis on projections to 2030,
using them for action planning, and used projections to
2050, where there is more uncertainty, to check oursense
of direction and consider the resilience of our businesses
should cerluin lypoethetical sconarios take ploce

Risks and opportunities have been considered over the
following time horzons:

Years Rationale
Short-term 2025 Mid-decade
Medium- 2030 Qur most financiclly matenal businesses.
term ABF Sugar, Primark and Twinings have sel

2030 emissien targets, which are suppored
by emission reduction plans

20850 is consistent with rmany national and

industry targels. Pimark is cligned with the
UNFCCC Fashion Industry Charter goal of

net zero emissions across all three Scopes

Iy 2050

Long-term 2050

ABF's risk assessment process identified the following
climate risks and cpporunifies that may have a significant
impact on ABF; these are denoted in italics below.
Additional risks and opportunities affecting Fortnum &
pMason (as the enly other business maternally affected by
climate change in the Wittington Group) are included
below.

Determining the potential impact of climate risks and the
size of climate opporunities is challenging. Climate
models include several fixed assumptions and there is
sighificant uncertainty arcund the impacts of climate
change and how governments will respond to its threats.

£ Wittington Investments  Financial Statements 2023

Impact
assessment

Description

Projected impacts from scenario andlysis are
posifive or not significant

Impacis not judged fo be dgnificont once
mitigailing aclions are considered

mpacks judged fo be significant even after
mitigating actions have been considered

Medivm

High

Hote, “Signifizance” refers here to the considered inrpact o climate
rises and cpporunifies o0 *ne Group's fimancial cerformance and
position

1. Climate impact on cotton yields (Primark)

2023 assessment

Short term:  H L ong-term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Proportion of cotton clothing sales {units) that
conlains cotton that is organic, recycled or sourced
from Primark's Sustainable Cotton Programme (%):
100% oy 2027.

Number of farmers trained in Primark's Sustainable
Cotton Programme: 275,000 by end of 2023,

2. Climate impact en fllove’s sugar yields (Eswatini,
Malawi. Mozambique, South Africa, Tanzania, Zambia)

2023 assessment

Short term:

ong-term
mMetrics for mitigating aclions & targets:

Sugar production (tonnes).

Yolume of water abstracted.

AB Sugar has a target to reduce its end-to-end
supply chaim water usage by 30% ve 2017/2018

3. Impuact of carbon pricing mechanisms (AB Sugar and
Primark)
2023 assessment
Medium term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Primark: GHG emissions: Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions
vs target of 50% absolute reduction in emissions by
2030 vs 2018/19 baseline.

AB Sugar: GHG emissions: Scope 1 and 2 emissions vs
farget of 30% abselute reductionin Scope 1 and 2
emissions by 2030 vs 2017/18 baseline

4. tmpact of carbon pricing mechanisms on Forthum &
Masen
2023 assessment
Medium term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

GHG emissions: Scope 1, 2 emissions vs target of 25%
absciute reduction in emissions by 2025 vs 2018/19
baseline

wWe consider that the scenario analysis performed in
conjunction with the mitigaling actions undertaken by our
businesses demcnstrate that our business models and
strategy are resilient to climate change in each of the
transition and physicat scenarios cutlined above.
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Principal Risks and Uncertginties

The Group's board reviews annually the material risks
facing the busingss together with the internal control
pracedures and resources devoted to thern.

The principal risks currently identified are:

External Risks: the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East
thelrimpact on the UK and Global econcmy; events
impacting consumer confidence leading to reduced
consumer spending movemeant in exchange rates; wage
and materials inflation: fluctuations in commodity and
energy prices; operating in gichal markets: health and
nutrition concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chain interuptions and labour
shortages; workplace health and safety; praduct safetly
and quality; use of natural resources and managing
environmental impact; ethical business practices; and
breaches of IT and information security.

Energy and Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group is committed to making year-on-year
improvements in cperational energy efficiency.

The Group colculates and discloses GHG emissions based
on the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporling Standard Revised Edition, except ior
alignment with the GHG Protocol's approach for
determining organisational boundary and limitations for
Scope 3 disclosures. The Group use carbon conversion
factors published by the UK's Department for Business,
Energy and Industnal Strategy (BEIS) in June 2022, other
internationally recagnised scurces, and bespoke factaors
based on laboratory calculations at selected localions.
Scope 2 market-based emissions have been calculated in
accordance with the GHG Protocol Scope 2 Guidance
on procured renewable energy.

ABF's emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) reduced by 6% to 2.91
milion tonnes CO2e (2022: 3.11 millicn tonnes CO2e).
ABF's energy consumption increased by 1% to 21,183
GWh (2022: 21,046 GWh). The principal energy efficiency
measures to reduce ABF's carbon emissions include the
introduction of energy monitoring systermns; conversions to
LED lighting; and upgrades to production machinery such
as compressors and boilers to improve efficiencies.

Fortnum & Mason's emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) were 1,859
tonnes CO2e [2022: 1,617 fonnes CO2e) and ifs energy
consumption was 8,489 GwH (2022: 7,922 MWh)

Fortnum & Mason is alsc commitfed to decreasing ifs
reliance on the planet's resources and s working hard to
ensure that all packaging is either reusable, hame
compastabie or fully recyclable by 2024.

Corporate Responsibility

The Group's corporate responsibility activities centre on
those of ABF. As o diversified intermational food,
ingredients and retail Group wilh 133,000 employees and
operations in 55 couniries across Europe, southern Africa,
the Americas, Asia and Ausiralia, ABF takes ifs
responsibilities to wider society seriously. ABF publishes G
full corporate responsibility report every three years, most
recently in 2022, Corporate responsibility is a central part
of how the business is run and is ncorporated into the day
fo day decision making processes. In the Corpaorate
Responsibility Repart, ABF shares information on ifs anti-
bribery and corruption policy, whistleblowing policy.
approach to human rights, social matters, environment
policy, employees and diversity. Further information and a
copy of the 2022 ABF Corporate Responsibility Report are
available at www . abf.co.uk/responsibility/cr_downloads.

ABF is committed to gender diversity and, across the
business overall, the gender split is close to equal with 54%
of the workforce last year being female. The Equality Act
2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information} Regulations 2017
werg Infroduced in Aprl 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for all of its relevant employees. Further
details for each af the UK legal entities that are required fo
report dala is published online and submitted fo the
Government's Gender Pay Reporling website in
accordance with the legislation. Further information can
be found inin the ABF 2023 Annua'’ Report af
www.abf.co uk/investorrelations/reports.

Being a responsible company means respecting the
human rights of all the pecople who interact with the
business, whether they are direct employees, temporary
warkers or those in the supply chain. ABF's approach to
human rights and the steps it takes to try 1o ensure that
modern slavery, in any of its forms is not present within its
operations or supply chains is set out in the 2023 Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businesses have compiled their own staiements, and all
published statements can be found at

nttp/fwewew. abf.co.uk/responsibility/responsibility. policies.

ABF s committed to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics ancl compliance with all relevant laws wherever it
daes business. Compliance with anti-bribery and anfi-
carruption laws is an essential part of this and ABF
maintaing o robust compliance system which is designed
to respect both the spirit and lefter of the relevant laws. A
copy of the Group's Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is
available at

hitp:/www . abf.couk/responsibility /responsibility_poficies.

Wittington Investments  Financiaf Statements 2023 5
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Effective and honest communication is essential if
malpractice and wrangdoing are 1o be dealt with
eftectively. ABF’'s Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people who feel they need fo roise certain issues in
contfidence. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
available at

hitp:/ fewew . abd . co.uk/responsibility fresponsibility_policies.

Fortnum & hMascn, as a business that has been arcund for
over 300 years, seas its primary responsibility as conducting
business today in a way that truly considers the next 300
vears. Fortnum & mason's strategy is called Future Matters
wilhin which are four sustainability and social responsibility
pillars: People, Product, Packaging and Planet. These
drive a commiiment to daing more things more often to
create long-lasling change, with the help of suppliers,
employeess and customers. Mare information is available
in the Fortnum & mMason PLC Annual Direclors Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements which can be found at
the Companies House website (hHps:/find-and-
update.company-information.service.gov.uk/f).

Geopolitical uncertainty and Russia’s war in Ukraine

The global inflationary pressures friggered inifially by
COVID-1? have been exacerbated by the geopoliical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine, For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
aperations ar investrmeants in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in alimost all the
markets in which the Group operates and has adversely
impacted commedity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Qur management teams in all business
segments confinue to moniter castinflation closely. Whilst
there are early sigrs of cuslinflation decreasing in many
parts of the global economy., the emergence of conflict in
the mMiddle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. Its impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
Middle East, on geapotiical repercussions and on centres
bank responses to inflation.

111

N

S5t Guy Weslon 15 Decamber 2023
Chainnan

Wittington Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

Wik 4QY

Company Number 00346054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual repert and audited
financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 14
September 2023, in accordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Board considers that the
Group's Report and Accounts 2023, taken as a whaole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Given the matericlity of the ABF [Associated British Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference fo
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
hove elected to provide additional information in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consclidated financial statements
of the Graup. For clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown in italcs in the notes to these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

Results and Dividends

The consolidated income statement is on page 13. Profit
for the pericd amounted to £1.099m (2022: £783m).
Dividends paid amounted to £128m (2022: £104m).
Dividends are detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial
perod attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
£618m [2022: £445m).

Controlling Sharehelder Relationship Agreement

Any person who exercises or contfrols, an their own or
together with any person with whom they are acling in
concert, 30% or more of the votes able to be cast at
genercl meetings of a company are known as o
‘controlling shareholder' under the Listing Rules. The Listing
Rules require companies with controlling shareholders ta
enterinto an agreement which is infended te ensure that
the controlling shareholders comply with certain
independence provisions in the Listing Rules. The Group
and, through their control of the Group, the trustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are controling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 November 2014 the Group enfered into a
relationship agreement with ABF and the frustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundahon containing the required
undertakings. The Relationship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 June 2020.

Controlling Interest

Dedails of a controling interest in the shares of the Group
are given in note 32. Other thar as noted, so far asis
known, no other person holds or is beneficially interested
in a disclesable halding in the Group.

Future business developments

Future business developments are outlined in the Strategic
Report in the sections concerned with Business Strategies
and Business Review.

Directors

The Direclors who held office throughout the year were as
Tollows:

Sir Guy Weston {Chairman)
Emma Adamao

Sir Harry Dianogly

Martin Hattrell

Anna Catring Hobhouse
Charles pMason

Lindsay Pearson

Alannah Weston [resigned 12 December 2023)
Garth Weston

George Wesion

Grahan Weston

The Company Secretary was Jennifer Dooley.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Group has in place appropriate directors” and
officers’ liability insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its execulive and non-execulive directors
arnangst others. The directors of a subsidiary company
that acts as trustee of a pension scheme benefited from a
qualifying pansion scheme indemnity provision during the
financial year and at the date of the ABF 2023 Annual
Report. Other than these, there were no qualitying third-
party indemnity provisions provided by the Group or ifs
subsidianes during the financial year and as af the date of
the ABF 2023 Report.

Branches

The Group, through various subsidiaries, has established
Branches in a number of different countrnes in which the
Gioup operates.

Engagement with suppliers, employees,
customers and others in a business relationship
with the company

The way the Group engages with stakeholders is outiined
in the Strategic Report in the section concerned with
directors’ duties,

Political donations

During the year, the Group did not make any political
donations or incur any political expenditure {within the
ordinary meaning of those words) in the UK. However,
under the wider definition of those terms in Part 14 of the
Companies Act 2006, ABF paid costs totalling
approximately £3,150 during the year for attendance of
employees at the Conservative and Labour Party
Conferences which could potentialiy fall within that wider
definition. The Group did not make any contributions 1o
non-UK political parties during the year.
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Directors’ report

Research and development
Innovative use of existing and emerging lechnolagies will
continue to be crucial to the successful development of

new products and processes for the Group.

ABF has a technical centre in ihe UK at the Aflied
Technical Centre. R&D facilifies alsc exist across ABF,
including at: ACH Food Companies in the USA: AB Maurfin
Australia and the Netherlands (including the Global
Technology Cenire): AB Enzymes in Germany: and the
Roal joint venture pilot plant in Rajamdki, Finland. These
centres suppart the technical resources of the ABF
operating divisions in the search for new technology and
in monitoring and maintaining high standards of gquality
and food safety. ABF also acquired National Milk Records
plc (see further details on page 48] which invests in an
nnovative range of milk quality, herd hecith and genomic
testing services, generating data and building robust
insights that empower farmers to make informed decisions
on cow produchivity

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's use of financial instruments,
together with infarmation on cur risk objectives and
policies and our exposure to price, credit, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found in note 28.
Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Direciors' Report canfirm that, so far as they are each
aware, [here is i retsvant avdit information of which the
auditar is unaware, and eqch directar has faken all the
reasonable steps that he/she cught to have taken as a
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and fo establish that the auditoris
aware of that information. For these purposes, relevant
audit information means informatiion needed by the
auditorin connection with the preparation of its report on
pages 10-12,

Auditors

In accordance with section 485{4} of the Companies Act
2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as auditors of the Group will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

nMaintaining effective corporate governance is
fundamental to the Board's ability to discharge its duties
lo shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the systern
of internal control to facilitate the identification,
assessment and management of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk is
minimised, that proper accounting records are
maintained, that the financial information used within the
business is reliable and that the consclidaled accounts
preparation and financial reporting processes comply
with all relevant regulatory reporting requirerments. The
directors confirm that there is a process for identifying.
evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group
and the operational effectiveneass of the related controls,
They also confirm that they have reqularly reviewed the
system of infernal controls.

8 wittington Investments  Financial Sratements 2023

Going concern

The global inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainfy caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chdins as well as
wage costs, Qur management teams in all business
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global econamy, the emergence of conflict in
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. s impacts on
the Group's frading and invesfing activilies will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
mMiddle East.on geopaclitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However the directors believe the Group's resilience has
been evidenced by Ihe year-on-year growih in operating
cash flows in excess of £1bn set out in these statements
and believe that the Group is wel placed o trade
through the uncertain times with adeguate resources to
caontinue 1o meet ils commitments when calied. As such
these financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis (see note 1.

1
b,

Sir Guy Weston 15 December 2023

Chairman

wittington Investments Limited
Registered office:;

wWeston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00366054



Statement of directors' responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Direclors’ Report and the Group and porent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable UK 'aw and regulations.

Company law requires the direclors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
vear. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable law and UK Adopted International Accounting Standards ("UK Adopted IFRS'). The directors have elected to
prepare the parent company financial stalements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework' ['FRS 1017).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are safisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period.

In prepanng each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are reguired to:

select suitable accounting palicies n accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Eshmates
and Errors and then apply them consistently:

make judgements and estimates that are regsonable and prudent;

present information. including accounting policies, in @ manner that provides refevant. reliable. comparable and
understandable information;

provide additional disclosures when complionce with the specific requirements in UK Adopted IFRS, and in respect of
the parent company financial statements, FRS 101, is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group and company financial position and financial
performance;

for the Group financial siatements. state whether UK Adopted IFRS have been followed, subject o any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

- for the pareni company inancial statements, state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards including FRS 107
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements; and

prepare the financinl staterments en the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume thal the Group and
the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accaunting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the
parent company's and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy af any time the financial position of
the parent company and the Group and enable them 1o ensure that the parent company and the Group financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2004, They have general responsibility for laking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the parent company and the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable low and regulations. the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directaors’
Report which comply with that law and those regulations, The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial intormation included on the Company's website Legislation in the UK gaverning
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the direcfors in respect of the annual report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

the financial stotemenis. prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whaole; and

the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the businass and the position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

L Witlington Investments
P Limited
VA L,—d Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street
Sir Guy Weston Lenden
Chairman WIK 4QY

15 December 2023 Company Number 00346054
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Wittington Investments Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial staternents of Wittington Investments Limited {'the parent company’] and its subsidiaries
{the ‘group’) for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023 which comprise the Comsolidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. the Consclidated and Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consclidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 fo 32,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the
preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework"”
{(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice].

In our opinicn:

the financial statements give o true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 16
September 2023 and of the group's prafit for the year then ended;

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intemational
accounting standards;
the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in cccordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable [aw,
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the iinanciai statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting In the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of
the group and parent company's obility to confinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

Understanding the process taken by management to evaluate the operational and economic impacts of
macroeconomic factors on the Group and to reflect these in the group's forecasts;

Challenging the assumptions underpinning the Group's forecasts and going concern perod until June 2025;
Confirming the opening cash and cosh equivalents fo the financial statements;

lesting the clerical accuracy of the model used to prepare the Group's geing concern assessment;
Performing a reversa stress test to establish the reduction in cash flows that could lead to atoss of fquidity; and
Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's disclosure concerning the going concern basis of preparation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 1o events or
conditions that, individually or coltectively, may cast significant doutst on the group and parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern until June 2025,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibililies of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement s not a
guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of Wittingfon Investments Limited

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual repert, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Ouwr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ofher information is materially
incensistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obloned in the cowurse of the audif or otherwise appears 1o
e materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to o material misstaternent in the financial staterments themselves. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to repoit in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004
In our opinion, based an the work undertaken in the course of the oudit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic report and direclors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguirements.

Maters on which we are required to report by excepfion
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatemenis in the strategic report or directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us 10
report fo you If, In our apinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have
nol been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company hnancial stulernenls we ot i agreement with the accounting recards and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are nof made; o

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the direclors’ responsicilities statement set out on page %, the directors are responsitle for the
preparation of the financial stalements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
contral as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
maierial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's
ability o confinue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend fo liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operalions, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financiai statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements os a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs {UK) will clways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Wittinglon Investments Limited

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting iregularities, including
fraud

Imegularities, inciuding fraud. are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, cullined above, to detect iregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting o matenal
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities, including froud is detailed below, However, the primary

responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and
management.

Cur approach was as follows:

We oblaned an undersianding of the legal and regulatory framewerks fhat are appkcable to the Group and
determined that the most significant frameworks which are directly relevant to specific asserfions in the financial
statements are those that relate to the reporting frameawork (FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Frameawork™, United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accouniing Practice and the Companies Act 2006) and the relevant tax laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operales. In addifion, we concluded that there are certain
significant laws and regulations which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosuresin
the financial statements eing those laws and regulations relating to health and safety, employee matters, food
standards and food safety.

We understood how Wittington Investments Limited 1s complying with those framewaorks by making enguines of
managemeant and observing the oversight of those charged with governance, the culture of hanesty and ethical
behaviour and whether a strong emphasis s placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud
to take place, and fraud deterrence, which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the
likelihood of detection and punishment.

We assessed the susceplibility of the Group's financial statements fo matenal misstalement. including how fraud
might occur by meeting with managament from various parts of the business 1o understand where it considered
there was susceptibility to froud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by
management to manage earmings. We cansidered the programmes and contrals that the Group has established to
acldress risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud: and how management monitors those
programmes and controls, Where the risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures 1o address
each identified fraud nsk. Inese procedurss included testing manial journals and were designed to provide
recisonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our gudit procedures o identify non-compliance with such laws and
requlations. Our procedurss involved a focus on journal entry testing and journals indicaling large or unusual
transactions or meeating our defined risk criteria based on our understanding of the business and enquiries of
management,

A further description of our responsibilifies for the cudit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description foms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely fo the company's membzers. as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2004, Our audit work has been underfaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
malters we are required to state to them in an auditor's repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permilted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsiblity to anyone other than the company and the company's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

2

Simon O’Nelll (Senior statutory auditer)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

15 Decemibber 2023
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Consolidated income statement
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

2023 Catr
Cor'nuing oeralion - Moie £m M
Revenue 3 20,028 17.258
Opeialing costs before exceptional ilems 4 {18.698) [15.96%]
Bxceplionalitems .. R 1) ) 206)
1.221 1.083
Share of profit after tax from joint ventures and asscciates 13 124 109
EerHVs(\essrlqsrsﬁe;srprr]qugso\ of non-current assets 27 16
Operating profit 1,372 1,208
Adjusted operating profif 3 1,503 1454
Profits less losses on disposal of nen-current ossets 27 14 :
Amorisation of non-operating intangibles 9 (41) [47) w
Acquired inventory fair value adjusiments 4 1] {51
Transaction caosts 4 (5 1é) ‘
Exceptional items - ~ } 4 __(_1_0_9_)_ [2()6) ‘
Profits less losses on sale and ciosure of businesses ) 25 1 (23}
Profit before interest 1.373 1185
Finance income 6 1146 44
Finance expense & {131) ARy
Other financial inccme e R 6 26 40
Profit before taxation 1,384 1.153
Adpusted profit belore fusution 1.514 1 424
! Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 27 14 ‘
s Amortsation of non-cperating infang bles K {41} 47]
Acquired iInventory far value adjustments 4 {3) 150
| Transaction cosls 4 {(5) [6) 1
' Exceptional items 4 (i09) (206]
_Profitsless lasses on sale and closure of businesses e 5 ! 23]
Taxation — UK {excluding iax on exceptional items] (56) {64)
UK {on exceptional items) 3 3
- Oversens [excluding tax on exceptional items) [164) [243)
- Overseas [on exceplional itemns) - - - o (66  {68]
R 7 _(289) (370)
Profitfor the period 1.099 785
Attibutable to
Equity shareholders 618 445
Ner-confroling interests 481 338
Profit for the period 1.09¢ 783
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

B s
Mosler £m
Prcfit for the period recagnised in the income statement 1.09¢
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 (8) 825
Defened tox associated with defined benefitschemes . [ E L
Iterns that will not be reclassifiad 1o profit or loss (2) 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (473) 445
Met gain/lloss] on hedge of net invesiment in foreign subsiciaries 1 Il
MNet gain on other investrents held at fair value through other comprehensive income - 4
Deferred tax associcted with movernants in foreign exchange (5) -
Current tax associated with rmovements in foreign exchange [ -
rovement in cash flow hedging position 28c (260} 419
Defered tax associoted with movemeant In cash flow hedging position 7. 28¢c 40 (28]
Defered tax associated with movement in other investments - 1}
Share of other comprehensive {loss)/income of joint ventures and assaciates (18) 28
Effect of hypennfiationary economies 40 48
lterms that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (669) 912
Other compiehensive (loss)/income for ih;béfidd ’ } _7 7_7_7 7_7:7 ) A L_S%gi
Total comprehensive income for the p'erié@'u:‘ . ) __7 - 428 2321
Attributable to
Equity shareholders 251 1,281
Hon-controlinginteresls - 177 1.040
Total comprehensive income for the period 428 2,321
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 16 September 2023

Tz Wz

i £m Lin
Neon-cument assels
Intangitble assets 9 1,880 1.879
Froperty. plant and equipment 10 5,834 5727
Right-of-use assets 11 2,377 2,477
nvestment property 12 274 244
Investments in joint ventures 13 305 303
Investments In associates 13 93 89
Employee benefits assefs 14 1,444 1,393
nvesimenls 28 14% 142
ncome tax 7 23 23
Defered fax assels 15 195 160
Other receivakbles ) _ ~ N s 463 ) 58
Total non-current assets o o ) N ’ : o M263% 12497
Current assets
Assets classified os held for sale 17 - 45
Inventories 18 3,244 3.2%6
Biological assets 12 % 105
Trade and other receivables 16 1,807 1.789
Derivative assets 28 % 475
Investments 28 1,329 1.243
InCome fax 103 74
Cash and cash equivalents o _ 20 1,596 2226
Total cumrenl assets o - B . o 8,276 9255
Total gssets . 20915 21752
Current liabilities
Licibilities classified as hetd for sale 17 - {14
Lease liabiities 1 (328) (320}
Loans and overdrafts 21 [169) [157)
Trade and cther payables 22 (3.0600) (3.163)
Derivative fiabilities 28 (69) [205)
Income tax {7 (170}
Provisions L B 23 (55) (87}
Total current liabilities o (3,748) (4.118)
MNon-curent liabilities
Lease habilities 1 (2.852) {2,955}
Loans 21 (394) (481}
Pravisions 23 (48) [26)
Defered tax liabilities 15 (442) [664)
Employse benefils liabilities 14 (75) ) [84)
Total non-current liabilifies - i @y 42y
Total lobiiifies o - (7.759) (9,330}
Nefassefs i 13186 13422
Equity
Issued capital 24 - -
Share prermium 382 387
Ofher reserves 24 101 ?7
Translation reserve 24 (22) 235
Hedging reserve 24 1 84
Retained earnings o - 7733 7.308
Total equily atfributable to equity sharehalders } o 8,195 8,106
E'S'r'w-cgﬁ?réllmg'\meresfs 4961 5314
Tolal equity 13,156 13.422

The financial statements on pages 13 to 77 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15 December 2023 and were

signed on its behalf by:

A
i

A

Sir Guy Weston
Chaiman
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2023 Tz

MNete £m £
Cash flow from operatling activities
Profit before taxation 1,384 1.153
Prafits less losses on disposal of non-curent assets {27} (14}
Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses m 23
Transaction costs 4 5 4
Finonce income & {114) [44]
Finance expense & 131 114
Other fincncial income & {26} (40)
Share of prafit after tox from joint ventures and asseciates 13 {124) 110%]
Amortisation Bé 71
Depreciation (including depreciation of right-of-use assets) 815 814
Impcirment/{Reversal of impairment] of property, plant & equipment and righi-of-use assels 5 {13)
Impaiment of investment properties 14 4
Bxceptional tems 4 109 204
Acquired inventory fair value adjustrments 3 5
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 14 16
Net change in the fair value of curent biclogical ossets (11} (8
Share-bosed payment expense 26 18 19
Pansion casts less contributions (8) 7
Increase in invenlores {79} [P44]
ncrease in receivables (104) [288)
[Decrease}/increase in payables {18} 514
Purchases less sales of curent biclogical assets (%) {4)
[Decrease)fincrecse in provisons {27} 7
E&Hgéﬁe'raigd?o% o'pe-roﬂons 2,014 1,479
Income taxes pad S - (349) 1313}
Net cash generated from operating activities - 77‘71,?57 S 1186
Cash tlow from investing aclivities
Dividends receved from joint ventures and associales 13 109 2
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1.004) 1683}
Purchase of intangibles (79) 192)
Sale of property. plant and equipment 48 30
Purchase of investment properties (45) 163}
Sale of investment properties 3 34
Purchase of subsidianes, joint ventures and associates 25 (94) {154}
Sale of subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates &6 2
Purchase of non-curreni investments (26) [55)
Redemption of non-cunerd investments 19 24
Purchase of current investments 27 (1,689) {1,201}
Redemption of/decrease in curent invesimenis 27 1,640 1.079
Interest and dividends received _ 54 26
Net cash used in invesfing activilies (98) (957}
Cash flow fram financing acfivities
Dividends paid to non-controlfing interests {163) {180}
Dividlends paid to equity shareholders 8 {128) (104}
Inlerest paid (119} 114]
Lease incentives received 62 44
Repayment of lease liabilities 27 (312) 1325]
Decreqse in short-termn loans 27 (13} [58)
Increase in long-term loans 27 - 179
Purchase of shares in subsidiary undertaking from non-controling interests 32 (448) -
rovemen! from changes in own shares held {46} 150]
Net cash used in financing activiies (1167} (808)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalenis 27 (500} (3%7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of The period 2,100 2423
Elfect of movements inforeignexchange (73) 74
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the period 27 1,527 2,100
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

ssuza Seae Transkation b o a _(:unlf(ﬁ\‘i;\g “oral
caotal prenTam rEaemves remery el [ETFL I TR LN IS 1Y Tl ‘nterests equty
holer £ £m i i £m £ Em im Faial
Balance as ot 18 Septernber 2021 - 382 %5 (9. 24 6617 7092 4598 11897
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the perod recognised in the income stalement - 445 445 338 /83
Remeasurements of defined benefit schermes 14 - - - - - 451 451 374 825
Deferred tax asociated wi efined benefit schemes - - - - 109 (109} {(20)  1199)
ltems thal wil nof be reclossfied to prefi orfoss — — © T2 7T - - - - 342 342 284 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 240 240 205 445
Net [ass on hedge of net investment in loreign subsiciaries - 1) m - 1)
Net gain on other invesiments held at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 3 - 3 b 4
Maoverment in cash flow hedging positicn - - - - 228 - 228 191 419
Defered tax associated with movements in cash flow - - 115 - {15 113) (28]
hedging posifion
Defered tax associcted with movemenls in ofher - - 1} - - - 1 - 1)
irvestrments
Share of other comprehensive income of joint veniures - - 15 - 15 13 28
and associctes
Effect of hyperinflutionary economies B - -2 25 21 48
lterms that are or may be subsequently reclassified to - 2 254 213 a5 494 418 912
profitorloss
Other comprehensiveincorne - 2 354 83% 702 1,538
Totol comprehensive income. : - - 2 254 1281 1040 2321
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransfered lo cost of inventory - - [153) - [183) {127)  [280)
Totalinventory cash flow hedge movements - - - - (153 - 1153 (127)  (287)
Transactions with owners
Dividends poid fo equity sharehclders 8 - - - - - {104y 1104) - [104)
Net movement in own shares he'ld - - - - - &) (14) 115} 131)
Defened tax associated with share-based payments - m 1 m
Divdends paid o run-confroling interests T T (L A
Toldl fronsactions with cwners = - = -2y 2y (195 (314
Balance as at 17 September 2022 — 382 57 235 84 7308 8.106 5314 13,422
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement - - - - - 418 418 431 1,099
Remeasuraments of defined berefit schemes 14 - - - - - (3) 3) 3 (&)
Defered tax associcled with defined benrefit schemes - - - - - 2 2 2 4
Iterns that wil not be reclassified to profit orloss - - - - - m m m w4
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge - - - (255} - - (255) {218) (473)
Netioss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidianes - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Deferred tax associated with movements in foreign - - - (3) - - 3 {2} (5)
exchange
Current tax gssociated with moverments in foreign - - - 3 - - 3 3 é
exchange
Movemen! in cash flow hedging position - - - - (146) - {146) {114) (260}
Defered tax asociated with movements in cash flow - - - - pas - 22 18 44
hedging positicn
Share of other comprehersive income of joint ventures - - - (10) - - (10 B (18
and associates
Effect of hyperinflotionary economies - - - - - 22 22 18 40
Items that are or may be subsequenily reclassified (o profil
of 1055 B - - - (264) (124) 22 (3684) (303} (669)
Other comprehensive income L - - - [264) (124) 21 (347) (304) (671}
Total comprehensive income - - - (264) (124) 63% 251 177 428
[r?\;gﬁibw cash low hedge movements
Losses ransferred 1o cost of inventary - - - - 38 - 38 30 [1:]
Total inventory cash flow hedge movements - - - - 38 - 38 30 48
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid ta equily shareholders 8 - - - - - {128) £128}) - [128)
Net moverment in own shares held - - - - (18) (18) 2) (28)
Acouisition of non-conireling interests - - 4 7 3 (71} (57} (387) (444)
Deferred lax associated with share-based payments - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Bivicends pdid 10 non-controling inferests e e O S N (L2 N A1)
Total fransactions with owners - - 4 7 3 (214) (200)  (562) (742)
Balance as at 14 Seplember 2023 - 382 101 {22y 1 7.733 8,195 4961 13,156

Witlington lnvestments Financial Staraments 2023

17



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies

Wittington Investments Limited is a private company
limited by shares incorporated and registered in England,
United Kingdom.

The Caompany's consehdated financial staternents for the
52 weeks ended 14 September 2023 comprise those of the
Company and ils subsidiaries [the *Group'] and ifs interests
in joint ventures and associates.

The directors authonsed the consolidated financial
statements forissue on 15 December 2023,

Statement of compliance

The consofidated financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards {"UK
Adopted IFRS').

Given the materiality of the ABF (Associaled British Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference to
the published financial statements of ABF, the directors
have elected to provide additional information in the
notas which follow sething out the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown initafics in the notes to these
statements and are consistent with the published financial
statements of ABF.

The directors have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards ond applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financiat
Reporhing Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framewark'.
These are presented on pages 74to 79,

Basis of preparation

The Company presents its consolidated financial
statements in sterling, rounded fo the nearest millicn
{except where otherwise indicated), prepared on the
Historical cost basis except that current biological assets
held by ABF (Associated British Foods plc) and certain
financial instruments are stated at fair value, Assets
classified as held for sale are stated af the lower of
canying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell.

The preparation of inancial stalements under VK-
Adopted IFRS requires management 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assets and fiabilties. income and expenses and the
disclosure of conlingent assets and liabilities. The estimates
and associated assumphions are based on experience,
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgemenis made by management in the application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have a significant effect onthe
financial statements and estimates with o significant risk of
material adjustment next year, are discussed in
Accounting estimates and judgements detailed in note 2.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on a regular basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised from the period in which the estimates are
revised.

The accounting policies sel ouf below have been applied
to all periods presented, except where stated otherwise.

Details of new accounling standards which came into
force in the year are set out ai the end of this note.

The Group's consalidated financial statements are
prepared to the Saturday nearest to 15 September.
Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023
{2022 - 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022).

To aveid delay in the preparation of the consolidated
financicl staterments, the results of certain subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are included up fo 31 August
each year and Fortnum and Mason plc is included up to 9
July 2023. Adustments are mode as appropriate for
significant transactions or events accurring between 16
Sepiember and these cther balance sheet dates.

The Group's business activities, together with factors fikely
to atffect its future development, performance and
position are set aut in the Strategic report on pages 1 1o 6.
The Princizal nsks and uncertainties on page 5 and note
2?8 on pages 51 to 42 provide delails of the Group's policy
on managing its financial and commaodity risks. The Group
has considerable financial resources, good access fo
debi markets, a diverse range of businesses and a wide
geographic spread. It 5 therefore well placed to manage
business risks successfully.

Climate change

In prepaning the consolidated financial statements,
management has considered the impact of climate
change. particularly in the context of the Non-Financial
and Sustainability Information Statement set out on pages
3 to 4 and our sustainability fargets. These considerations
did nol have a matenal impact on the financial reporting
judgements and estimates, consistent with the assessment
that climate change is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's going concern assessmeant to June
2025 nor tne viabilily of the Group over the next three
yedars,

Management has considered the impact of climate
change on a number of key estimates within the financial
staternents, including the estirmates of future cash flows
used inimpairment assessments of the carrying value of
gaadwill and other non-currant assets. The assessment
with respect to the impact of climate change will be kept
under review by management, as the tuture impacts
depend on factors cutside of the Group's control, which
are not all currently known.

Going concern

The globalinflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations orinvestments in Russia. Nevertheless. the war
hos resuited in economic uncertainty in almost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversaly
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Our management feams in all business
segments continue to monitor costinflation closely. Whilst
there are earysigns of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of conflictin
the middle East has added furiher risk to an already fragile
geopocltical and economic environmeni. lis impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend cn
the duralion of the cument crises in Ukraine and the
tiddle East,on geopoltical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resilience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growlth in operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
cash flows in excess of £1on sef out Iin these statements.
After making enquiries, the directors have areasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate rescurces to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reaseon they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the cansolidated financial
statlements.

Having reviewed the Board's best estimate of fuiure cash
flow ta June 2025, and having applied reverse stress tests,
the possibility that the financial headroom could be
exhausted is considered to be extremely remote. The
drrectors understand the risks. sensitivities and judgements
included in the cash flow forecast and have a high
degree of confidence in these cash flows. There is
substantial financial headroom between this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding available to
the Group over the period. This is evidenced by the net
cash posilion before lease liabilifies Tor the Group of
£2.34bn at 14" September 2023 {2022: £2.83 bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the resulis
of the Company and its subsidiaries fram the date that
control commences to the date that control ceases.

They also include the Group's share of the after-tax results.
other comprehensive income and net assefs of ifs joint
ventures and associates on an equity-accounted basis
from the point at which joint control or significant
influence respectively commences, to the date that if
cedses.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, io direct the relevant activities of an entity so
as to affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
within ecjuity.

All the Group's joint arrangerments are joint ventures,
which are entilies over whose acliviies the Group has jaint
cantrol, typically established by contractual agreement
and requiring the venturers' unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, being the power to parficipate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the entity, but
which does not amount o control or joint control.

Where the Group's share of losses exceeads its interestin a
joint venture or associate, the carrying amount is reduced
to zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the exient that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
aninvestee.

Caontral, joint confrol and significant influence are
generally assessed by reference to equity shareholdings
and voiing rights.

Business acquisitions

On acquisition of a business, the Group aftributes foir
values to the identfifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabiities acquired, reflecting conditions af the date of
acquisition. These include daligning accounting policies
with those of the Group.

The Group finglises provisional fair values within 12 months
of the date of acquisition and, where significant, reflects
them by restatement of the comparative period in which
the acquisition occurred. The Group megsures non-
controling interasts at the proporfionate share of the net
idenhifiable assets acguired.

The Group remeasures existing equity inferests in the
acquiree to fair value at the date of acquisition, with any
resulting gain or loss taken fo the incame statement.

Goodwill arsing on acguisition of a business Is the excess
of the remeasured camying amount of any existing equity
interest plus the fair value of consideration payable for the
additional stake over the fair value of the share of net
identifiable assets and liabilities acguired {including
separately identifled intangible assets). net of non-
canfrolling interests. Total consideration does notinclude
fransachion costs, which the Group expenses as incured.

The Group measures contingent consideration at fair
value af the date of acqguisition, classified as a liability or
equity [usually as a liability).

Other than for the finalisation of provisional fair values., the
Group accounts for changes in contingent consideration
ciassified os a liability in the income statement.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items that. in the judgement
of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
ot their nature, size orincidence. ltems that may be
considered exceptional in nature include disposals of
Businesses or significant assets, business restructunngs,
significant onerous caonfract charges/releases, debt
repurchase costs, rertain pension past service
credits/costs, asset impaoirments fwrite-backs and the tax
affects of these items.

The Group distinguishes between exceptional and non-
exceptional impairmentsfwrite-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the impairment, as well as the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers that are deemed to
be ouiside of the control of the Group give rise to
exceptional impairments. Additionally, impairment
charges that are ot o one-off nature and significant
enough value lo distord the undcerlying resulis of the
businass are considered to be exceptional.

Revenue

Revenue represents the value of sales made 1o customers
after deduction of discounts, sales taxeas and a provision
for returns. Discounts include sales rebates, price
discounts, customer incentives, certain promotional
activities and similar items. Revenue does not Include sales
between Group companies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
abligations are satisfied, goods are delivered to customers
and cenirel of geods is fransferred to the buyer.

In the Food businesses of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods on dispatch or
delivery to customers. dependeant on shipping terms, and
provides for discounts and returns as a reducfion to
revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management’s best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers. taking intc account
contractual and legal obligations, historical trends and
past experience.

In the Retail business of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods when g
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

customer purchases goads, and provides for returns as a
reduction to revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to
meel claims by customers, taking into account histerical
trends and past experience.

Borrowing costs

The Group accounts tar borrowing costs using the
effective interest method. The Group capitalises
borowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition,
canstructian or production of qualifying iterms of propearty,
plant and eguipment as part of their cost,

Foreign currencies

Individual Group companies record transactions in fareign
currencies at the exchange rate at the dote of the
fransaction, and translate monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies at the exchange rate at the balance
sheet date, with any resulling differences taken to the
income statement, unless designated in a hedging
relationship. in which case hedge accounting applies.

On consolidation, the Group transiates the assets and
liabilities of operations denorminated in foreign curencies
info sterfing at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group translates the income statements of
those operations into sterling at average exchange rates.

The Group records differences arising from the
refranslation of opening net assets of Group companies,
tagether with differences arising from the restatement of
the net results of Group companies from average
exchange rates to those at the bulunce shieet date, in the
translation reserve in equity.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group's pension and ather post-employiment benefit
arrangements comprise defined benefit plans, defined
contribution plans and other unfunded post-employment
plans,

For defined benefil plans, the income statement charge
comprises the cost of benefits earned by members and
benefit improvements granted to members during the
year, as well as net interest income/{expense) calculated
by applying the liability discount rate 1o the cpening net
pension asset or liability.

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value of scheme
llabilities on a scheme-by-schemea basis as net pension
assels {to the extent recoverable)] or abilities.

The Group recognises remeasurements and movements in
irecaverable surpluses in other comprehensive income.

The Group charges confriputions payable inrespect of
defined contribution plans to operating profit as incurred.

The Group accounts for other unfunded post-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit plans.

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. The Group recognises income
tax in the income statement except to the extent that it
relates to ltems faken direcily to equily.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted for the period, together with any
adjustment to tax payable inrespect of prior periods.
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The Group provides for deferred tax using the balance
sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
petween the carying omaounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
pUrNROses.

The Group does not provide for the following temporary
ditferences: initial recognition of goodwil; initial
recognition of assets orliakilities affecting neither
accounting nor taxable profit ather than those acguired
in a business combination; and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group bases the amount of deferred tax provided on
The expected manner of rechsalion or setflemeant of the
canying amoaunt of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enocted or substanlively enacled al the balance sheet
date.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets only o the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
avalable agamnst which the asset can be ulilised.

The Group offsets deferred tax assels and ligbilitiesif. and
only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and liabilities and the defered tax assets and liabilities
relate 1o Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the sarme taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend efther to selfle cument fax labilifies and assets
on anet basis, or 1o redlise the assets and setftle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax alilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered,

As required by 1AS 14 we have upplizd he exception to
recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and lichilities refated to Pillar Two income faxes.

The Group recognises income lax arising from dividend
distributions at the same time as the kability to pay the
related dividend.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises financicl assets and liabilities when it
becomes o party to the contractual provision of the
relevant financial instriment.

Trade and other receivables

The Group records frade and other receivables initiclly at
Tar value and subsequently al amorhised cost. This
generdlly resulls in recognition af nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectation of losses without regard to
whether or not a speciiic impairment trigger has occured.

Other non-current receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance lease
recelvables due from a joint venture and minority
shareholdings in private companies. The Group accounts
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for trade
and other receivables.

The Groug records minority shareholdings in designated
private companies inifially at fair value, including directly
otinbutable fransaction costs, and subseguently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCI).

On disposal of a minority sharehalding, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is included directly in retained earnings. without
recycling it to the income statement.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for ihe 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved

Bank and other bomrowings

The Group records bank and other borrowings initially at
fair value, which equals the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs, and subsequently at amortised cost. The
Croup accounts for finonce charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, using the effective Inferest rate method.

Trade payables

The Group records trade payabies intially at fair value
and subsequently at amortised cost. This generally results
in recagnition at nominal value,

Other financial assets

Other financial cssets are classified, at initial recognition,
as valued at amortised cost or fair value through profit
and loss [FVTPL). The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset’s cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them. Financial
assets at amortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains and losses being recognised in the profit and loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired. Financial
assets at farr value through profit and loss are typically
held for trading and are caried in the staterment of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit and loss. Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence,
control or joint control are measured at FVYTPL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposils and short-term investrmants with
originad maturities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the Groun
includes bank overdlrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management as a componeant of cash and cash
equivalents.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Non-cperaling intangible assets are intangible assets that
arise ort business combinations and typically include
technology, brands, customer relationships and grower
agreements. The Group acquires operating intangible
assels in the ordinary course of business. typically including
computer software, land use rights and emissions frading
licences.

The Group records infangitle assets other than goodwill at
cost less accumulated amaortisation and impairment
charges.

Amaortisation is charged to the income statement on o
straight-line basis over the estimated useful ives of
intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
The esfimated useful fives are generally deemed fo be no
langer than:

Technology and brands
Cuslomer relationships
Grower agreements
Opercting intangibles

Goodwiil

Goodwill is defined under 'Business acquisitions' on page
19. Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capable of being
recagnised in the acquisition balance sheet, In such
circumstances, goodwill is recognised. which may include,

-upto 15vyears
~up o 10 years
- upto 10vyears
-up to 10 years

but is not necessarily imited o, workforce assets and the
benefits of expected future synergies.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment review.

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its infangible
assets and property, plant and equipment at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
Group estimates the indicated asset’s recoverable
amcunt. For goodwill and intangibles without a finite life.
the Group does this al least annually.

The Group recognises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Group adllecates impairment charges recognised in
respect of CGUs first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill relating to that CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata pasis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assetsis the greater of their
foir value less costs to sell and their values in use. In
assessing value in use. the Group discounts estimated
future cash flows to present value using o pre-tax discaunt
rate reflective of current market assessments of the fime
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows. the Group determines recoverable amount
for the CGU to which the osset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subsequently reverse impairments of
goodwill. For other assets, the Group does reverse an
impairment charge if there has been o change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, but
only to the extent that the new carrying amount does not
exceed the canying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised.

Property, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciation to fhe income statement
on ¢ straight-ine basis over the estimated useful
economic lives of each item sufficient to reduce it toits
estimated residual value. Land is not depreciated.
Eslimated useful economic lives are generally deemed to
be no fonger than:

Freehold buildings up to &4 years
Plont ond equipment, fixtures and fittings

- sugar factones, yeast plants, mills and up to 20 vears

bakeries
other operations up fo 12 years
Vehicles up to 10 years

Sugar cane roofs up to 10 years

Leases

Alease s an agreement whareby the lessor conveys fo
the lessee, inreturn for a payment or a series of payments,
the right to use a specific asset for an agreed period.

Where the Group is a lessee, the following accounting
policy is applied,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

Right-of-use assefs

The Group records right-of-use assets at cost at the
commencement date of the lease, which is the date the
underlying asset is available for use, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
subsequent remeasurement of leasa liabilifies.

Cost includes the amount of lease ligbilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date. less any lecse
incentives received.

The Gioup charges deprecialion fo the income statement
on a straight-ine basis over the sharter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The Group records lease llabilities at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lecse payments
to be made over the lease term, discounted using the
incremental borowing rate at the commencement date
of the iease if the interest rate implicit in the lease s not
readily determinable.

Lease payments include Tixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments
that depend on anindex or a rate, less any lecase
incentives receivable.

Varigble lease payments that do not depend on anindex
of arate are recognised as an expense in the periodin
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
OCCUrs.

The Group subseguently measures lease labiihies al
amortised cost using the etffective interest rate method.
The Group records the accretion and sefflement of
interest through accruals and reduces the carrying
amount of lease liahilities for the capital element of tease
payments made.

The carrying amount of lease liahilities is also remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments due to a
change in the lease term. a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment of
whether o purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term ieases and leases of low-value assels

The Group applies the shart-term lease recognition
exemption toleases that have alease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase oplion. It also applies the low-value asset
recognition exemption to groups of underlying lecses
consicdered uniformly low-value.

The Group expenses lease payments on shorf-term leases
and leases of low-value assels in the income statement as
ncured.

Lessor accounting

When subleasing assets. the Group assesses the sublease

classification with reference 1o the head lease right-of-use
asset, which cansiders, among cther factors, whether the
sublease represents a majority of the remaining life of the
head lease.

The ratio of rental income to head lease rental payments
is used to determine how much of the right-of-use asset
should be derecognised, taking into account whether the
subleaseshead lease are above or below market rate.
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The Group records armounts due from lessees under
finance leases as d receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease, calculaled using the
incrernental borrowing rate at the date of recognition,
The Group recognises any difference between the
derecognised righl-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amounts due from lessees under finance leases in the
income statement.

The Group recognises finance income over the lease
term, reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment in the lease.

The Group recognises operating legse income as earned
on o straight-line basis over the lease ferm.

Inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost and net
reclisable value. Costincludes raw materials, direct labour
and expenses and an appropnate proportion of
production and other overheads, calculated on a first-in
first-out basis,

The Group records retail inventories at the lower of cost
and net reglisable value using the retall method,

colculated on the basis of selling price less approprate
trading margin. All retail inventories are finished goods.

On acquisition of a business, the Group records inventories
at fair value. Subsequently, the Group charges the book
value of the inventories to adjusted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant. is
charged below adjusted operating profit as the
inventories are sold or used.

Investment property

hvestrnent proparties are heldd at cost less provision for
impairment. Impairment is determined by reference to the
fair value of property estimated either by independant
valuers or by the directors. Depreciafion is provided where
the directors consider that the residual value of major
components of the property is less than current book
value.

The following accounting policies relafe exclusively fo the
income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the
Associated British Foods ple (“ABF") segment within the
consolidated Group financial statements of Witlingfon
Investments Limited.,

Share-based payments

The Group recognises the fair value of share awards af
grant date as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity, spread over the period during which
the employecs become unconditionally entitled to the
shares.

The Group adjusts the amount recagnised fo reflect
expected and actual levels of vesting except where the
faiture fo vest is as o result of not meeting a market
condition.

Derivative financial insfrumenis and hedging

The Group primarily uses derivatives to manage economic
exposure fo financial and commodify risks. The principal
instruments used are foreign exchange and commodity
contracts, futures, swaps or options. The Group does not
use derfvglives for speculative purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives ot fair value basced on
market prices orrates, or calculated using discounted
cash flow or option pricing modcels.
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1. Significant Accounting policies continued

The Group recognises changes in the fair value of
derivatives in the income statement unless the derivative is
designated in @ hedging refationship, when recognition of
the change in fair value depends on the nature of the
item being hedged.

The purpose of hedge accounting is fo mitigate the
impact on the Group of changes in forcign exchange or
interast rates and commodity prices.

At the inception of each hedging relationship. the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the
risk management objectives and strategy for undeortaking
the hedge and assesses hedge effectiveness.

During the fife of each hedging relationship, the Group
performs testing fo demonsfrate that the hedge remains
cffective.

For derivatives used as hedges of future cash flows, the
Group recognises the change in fair value through other
comprehensive income in either the cost of hedging
reserve (for the efement of the change in fair value
reiafing fo the currency spread] orin the hedging reserve
{far the remaining change in fair vaiue]. Any ineffective
portion is recognised immediafely in the income
stafermnent.

When fhe future cash flow resulfs in the recognition of a
nen-financial asset or iatirty, then af the ime that asset
or fiability is recognised. fhe Group includes the
associated gains and losses previously recognised in the
hedging reserve in the inificf measurement of that asset or
fiatsitily.

When the future cash flow does not result in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, the Group
includes the associafed gains and losses previously
recogniscd in the hedging reserve in the income
statement in the same period in which the hedged item
atfects profit or loss.

Hedges of the Group's nef investment in forefgn
operations prncipally comprise borrowings in the curency
of tho investrment's net nssels.

For denvative or non-derivative financiol instruments used
as hedges of the Graup's netinvestment in foreign
operations, the Group recognises the change in fair valuc
through other comprehensive income in the net
investment hedging reserve. Any incffeciive portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting when o
hedging instrurment expires oris sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualffies for hedge accounting.

Af that time, the Group retains the cumulative associated
gain or loss recognised in the hedging rescrve unit the
forecast fransaction occurs, Gains or losses on hedging
instruments refating fo an underlying exposure that no
fonger exists are taken to the income statement.

The Group economically hedges foreign currency
exposure on recogmised monetary assels and habifities but
does not normally seek hedge accounting. The Group
records any derivatives held to hedge this exposure ot fair
value thraugh profit and loss.

Research and development
The Group expenses research and development
expenditure as incurred, unless developrment expencdliture

relates to products or processes which are technically and
commercially feasible, in which case it is capitalised. The
Group records copitalised development expendiiure at
costless accumulated amaortisation and impairment
charges.

Current Biclogical Assets
The Groug records current bisiogical assets ot fair value
less costs fo sell.

The basis of valuation for growing cane is estimated
sucrose content valued at estimated sucrose price for the
following season. less the estimated costs for harvesting
and transport.

When harvested, growing cane is fransfered to inventory
af foir value less costs to sell.

Grants

The Group recognises grants anly when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached and that the grants wilf be received.
Grants receivable as compensation for expenses already
incurred are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Hyperinflation

The Argentinian economy was designated
hyperinflationary fram 1 July 2018. The Turkish economy
was designated hyperinflationary from 1 July 2022,

The Group has applied IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationory Economics o the Group's Argenihnian
operations from fhe beginning of the 2019 financial vear
and for its Turkish cperations from the beginning of the
2022 financial veaor. IAS 29 requires that hyperinflationary
adjustments are reflectrr from the start of the reporting
period in which it is applied. For the Group's Argentinian
operations this was 1 September 2018, and for the Group's
Turkish cperations this was 1 Sepltemiber 2021,

The adjustments required by IAS 29 are set out below:

adjustment of histordcal cost non-monetary assets and
liakilities from their date of initial recognition to the
balance sheet date to reflect the changes in
purchasing power of the currency caused by inflation,
arcording to the official indices far Argentina
published by the Federacion Argentina de Consejos
Profesionales de Ciencias Econdmicas (FACPCE) and
for Turkey published by Turkish Stotistical Institute
{'TLIK

cdjustment of the components of the income
statement and cash flow statement for the inflation
index since their generation, with a balancing entry in
the income statement and a reconciling ffem in the
cash flow statement, respectively;

- adjustment of the income statement to reflect the
impact of inflation on holding monctary assetfs and
liabilifies in local currency:;

the financial statements of the Group's Argentinian
and Turkish operations have been translated into
sterling at the closing exchange rate at 16 Seplember
20023 {ARS 433.88:£1; TRL 33.45:£1); and

the cumulative impact caresponding to previous
vears has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the year.

In Argenfina, the FACPCE indox was 2111316 af 31 Augusf
2022 and 2044.2832 ot 31 August 2023, The inflation index
for the vear is therefore 2.244.
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1. Significant Accounting policies continved
in Turkey, the TUIK index was 80.21 at 31 August 2022 and

58.94 at 31 Augusf 2023. The inflation index for the year s
therefore 0.735.

The Venezuelan economy has been designated
nypennfiationary for a number of years, but the impact on
the Group's results remains immaieriol.

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and amendments
were adopted during the year and had ne significant
impact on the Group:

Reference to the Conceptual Framewaork
[Amendments to IFRS 3)

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds belore
Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS 15}

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
[Amendmenis to 1AS 37)

Annual Improverments to IFRS 2018-2020

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpratations and amendments that are not
vel effective. Where already endorsed by the UKEB. these
changes will be adopted on the effective dates noted,
Where not yet endorsed by the UKER, the adoption date s
less cenain:

- IFRS 17 Insurance Conlrochs, Amendments fo IFRS 17,
Initia! Application ot IFRS 17 and IFRS ¢ - Comparative
Information, effective 2024 Tinancial yeor

Disclosure of Accounting policies (Amendments 1o |AS
1 and IFRS Practice Stalement 2), effective 2024
financial year

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to
1AS 8). effective 2024 financial year

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liakilities arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments to tAS 12),
effective 2024 financiol year

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments
to IFRS 18], effective 2025 financial year

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Maodel Rules
{Amendments to I1AS 12), effective 2024 financial year

Classitication of Liaobitifies as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
{(amendments to 1AS 1), effective 2025 financial year

Supplier Finance Arrangements [Amendments fo 1AS 7
and IFRS 7}, effective 2025 finoncial year

Amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeability,
effective 2026 financial year (not vet endorsed by the
UKEB)

2. Accounting estimates and judgements

In applying the accounting policies detailed on pages 18
to 24, the directars have made estimates in o number of
areqs. The actual outcome may differ from those
estimates. Key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, with the potential for malerial
adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are set out below.
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Forecasts and discount rates

The carmying values of a number of items on the balance
sheet are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group's operations and investments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted to arrive at
o net present value.

Assessment for impairment involves comparing the book
value of an asset with its recaverable amount [being the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell).
Value in use is determined with reference o projected
future cash flows discounted at an appropriale rate. Both
the cash flows and the discount rate involve o significant
degree of estimation uncertainty.

Further details are included in note 9 for intangible assets,
note 10 for property, plant and equipment and note 12 for
investment property.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is dependent on the
generalion of sufficient future taxable profits. The Group
recognises deferred tax assets to the extent thatitis
considered probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available in the future, This involves a significant degree of
estimation uncerfainty.

When considering sources of future taxable profit, the
Group firstly considers exisling deferred tax liabilities.
However, the majority of deferred tax assets are
recognised based on future profit forecasts, including the
deferred tax assets in ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdom. the United Stales. Australia, Germany
and Spain,

When relying on profit forecasts, the assessment of
whether to recognise deterred tax assets is bused on the
following yeor's budget and expectations of the future
perfarmance of individual businesses [or groups of
businesses in fhe case of national tax groups). Where
possible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairment assessments, Forecasts for impairment
assessments are cliscounted, but this is not permitted for
recognition of deferred tax assets.

Defered tax assets are reduced when it is no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

The widespread nature of the ABF's aclivities across
multiple jursdictions means that it s net practical to
provide detailed sensitivities nrespect of individual
deferred tax assets.

Further detailk of deterred tax assets are included in note
15.

Post-retrement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
IAS 19 Employee Benefils. The accounting valuations,
assessed using assumptions determined with independent
actuarial advice, resulted in o significant net surplus as af
16 Septemier 2023, principally relating to the UK defined
benefit scheme, which is separately disclosed.

The nel surphys is highly sensitive to the market value of
scheme assets, to discount rates used in assessing
liabilities, to actuarial assumptions {including price
inflation. rates of pension and salary increases, maortality
and other demographic assumptions) and fo the level of
contributions.
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2, Accounting estimates and judgements
continved

Further details are included in note 14, including
associated sensitivifies.

The following other areas of accounling estimates and
judgements relate exclusively to the income, expenditure,
assets and liabilities of the Associated British Foods plc
(“ABF”) segment within the consolidated Group financial
statements of Wiltington Invesiments Limited.

Biological assets

In valuing growing cane, estimating sucrose confent
requires the Group to assess expected cane ond sucrose
yields for the following season considering weather
condifions and harvesting programmes. Estimating
sucrose price requires the Group to assess into which
markets the forthcoming crop will be sofd and assess
domestic and export prices as well as reloted foreign
currency exchange rates. The canving value of growing
cane ond associated sensitivities is disclosed in note 19,

Income tax

The Group is exposed to o range of uncerfain tax
posiions. It provides for open tax matfers, whore it
believes it is probable that payments will be required,
including those for routine fax audits, which are by nature
complex and may take o number of years fo resclve,
Uncertainty is driven by the resolufion of the issue and
estimation process in arriving at the amount. The Group
has recognised potential current corporate fax habilies
tor a numbeor of uncertain tox positions, none of which are
individually matenal. The provision for theso uncerfain fax
pasitions was 2023 - £55m (2022 - £102m). The reduction in
the provision is due to the conclusion of UK tax audits
covenng several businesses and years. The majonty of fhe
remaining provisions relafe to fransfer pricing risks across a
number of jurisdictions in which the Group has operations.
Transfer pricing is o complex area with resoiution of
matters taking many years. Given the underlying nature of
these risks, the timing of when they will resolve is uncertain.

The Group applies IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments to measure uncertain tax positions, The Group
colcriates ench provision using management's best
estimate of the lfability based on inferpretation of tax low
in each jurisdiction and ongoing monitoring of fax cases
and rufings. The Graup belicves it has adeguate provision
for these matters. final conclusion of each matter may
result in an outcome differcnt to any amounts provided,
but the Group has concluded that this is unfikely fo have a
material impact.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

3. Our businesses

ABF has five operafing divisions, as described below, plus Ceniral ABF. These are ABF's operating divisions, based on the
management and internal reporting structure, which combine businesses with common characteristics, primariy in
respect of the type of products offered by each business, but also fhe production processes involved and the manner of
the distribution and safe of goods.

inter-division pricing is determined on an arm’'s length basis. Division rosult is adjusted operafing profit, as shown on the
face of the consofidated income statemeant. Division results include items directly atfributable fo a division as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. ABF is comprised of the following operating divisions:

Grocery

The manufacture of grocery products, inciuding hot beverages, sugar and sweeteners, vegetable oils, balsamic
vinegars, bread ond boked goods, cereals, efhnic foods, and meat producis. which are sold to retal, wholesale and
foodsorvice DUsinesses.

Sugar
The growing and processing of sugar beet and sugar cane for sale to industrial users and to Silver Spoon, which is
included in fhe Grocery operating division.

Agriculture
The manufacture of animal feeds and the provision of other products and services tor the agriculfure secior,

Ingredients
The manufacture of bakers' yeast, bakery ingredients, enzymes, lipids, yeost extracts and cereal specialities.

Retail
Buying and merchandising value clothing and accessories through the Primark and Penncys retail chams.

in addition to ABF, the Group presents the revenue and adjusied operating profit of 'Luxury retail’ and 'Other'. The latter
includes the Group's 'Real Estate', 'Hotels' and 'Private Markets & Other Investments' businesses, none of which are
individually material for separate disclosura. For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit is o key alternative performance measure used in the ABF performance framework as outlined
in the Remuneration Report in the annual report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 to 115, Adjusted operating profit is
strterd hefare amortisation of non-opearating inlangibles fransaction ¢oesls, amortisation of fair value adjustments made
to acguired inventaory, profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and excephonal ifems.

Items defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and associates are also treated as adjusting Hems for the
purposes of adjusted operating profit.

A recaonciliation of this measure s provided on the face of the consolidated income stalement.

T Reverwe e Adjusied apgratng erolt
2023 2022 2023 2072
£m L £m fir
Grocery 4198 3.735 448 399
Ingrediernts 2157 1.827 214 159
Agricufiure 1.840 1.722 41 47
Sugar 2,547 2014 149 162
Retail 9,008 7,697 735 756
Centrol ABF SO 7 N -
ABFTolal 19750 14597 1,513 1,435
Luxury retail 244 224 7 7
Other - A 0/ ] T4
Group Total T ' ' 20028 17258 1,508 1456
B " B Raver.ic
2023 w?
im L

Geographical information
United Kingdom 7.537 4,628
Europe, Middle East & Africa 7.553 5,292
The Amenicas 2,421 2.029
Asia Pacific o ) 2,517 2,309
Group Total T T 20028 17256

24 Wittingten Investments Financial Starenents 2023
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

4. Operating costs

roe £m Lrn

Operating costs

Cosls of sales {including amortisation of intangibles) 15,587 13219 15,725 13,349
Cistribution costs 1.603 1,465 1,623 1,481
Administration expenses 1.220 1.045 1,350 i,13%
Exceptionadl items 109 206 109 206

o T1851% 15935 1BBO7 14175

Operating costs are stated after charging /{crediting):

Ernployee benefits expense 5 3,158 2812 3,222 2876
Amortisaiion of non-operating intangibles 9 38 44 38 44
Amordisalion of operating intangitbles ki 44 24 48 27
Acquired inventery fair volue adjustments 3 5 3 a
Depreciation of owned property, piant & equipment 10 531 521 538 530
Deprecialion of nght-of-use assets and non-cash lease

acjusiments I 273 281 277 286
Imparrment of property. plant & equipment and nghl-af-use

assets - - 5 13}
Impairment of investment property 12 - 14 )
Transaction costs 5 & 5 6
Effect of hypernflationary economies 14 16 14 16
Other operating income {35) {25} (38) 31}
Research and deveiopment expendifure 42 37 42 37
Fair value goins on financial assets and hakilites held for trading (19} {23) (19) [23)
Fair value losses on financial assets and liabilities held for 22 17 23 17
frading

Foraign exchange gains on operating activilies {48) (38} (48) 137}
Foreign exchange 1osses on operating achivities 62 37 62 37

Armortisation of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m] shown as an adjusting item in the income statement,
Includes £3m {2022 - £3m] incurmed by Jjoint ventures, in addition 1o the amounts shown atove,

Auditor's remuneration CaB T Comoidaled Grop

2023 20202 2023 2022

£m 1 £m £

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of the
audit
Group audit of these financial statements - - 0.2 0.2
Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 12 22 104 98
Total audit remuneration 10.2 9.2 10,8 100
Fees payable to the Company's duditor and its associates in respect of non-
oudil related services
Audit-reloted assurance senices 0.4 04 0.4 0.4
Al olher services 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5
Total non-audit relate remuneration 1.0 (135 1.0 0.7
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4. Operating costs continued
Exceplional items

2023

The income statement this vear included o non-cash exceplional impairment charge of £109m. In tho ABF Grocary
division, the Don business has been adversely affected by inflationary pressures, @ surplus supply of fresh pork in the
market, labour constraints and equipment reliabifity causing production shorffalls and additional transportation costs
folfowing the unforesecn hquidation of its distribution partner. As o resulf, the Group has recognised impairment write-
downs of £39m aguaoinst proporty. plant and cquipment, £1m agoinst right-of-use assets and £1m against infangible
assets.

In the ABF Sugar division, north China recognised a £15m impairment write down against property, plont and
cquipment. This business was classified os held for sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offerin
the second half of the year. Due to the scvere flooding in Mozambigue, the related damage to the sugar crop fields
and the inability to plant for the foreseeoble future, iftovo Mozambique recognised a £25m impoirment write-down
against property, plunt and equipment, £7m against curent biclogical assets, provided £2m for personnel costs and
wrote down inventory by £1m.

In the ABF Retail division, the Group recognised £13m of exceplional impairment charges reiating to the German store
portfolio. This primarily reiated to stores impaired in the previous year ofter additional right-of-use assets were recognised
due to rent indexation adjustments, The Group also recognised a £4m charge including a £3m exceptional impairment
for the write-down of property, plant and equipment for the right-sizing of four further ABF German stores and £im to
write down o freehold store.

2022

The income staferment included an exceplional mparment charge of £206m comprsing non-cash wrntcdowns of £72m
against proporty, plant and cquipment and a write-down of £134m of righf-of-use assets relating fo the capitalisation of
store feases for Primark. Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total fax charge for this
financial yeor was the de-recognition of the ABF deferred fax assels relating to Germany.
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5. Employees and directors

ABE L L L o Lensaldotes Group
2023 2022 2023 20622
£m £ £m £
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 42,071 41,526 43,407 43,084
Europe & Africa 73417 73,155 73,411 73155
The Americcs 6,769 5102 6,769 4,102
Asic Pacific o 11,236 11,490 11,294 11,552
133,487 132,273 134,881 133,895
ABF Comsodated Grown
2023 7077 2023 2022
£m i £m im
Employee benefits expense
wages and salaries 2,657 2,350 2,714 2,404
Socidl secunty contnbuticns 355 31 340 314
Contributions 1o defined confribution schemes 95 87 7 89
Charge for delfined benefil schemes 33 45 33 44
Ecpity-settied share-based payment schemes 18 19 18 19
3.158 2812 3,222 2876
2023 2022
£000 £
Directors’ remuneration
Aggregate directors’ emoluments 4,374 46095

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £4,100,000 (2022: £2,286.000). He is a member of a Group
pension scheme and his annual accrued pension at the period end was £754,991 {2022: £719.918).

Nurmber of drectors

2023 2022

Retirement benefits are accuing to the following numtzer of directors under:
Defined benefit schemes 4 4

6. Interest and other financial and expense

. " Consolidated Graop
2023 2022 2023 5072
£m £ £m £
Finance income
Cosh and cash eguivalents 45 [ 58 24
Fair value gains on investments - - 57 18
Dividends receivable o - o T2
e . . L L 44
Finunce expense
Bank loans and overdrafts {23) 120} (23) [20)
All other borrowings (1) {8} {11) 8}
Far value losses on investments - - (2) (4)
Leqse liabilities {1 51} (92) [82)
Ofher payables ) 2 @ )
V o (28 (1) a1y
Other financial (expense)"/ii'hiégn;é
Interest income on employee benefit scheme assels 14 185 84 185 84
Interest charge on employee benefit scheme liabifities 4 (123) (74) (123) {74)
Interest charge on irecoverable surplus 14 2) ! {2} )
Net financial income in respect of employee benefit schemes 60 9 40 B
Net foreign exchange ({losses)/gains on financing activities (20 4 (34) 31
Total other fingncicl income 40 326 4o
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7. Income tax expense

ABF “Carsclioated Group
2023 2572 2C23 2072
£m £ £m m
Current tax expense
UK - corperation tax at 21 8% (2022 - 19%) 26 44 40 55
Qverseas — corporation tax 249 244 249 244
UK - {oven)funder provided in prior periods (14) {12} {15} 1y
Owersens — under/ [over) provided in prior penods ) o I 18 |
T o - T o 277 292 287
Deferred tax expense
UK defermed fox 18 51 22
Overseas delenad tax 72 28 72
Uk - over provided In prior penods {3) (23) 13]
Qversens - over provided in prior periods (8) (63} ts]]
o 7% N 53
Total income tax expense inincome statement ) 36 285 370
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 1,340 1.076 1,384 1,153
Less share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associctes (124 s 124y 109
Profit befare taxatfion excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associates L2is 967 1260 1044
Mominal tax charge at UK corporation lax rate of 21 .8% (2022 19%) 265 184 274 198
Effect of higher and lower fax rates on overseas earmings (16) 4 (16) 4
Effect of changes in fax rates on the income statemant 5 ? 5 3
Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes 64 &3 64 50
Diposal of assels coveraed by tax exemplions or unrecognised capita losses (2) 4} {2) &
Deferred tax nol recognised 39 120 40 119
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (85) {23} (83) (23}
Other tax adjustments _ - 1 3
) 272 358 285 370
Income tax recagnised directly in equity
Defered tax associaled with defined benelit schemes 4) 198 {4) 19¢
Defered tax associated with share-based payments t)] I 4} 1
Deferred tax assaciated with moverments in cosh flow hedging postion {40) 28 (40) 28
Defered tax associated with movement in foreign exchange 5 - 5
Current lax associated with moverment in foreign exchange (&) - (6) -
Defered tax associcied with movements in other investments R ]
Lo TTTm e (46) 228 (46) 229

The UK corparation taxrate of 19% increased to 25% from 1 April 2023. The legislation fo effeci these changes was
enacted before the balaonce sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 2019 the European Commission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's controlled
foreign company legislation. The Comrmission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Aid rules in certain
circumstances. The Group has arangements that may be impacted by this decision as might other UK-based
multinational groups that had financing arangements in ling with the UK's legislation in force af the time. The UK
Government, the Group and @ number of other UK companies appealed against this decision to the General Court of
the European Union {'GCEU'}. On 8 June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commission's criginal decision. As a
result of this, in August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and varicus other UK companies appealed GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the European Union. We have calculated our maximum potential liability to be £26m {2022 -
£26my}, however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on our curent
assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revenue & Customs {"HMRC'}, we made
payments to HMRC in 2021, Our assessment remains that no provision is required in respect of this amount, We wil
continue to consider the impact of the Commission’s decision on the Group and the potential requirement to record a
provision,

In the second half of last year a deterred tax asset arose mainly inrelation o the charge taken for the impairment of
property. plant and equipment and store leases in Primark Germany. A significant proportion of this asset was deemed
not to be recoverable and was writlten off as an exceptional Yax charge. Since then, further work has been undertaken
to assess the amount of the deferred tax asset that is expected to be recoverable. This work determined that the
defened tax asset at last year end was understated in error.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

7. Income tax expense continued

The directors believe thal ihis understatement of the deferred tax asset was not material 1o the prior period financial
statements. Accordingly, an exceptional tax credit of £58m has been recognised in this year,

We recognise the importance of complying fully with all applicable tax laws as well as paying and collecting the right
amaount of tax in every country in which the Group operaies. Cur tax strategy, approved by the Board, is based on
seven tax principles that are embeddead in the financial and non financial processes and confrols of the Group. This tax
strategy s available in the Policies section of the Group's website.

Deterred taxation balances are analysed in note 15.

8. Dividends

2023
pence pear BN par 2023 2072
share e} £m m
First interim 78.50 71.25 48 62
Second interim 69.50 47.00 40 42
' 14800 12025 128 104
9. Intangible assets
T _ o . Cansoldated Grougs
hon o Dpzeraling
= =} Coreenr
Gocda | TeInnaogy Francs  relahanships agreements Crhier Trber T
Zm £ im £ £ Pagl im im
Cost
AN18 September 2021 1.236 214 429 271 109 5 406 2.870
Acquisiicns  exlemally purchased - - - - - - 141 141
Arquired through business combinations 85 49 33 ] - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - - 149) {4%)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - [14) (16}
Effect of hyperinflationary economies ? - - - - 9
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 84 pr 26 13 1 33 179
Al17 Seplember 2022 Tara "285 e w0 T Ts” 7150 3307
Acquisitions - extemally purchased - - 4 - - 146 150
Acquired through business combinations 3% 2 ? 21 3 74
Other disposals - - (15) - 15} [4%]) 189}
Trarsfer from assets clossified as held for sale - - - - - - 15 15
Effect of hyperinflolionary econormies 2 - 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (77) {15) {15} (1 [16) - 125) 1147}
Al 14 September 2023 o 1,376 272 485 285 94 - 785  3,2%8
Amortisation and impairment
At 18 September 2021 112 195 372 200 109 5 286 1,279
Amaortisalion for the year - 7 22 15 - - 27 71
Other clisposals - - - - - (2} 12}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - {4} [4)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 10 % 21 11 1 - 2 84
AL17 Seplember 2022 122 221 415 224 110 5 5% 14
Amortisation for the year - g 15 14 43 86
Other disposals - (15} - {5) 120y
Transfer from assets classified as hetd for sale - - - - 4 4
Impairment - - - - - - 1 1
Effect of movements in forsign exchange (12) 113) (1} 8} {164} - 181)
Al 16 September 2023 T e 7 419 217 e 148
Nei book value T R
All7 Seplember 2022 1292 73 44 - - 386 1879
Al16 Seplember 2023 1,286 67 68 - - 424 1,880

1. Al Goodwill and Nan-operating Intangible assets are ASF assets. Of *he “otal Operating In"angible assets of £224m (2022: £3846m). £414m (2022:

£375) ave ABF assets.

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no intangible assets (2022 - £12m} classified as assets held for sale
{see note 17]. Amortisation of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m) shown as an adjusting item in the income
statement includes £3m (2022 — £3m) incurred by joint ventures, in addition to the amounts shown above.
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for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

9. Intangible assets continved

Impairment

As at 14 September 2023, the consolidated balance sheet included goodwill of £1,2é66m (2022 - £1,292m). Goodwill is
dlocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill, as follows:

——;-r-'-r-'ml\, Eportng

segrrent wlivn AR Dizzount 2023 Ry
CGu o Groap of CGlUs Lusiness segmen’ e Em EXatl
Acetum Grocery 13.5% 1 23
ACH Grocery 13.4% 193 208
AR Maurn ngredients 12.8% 247 289
Twirings Ovaltine Grocery 13.6% 119 119
llove Sugar 23.7% 89 105
AB World Foods Grocery 12.5% 78 79
Other {not individually significant} L Various various 429 399

1,266 1.292

A CGU, or group of CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated must be assessed for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year.

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed by reference to its value in use reflecting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the most recent budget and reflects management’s
expectations of sales growth, operating costs and margin, based on past experience and external sources of
information. Long-term growth rates for periods not covered by the annual budget reflect the products, industries and
countries in which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs, operate.

mManagement expects to achieve growth over the next three io five years in excess of the long-term growth rates for the
applicable country or region. In these circumstances, budgeted cash flows are extended. generally to between three
and five years, using specific growth assurnptions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key assumptions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate to discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes in volumes, selling prices ond direct costs,

The cash flow projections have been discounted using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital for each business,
adjusted for country, industry and market risk. Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rates used were bebween 10.2% and 23.7% (2022 - between 2.8% and
23.4%).

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, applied in the value in use calculations for goodwill
allocated to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant to the total camying amount of goodwill. were in a
range between 0% and 6 0%, consistent with the inflation factors included in the discount rates applied (2022- batween
0% and 6.7%).

Changes in volumes. seling prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changesin the
market.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on management's estimales and judgements, parficularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected long-term growth rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headroom under the annualimpairment review.

In light of the supply side inflationary pressures combined with the cost of living pressures faced by our UK Grocery
business, management performead a detailed impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded that no
impairment was required. Key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include annualisation of price
increases, completion of a number of margin impraovement initiatives, implementation of planned strategic initiatives
and the completion of ongoing new product development. Headroom was £59m on o CGU canmying value of £137m
(2022 - headroom aof £2ém on o CGU carying value at £147m). The discount rate used was 12.2% and would have to
incredse to maore than 15.7% before value in use fell below the CGU camying volue. The long-ferm growth rate applied
into perpetuity was 2.8%, based on forecast industry growth of 2.5% for breakfast cereais and 3.3% for biscuits.
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

- "Véim u’f'ycl' e ”ﬁxrurc.\«
baed s fithngs constraction rooly Toral
£ £ £m Irn L
Cost
At 18 September 2021 2,828 4,018 4,080 44 92 11.459
Acquisitions - exiemally purchased 40 78 204 421 1 754
Acquired through business combinations 1 4 1 - 4
Other disposals (14} 13} (20} - 14] 41}
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 26 1293} -
Transfer to assets classfied as held for sale (32} 153} 12] - - 187)
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange 28 223 19 37 [ 483
At 17 September 2022 2954 4,431 4,478 406 105 12,574
Acauisitions — externally purchased 21 86 434 454 16 .on
Acquired through business combinations - 4 - - - 4
Businesses dispossed of {57} {11} {4 - - 47}
Other dispasals {48} {57} %) - (1 113)
Transfers from assets under construction 35 191 89 (315) - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
Effect of movements in hyperinflation - 78 19 - - 97
Fffect of movements in foreign exchange %9) [257) {84) (34) (19} 14%93)
At 16 Sepfember 2023 2,850 4,540 4,925 711 101 13,127
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 792 2834 2.374 51 6,053
Depreciation for the year 48 176 296 10 530
Impairment {6} - 72 - - 66
Impairment on sale and closure of business 11 19 - - - 30
Other disposals [} 1%} - 14} 124}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale 17 [60] {2 - - {7%]
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 35 140 73 3 271
Al 17 September 2022 862 3129 2,794 - AN A R47
Depreciation for the year 52 184 7293 - ? 538
Impaiment 27 hits} 3 - 2 83
Businesses dispossed of ( (8} (3) - - 12)
Other disposals {34} {47] 2] - 11 21}
Transfer from assets classified as held forsale 20 75 2 - - 7
Effect of movernents in hyperinfiction - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37) {158) {50) 110} [255)
Al 16 September 2023 887 3,295 3.049 - 50 7293
Net book valve
Al 17 September 2022 2092 1,302 1,682 &6 45 5727
Al 16 Seplember 2023 1,961 1,245 1.876 1 41 5834
2023 2002
£m £
Capital expenditure commitments - confracted but not provided for 433 364

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, no property, plant and equipment (2022 - £18m of which £18m is freehold
land and buildings} is classified as assels held for sale (see nole 17).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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10. Property, plant and equipment continved

T AB _
Fictures ond Sugar core
firnn s raofs Torler
£m i Ari,
Cosf
Al 18 Seplember 2021 2707 4.008 4,019 440 o2 11,266
Acquisifions —externally purchased 32 76 203 427 11 743
Acquired through business combinahons i 4 I - - o]
Other disposalk {14} {3 117} {4) 138)
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 Q6 {293) - -
Transfer fo assets clussified as held for sale {32} {53) {2) - - 187)
Eftec! of movements in foreign exchonge & 23 e 6 483
AH17 Seplernber2022 2825 4419 4,419 405 105 12.373
Acquisitions —extermnaly purchased 20 86 43} 452 16 1.005
Acquired through business combinations - 4 - - - 4
Other disposals {34) (57) {3) 1) {95)
Transfers from assets under construction 35 191 87 {313) - -
Transfer from assefs classifted os held for sole 37 75 2 - - Ia
Effect of movements in hyperinfiation - 78 2 - - o7
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {9%] [257) {84) {34) {19] {493)
At 16 September 2023 2,784 4,539 4,871 710 101 13,005
Depreciaticn and impoirment
Al 18 Sepiember 2027 759 2827 2,343 ot 5,980
Depreciation for the year 47 174 290 - 10 521
impcirment - - 72 - - 7z
Impairment on sale and closure of business IRl 19 - - . 30
Other clisposals {1 - {17} {4} 22)
Transfer {to} firom assets classified as held for sole {17} {60) {2 - - {79)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 35 160 A4 -3 2
Al 17 September 2022 - ¥ S /s B - &0 6,774
Depraciotion for the year 52 183 287 - Q 531!
impairment 22 56 3 - 2 83
Other disposals {22) {46} {3] - {1} {72)
Transfer from assels clossified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
tffect of movements in hypernfiation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37} {158) {50} - {10} {255)
Al 16 Seplember 2023 o o 869 3294 3016 - &0 72397
Net book value
Al 17 September 2022 1,991 1,299 1.659 G605 45 5,599
Al 16 Seplember 2023 1,915 1,245 1,855 710 41 5766

Impairment

The methodology used to assess property, plant and equipment for impairment is the same as thatl described for
imparrment assessments of goodwili, See note 9 for further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal is
higher than value in use, this methodology has been used to determineg the recoverable amount. This method uses
inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available In the circumsiances for valuing the CGU, and
therefore falls inte the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.

in Grocery, the Australian Don business has been adversely affected by inflationary pressures, o surplus supply of fresh
pork in the market, labour constraints and equipment reliability causing production shortfalls and additienal
transportation costs following the unforeseen liquidation of its distribution partner. Management therefore performed a
detailed impairment review and concluded that animpairment of A$72m [£39m) should be recognised, A$62m (£34m)
against plant and equipment and A$10m {£5m) against buildings. The impairment model assumed long-term growth
rates beyond the forecast period of 2.0% (2022 - 2.0%) and a discount rate of 12.6% (2022 - 11.9%).

The sugar business In north China recognised a £15m write down against praperty, plant and equiprnent. This business
was classified as held tor sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of the
yedar.

Due to severe flooding in Mozambique, the related damage to the sugar crop fields and the inability to plant for the
foreseeable future, llovo MozambiGque recognised a £25m write-down against property, plant and eguipment. Primark
recognised a £3m write down against fixtures and fittings for the right-sizing of four German stores and £1m to write down
a freehold store.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
tor the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

11. Leases

Most of the Group's right-of-use assets are assaciated with ABF's leased property partfolio in its Retfail segment.

Right-of-use assets

. Consalidated Groap

[U‘H‘S“(‘;;‘l-'i- ’ Flant and Fretures cnd " ratal
baalchngs rack rery Frgs m
£m £ i

Cost
Al 18 Sepfember 2021 3294 63 ? 3.35%
Additions 141 10 171
Lease incentives (44] - - (44}
Acquired through business combinations 8 8
Cther disposals {1 (1) 1} 13}
Cther movements 12 2 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 108 2 - 110
A1 17 September 2022 e 3.536 76 M YK
Addlitions 193 17 - 210
Lease incentives (53) - - (53}
Acguired through business combinations 1 - - 1
Other disposals 2 {4) - 6}
Other movements 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge 72 () - 78)
At 14 September 2023 3,683 88 1 3772
Depreciation and impairment
A1 18 September 2021 652 32 1 585
Depreciation for the year 268 18 - 286
Impairment 134 - 134
Other disposcis {1) (1 {1 [3}
Effect of movements i foreign exchange 33 1 - 34
A7 Sepfember 2022 ) ) T T 50 - 36
Depreciation for the year 261 14 - 277
Impcirment 13 1 - 14
Other disposals {1} (4] - {5
Fffect of movemants in foreign exchange 23} (4) - 127)
At 16 September 2023 1,336 59 - - 1395
Netbook value
A 17 September 2022 2.450 24 1 2,477
At 14 September 2023 2,347 29 1 2,377

Wwittington Investments Financial Statements 2023 35



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases conlinved

Right-of-use assels continued

£
Cost
Al 18 September 202! 3261 &3 2 3.326
Addifions 167 10 71
Lecse incaentives f44) - 146}
Acqguired through busmess combinations 8 - 8
Other dispasals ) 1} 1} 13}
Other movemenls 12 z - 14
Effect of movements in forgign cxchange 07 Z Rl
AL17 Seplember 2022 3,502 76 ! 3,579
Addlifions 183 17 - 200
Lease incentives {53} - - {53}
Acquired through business combinafions ! - ]
Cther disposals 2} {4) - {5}
Other movements &0 5 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 72} e - 18
Al 16 September 2023 34639 88 i 3728
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 Soptember 2021 G44 32 ! 677
Depreciation for tho yoar 263 18 - 281
Impainrment 134 - - 134
Other disposals 1 {1] ) {3)
Effcct of movements in foreign exchange 33 i 34
A1 17 Septomber 2022 1073 50 ) 23
Depraciation for the year 257 Ié - 273
Impairment 13 I - 14
Other disposals {1} {4) - {5)
Fffect of movements in foreign exchange {23] {4) - {27)
At 16 September023 1,319 59 - 1,378
Nef book value
Al 17 September 2022 N 2,429 26 ! 2.456
At 14 Seplember 2023 2320 29 i 2,350

Impairment

The methodology used to assass right-of-use assefs for impairment s the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note @ for further details.

In the year there was a £14m {2022 - £134m) impairment of right-of-use assets related te Primark and the Don business

{included within exceplional iterns).
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11. Leases continued
Lease liability

ancd aird Pl ana Total
bu e gs mrachinesy £
im in
Cost
At 18 September 2021 3,289 34 - 3,323
Additions 161 7 - 170
Intersst experse relating to lease liabilities 21 1 - a2
Repaymeant of lease liabilities (3508 118) {408)
Acquisition of businesses }3) . 8
Other movemenis 14 2 - 16
Fffect of movements in foreign exchange 97 1 - 28
At 17 September 2022 3,260 9 - 3,289
Adclitions 191 18 - 209
Interest expense relating to lease liabilities 20 2 - 92
Repayment of lease liabilifies [378) (18) - {396)
Other movements 30 5 - 85
Othar disposals (5) - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (80] {3 - s3]
Al 16 Seplember 2023 3178 33 - 321
- T T __ T Consolida‘es Srovo
2023 2027
£m £
Current 359 334
Non-curent 2,552 2,955
- P—_ . e wu s e . e— T T —— e .. 3'21 ] —_—— 3289 .
Lease liabilities comprise £3,190m {2022 — £3,275m) capital payable and £21m (2022 - £14m) interest payable. The
interest payable is alt current and disclosed within frade and other payables. Repayments comprise £312m (2022 -
£325m) capital and £84m (2022 - £83m} interest.
Tt
£t
Cost
At 18 Seplember 2021 3,262 34 3294
Addifions 161 9 - 170
Interest expense relotng to leose liabilties 80 ! 81
Repayment of iease labififies {385) {18) - 1403}
Acquisiton of businesses & - - &
Qther movements 14 2 - [}
Effect of movementis in forcign exchange 74 ! - 28
At 17 September 2022 3,237 2% - 3,266
Addlitions 180 18 - 198
Interest expense refofing to lease fiabitities g9 2 - 21
Repayment of lease liabiiities {373 {18) - {391}
Other movemenis 80 5 - 85
Other disposals {5) - - {5}
Effect of movements in foreign exchonge {60) (3) - 63
At 16 Sepfember 2023 3,148 33 - 3,181
"""" e
2023 2077
£m im
Curent 356 330
Non-current ) e 2,825 2,936
3,181 3,766
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11. Leases continued
Other information relating to leases
The Group had the following expensa relating to short-term leases and low-value leases:

Y S Corsal doied Glavp

2023 2077 2023 €22

£m Lo £m Fii

Land and buildings 2 2 -
Plart and machinery 1 2 1 2
Fixtures and fitlings L - ! - 1
3 3 3 3

The Group expensed £1m (2022 - £1m} of variable lease payments that do net form part of the lease liability, Cash
outflows of £2m (2022 — £4m) that do not torm part of the lease liability are expecied fo be mades in the next 12 months,

Rental receipts of £3m (2022 - £4m) were recognised relating to operating leases. The total of future minimum rental
receipts expected to be received is £43m (2022 - £36m). £10m (2022 - £11m) is due 1o be received in respect of sub-
leasing right-of-use assets.

12. Investment property

| Comsaidatea

[EXe by
i
Al 18Septermber2021 o e 1T
Additions ' &3
Dispasals [25)
Impairment losses o (6)
AL 17 Septermnber 2022 - 246
Addtions a5
Disposals [3)
Imparment losses (14}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 - T T
below cost as determined by an independent valuer. The impairments reflect prevaiing market conditions.
13. Investments in joint ventures and associates
T ., Conoldoled Graun
ASSOC.ares Jonl v iores Assocatss
£m i £m
Al 18 September 2021 278 &0 278 &7
Acquisitions 4 - & -
Proafit for the perdod 20 19 20 19
Dividends received {88} {5 188] 18}
Effect of movements In foreign exchange o 17 o v
A7 Seplember 2022 301 85 303 89
ACQuIsHONS 9 - % -
Profit for the period 106 8 104 18
Dividends received 102) {3} [102) 7}
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange e {1) {7) (1) (7)
At 16 Seplember 2023 303 91 305 93

Details of joint ventures and associates are listed in note 32.
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13. Investments in joint ventures and associates continved

Included in the consolidoted financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets,
liabilities and profit of joint ventures and associates:

AR L Consoidaled Graup
L - Asson fley Joil voniures ASSOCIIey
2027 2023 2077 2023 77 2023 03z
Lm £m L. £m M £m im

Non-curent assets 202 47 Ll 222 202 47 43
Current assets 641 500 427 555 543 505 432
Current liabilities {414) {475) {454) 1386) (426) (475} (456) 1389}
Non-current liabilities (67) {87) (3 {3) (67) (87) 4) {3)
Goodwill 25 20 ! h 25 20 1 1
Non-controling interest 4) - - - (4) - -~ -
Net assets 303 301 91 85 305 303 93 87
Revenue 2,539 2,165 1,605 1.313 2,540 2,165 1,614 1.343
Profit for the perod 106 90 18 % 106 90 18 19

14. Employee entitliements

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK and
averseds.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to a variely of actuarial risks including demographic assumptions such
as mortality and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation risk and market {invastment} risk. The Group is not
exposed to any unusual, entity-specific or scheme-specific risks. All schemes comply with local legisialive requirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme'). which is
a funded final salary scheme that is closed to new members. Defined contribution arrangements are in place for other
employees. The UK defined benefit scherme represents 90% (2022 - $0%) of the Group's defined benefit scheme assets
and B5% (2022 - 86%) of defined benefit scheme liabilities, The Scheme is governed by a trustee board which is
independent of the Group and which agrees a schedule of confributions with the Company each time a formal funding
valuation is perfermed.

The most recent triennial funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 5 Apnl 2023, using the curent unit
method, and revealed a surplus of £1,013m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,648m, representing 138% of
members' accrued benefits affer allowing for expectad future salary increases.

The Scheme’s assets are managed using a risk-controlled investment strategy. which includes a liability-driven
invesiment policy that seeks to match, where appropriate, the profile of the liakilities, This includes the use of derivative
instrurnents to hedge inflation, interest and foreign exchange risks. The Scheme utilises both market and sclvency triggers
to develop the level of hedges in place, To date, the Scheme is fully hedged for 75% of inflation sensitivity and 76% of
interest rate risk. It is intended to hedge 80% of total exposure.

The Scheme s forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct investments in the equity of ABF, although it is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some equity funds.

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group alse operates defined benefif retirement schemes in a number of overseas businesses, which are primanly
funded final salary schemes, as well as a smail number of unfunded post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are
accounted forin the some way as defined benefit retirement schemes.

Defined confribution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contribution schames for which the charge was £49m in the UK and £48m
overseqs, totalling £97m (2022 — UK £44m. overseas £45m, totaling £89m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the year end were:

2023 2023 2022 5057

UK Overseas UK Jvenecs

% % % %

Discount rate 55 1-15.8 4.4 09135
Inflaition 27-34 0-17.4 2.6-3.4 C-55.0
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7-43 0-150.0 3.7-4.3 0-40.0
Rate of ncrease for pensions in payment 1.9-31 0-49.0 1632 0-40.0
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment [where provided) 2.5-2.8 0-3.9 2.5-2.8 023

Discount raites are determined by reference to markel vields at the balance sheet date on high-gquality corporate bonds
consistent with the estimated term of the obligations. This has been done in conjunction with independent actuaries in
eqch jurisdiction.
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14. Employee entilements confinued

The UK infigtion assumption includes assumptions on baoth the Retail Price Index and Consumer Price Index measures of
inflation on the basis that the gap between the two measures is expected to remain stable in the long term.

The maortality assumptions used to value the UK defined benefit schemes in 2023 are derived from the 53 moriclity tables
with impraovements in line with the 2022 projection model prepared by the Continuous Mortality Investigation of the UK
actuaral profession {2022 - 53 mortality tables with improvements in line with the 2020 projection model), with a O-year
rafing moverment for males and females {2022 - O-year rating movement for males and femaies), both with a long-tem
trend of 1.75% {2022 - 1.5%)}. These mortality assumptions take account of experience to date, and assumptions for
further improvemenis in life expectancy of scheme members. Examples of the resulting life expectancies in the UK
defined benefit schemes are as follows:

w2
e expechancy o age 8 [ oy ! Male Female dells Femals
rember aged 65 in 2023 [2022) 21.8 24.2 221 24.3
Mermber aged 65 in 2043 {2042) 237 262 237 26.1

An allowance hos been made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experience. Other dermographic
assumplions for the UK defined benafit schemes are set having regard to the Iatest frends in scheme experience and
other relevant data.

The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary os part of the periodic funding valuation of the schemes.

For the averseas schemes, regionally appropriate assumptions for martality, financial and demographic factors have
been used.

A sensifivity analysis on the principal assumgtions used to measure UK defined benefit scheme liablifies af 16 September
2023 is:

Chongs o assumahos T Ir’-\pocl on scheme abiles
Discount rate decrease/increase by 0.1% Increase/decrecse by 1.2%
Inflation ncrease/decrecse by 0.1% increcse by 0.6%/decrease by 0.5%
Raote of real increcse in salaries increase/decrease by 0.1% increase/decrecse by 0.9%
Rale of mortality members assumed 1o be one increase/decrease by 2.9%

year younger/older

A sensitivity o the rate af Incredse In pensions In payment and pensions N determent s represented by the intiation
sensilivity, as all pensions increases and deferred revatuations are linked to inflation.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumptions
occuring at the end of the period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the
specific assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used 1o calculate scheme liobilities recognised in the baiance sheet has been applied. The method and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis have not changed since the prior year.
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14. Employee entittlements continued

Balance sheet

Consoldated Grotp

2023 i
[1].4 Overseas Total UK Oversecs
£m £m £m £m £n1 £

Equities 1.020 172 1.192 1,135 188 1.323
Government bonds 455 8y 544 308 92 400
Corperate and other bonds 619 55 74 767 47 814
Properly 34 36 350 398 37 435
Cashondolherassets S 1,145 57 1,202 1.126 53 1 ,j]?ﬂ
Scheme assets 3,553 409 3962 3734 417 47151
Schemelcbilties (2,182) {373) (2.555) [2.397) {405) {2.802)
Aggregate net surplus 1,371 35 1,407 1.337 12 17349
Imecoverable surplus” - {34) (38) (42} [472)
Net pension asset/{lichility) T T T I - 1,371 1,337 {30) 1307
Anclysed as
Schermes in surplus 1,397 49 1,444 1,366 27 1.393
schemes in deficit (26) (49} (75) {29 (57) [86)

S 1,371 - 13717 1337 (30) 1.307
Unfunded kability included in the present value of scheme
liabilities above (26) {32) (58) 29) 152) {B1)
© The surpluses in the plars are anly recoverable to “ne exen’ tha the Group can borefis from cither refuads ‘ormally cgresd ar from future

cornrrbuhon reduciions.

UK Scheme

Scheme assets include £64m (2022 - £50m) of derivative instruments, £409m (2022 - £447m) of corporate debt
instruments and £1.119m (2022 - £861m) of government debt.

Corporale and other bonds assels of £619m (2022 - £767m) include £235m (2022 — £248m) of assets whose valuation s
not derived from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equity assets, government bonds, and corporate and
other bands is derived from quoted market prices. The camying value of UK property assets is based on a 30 June market
valuation, adjusted for purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuahon and the balonce sheet date.
Cash and other assets Incledes £888m (2022 — £820m) of assets whose valuation is not derived from quaoted market
prices.

For finoncial reporting in the Group's financial statements, liahilities are assessed by actuaries using the projected unit
method.

The accounting value is different from the result obiained using the funding basis. mainly due to different assumphons
used to project scheme liabilitias.

The defined benefit scherne liabilities comprise 18% (2022 - 24%) in respect of active participants. 21% (2022 - 20%) for
defered participants and 61% (2022 - 56%) for pensioners.

The weighled average duration of the defined benefit scheme liabilities at the end of the yearis 12 years for both UK
and overseas schemes {2022 - 15 years for both UK and cverseas schemaes).

The Group recagnises the accounting surplus as it has the ability 1o use the surplus to meet employer contributions to the
UK Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution sections, This has been agreed with the
independent Trustee Board for the new financial year. See the Cash flow section below for further detalls.

Income statement
The charge to the income statement for employee benefit schemes comprises:

Corsoligaled Group

2023 2022
£m £
Charged o operating profit:
Defined benefit schemes
Cunent service cost {31} {46)
Poist service cost {2} -
Defined confribution schemes {97} {89)
Total operating cost e (130)  [135)
Reported in other financial (ékbénse}!in-éc-ni:me: -
Netinterest income on the net pension assel 62 10
Interest charge onirecoverable surplus o ey
Netimpacl on profit before fax ~ (70) {126}
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14. Employee entitlements ¢continued

Cash flow

Group cash flow inrespect of employeea benefits schemes comprises contributions paid to funded schemes of £36m
(2022 - £36m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £5m {2022 - £2m). Contributions to funded defined
benefit schemes are subject to pericdic review. Contributions to defined contribution schemes amounted to £97m (2022
- £89m].

Total contributions fo funded schemes and benefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2024 are
currently expected to be approximately £3m in the UK and £10m overseas, lotalling £13m (2022 - UK £29m, overseas
£10m, totalling £39m).

As part of the triennial funding valuation of the UK Scheme as at 5 April 2023, which was findlised with the independent
trustee board in September 2023, the Company has agreed an abatement of all UK employer contributions to the UK
Scheme, covering both the definad benefit and defined contrbution sections from the start of the new financial year.
The employer contribulions will instead be met from the surplus in the UK Scheme. This is subject to  solvency check,
assessed annuclly by the Scheme Actuary. This is expected to result in aproximately £70m cash flow benefit for the
Grour in the new inancial yaar.

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net pension asset recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Consodatea Sroun

2023 2022
£m im
Return on scheme assets excluding amounts included in net interest in the income staternent (238) [582)
Actuarial gains ansing from changes in fimancial assumptions 265 1.444
Actuaricd goins arsing from changes in demographic assumphions 18 11
Expensnce losses on scheme linbiities (57} 138
Change in unrecognised surplus [ (10)
Remeasurernents of the nat pension [Iiab\'\ify)/ossé't ) (6} 825
Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities
T - Consolidoted Gious
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
assets fablities [[SERIEN net nat
£m i £m bl £m im
At beginning of year 4,151 4,728 (2,802) (4,219} 1,349 509
Curren! service cost - - {31} {46) (31) {44)
Ermployee conmbutions 7 a8 N 8) - -
Emplover contributions 36 34 - - 36 36
Benefit payments (161) {154) 166 156 5 2
Past service cost - 2) - (2)
INMerest ncome/(expense) 185 84 (123} {74) 42 10
Loss on scheme assels less interest income (238) {582} - - (238) (582)
Actuarial gains arsing from changes N financial assurmptions - - 265 1 A44 245 1.444
Actuarnal gairs arsing rom changes in demograpt e
assumplions - 18 1 18 11
Experience losses on scheme liabilties - - {57} 138) (57) {38)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [18) 31 18 ) - 3
Atend of year ' 3,942 4,151 (2.555) |2.802) 1,407 1,349
Reconciliation of change in imecoverable surplus
- —— e Coee - " Corsolidated Groug | .
2023 2022
£m £m
At heginning of year (42) [26)
Change recognised in other comprehensive income L.} 110)
Interest charge on irrecoverable surplus (2} 1}
Eftect of movernenls in foreign exchange - _ o2 o)
At end of year (36) {42)
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15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Corsehdaied Growe o

Proviions  fox voue of
Froperty, F noaneial ard ainer .
a1 and i~ tangitle Erpiloyes terrporer,
)l ausels Lacnes brnefils diffziences Talal
im £ im £m fir

At 18 September 2021 90 [101) 125 81) 155
Armount credited o fhe income stalement {3) 27 1 - 13 78
Amount credited 1o equily - - 155 28 2 - 185
Acquired through business combinations 22 2 - 24
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income 2 - - - - - 2
siatement
Effect of changes in tax rates on equity - - 44 - 44
Effect of hypennflationary economies taken
o operating profit 3 _ _ _ _ _ _ 3
Transfer to assets/liabilities held for scle 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [ 0 {4) - - (4) - 8
Al 17 September 2022 190 17 (78) 325 46 {68) {28) 504
Amount credited to the income staternent 74 (3) (30} 10 (6} {8) {51} {12)
Amount credited to equity - - - {5) {40) 5 - {40)
Acquired through business combinations 7 - 1 - (1} 1} 6
Eifect of changes in tax rates on the income - - 2 - - - 5
slafemenl
Effect of hypennflationary economies token 4 - - - - - - 4
to epercling proft
Transfer from assets/liabiifies hetd for sale %) - - - - - - {5)
Fffect of mavemenis in foreign exchange {19} {3} 3 - - 2 2 (135)
At 16 September 2023 o 249 118 {105) 333 - {70) {78) 447

Provisions and other temporary differences include provisions of £(103)m {2022 - £(93)m}. biological assets of £33m (2022
- £32m), tax credits of £{9)m (2022 - £{146)m) and other temporary differences of £9m (2022 - £9m}.

Frossons

Tox vaioe of

T

LTl
Af 18 Sepfomber 2021 145
Amount credited fo the income statemen 78
Amount credited to equity - 184
Acquired through business combinations - 24
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income
stafernent 2 - - - - - 2
Effect of changos in fax rates on cquity - - 44 - 44
Effect of hyperinflofionary economies faken
ta operating profit 3 - - - - 3
Transfer to assets/icbilities held for salo 5 - - _ - - 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 6 10 {4} - (8) - 4
At 17 September 2022 o 187 17 (78) 324 40 (75) (2] 489
Amount credited o the income siatement 73 (3 (30) 12 - {11 {53) (12)
Amount credited 1o equity - - - (5} (40) 5 - (40)
Acquired through business combinations - 7 - 1 - 1) n 4
Fffect of changes in fax rates on the income
statement 3 - - 2 - - - 5
Effect of hyponnflationary econcmies faken
to operating profit 4 - - - - - - 4
Tronsfer from assetsficbiifies held for sole {5) - - - - - - {(5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {19} (3) 3 - - 3 2 (14)
At 16 Seplember 2023 T 243 118 (105) 334 - (79 (78) 433
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15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of the
defered tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

. ABF Corscl dgied GT_C?.:JF) _—

2023 2077 2023 Py

£m Lin Em £

Defered tax ossets 193 158 195 140
Defered fax liabiifies B fez6) 1647 (642) _(s64]
(433) 148%) (4473 (504)

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no deferred tax assets (2022 - £5m} classified as assets held for
sale [see note 17).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised inrespect of tax losses of £360m (2022 — £348m). Of these tax losses,
£186m (2022 - £188m) will expire af various dates between 2023 and 2028 (2022 - 2023 and 2027). Deferred tax assets
have also not been recognised in respect of other temporary differences of £348m {2022 - £520m). This includes £140m
[2022 - £378m) relating o properly, plant and equipment and leases in Germany which were derecognised following
the impairment in 2022 (see notes 10 and 11 for further details}. These deferred tax assets have not been recognised on
the basis that their future economic benefit is uncertain,

In addition, the Group's overseas subsidiares have net unremitted earnings of £2,527m (2022 - £2.029m). resulting in
tempaorary differences of £1,42é6m (2022 — £1.495m). No deferred tax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the timing of the reversais can be confrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
tne toreseeable future.

16. Trade and other receivables

ABF . Lorsoldaled Growm
2023 2027 2023 2022
£m £m £m Lm
Non-current - cther receivables

Loans and receivables 31 29 31 29
irvestments designated FYOCI 32 29 32 29
o B & 8 63 58

Cumrent - frade and atherreceivables
Trade receivables L319 L3 1.330 1,321
Other receivables 223 218 234 232
Accuedincome 26 3 29 38
I 1568 1564 1,593 1.591
Prepayments and other non-financial receivatles 210 194 14 198
o 1.778 EEN 1,807 1.789

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no trade and other receivables [2022 - £3m| classified as assefs
held for sale (see note 17].

The directors consider hat fhe camying amount of receivables approximates fair value.
For details of credit risk exposure on trade and otherreceivables. see note 28.

Trade and other receivables include £32m (2022 - £29m) in respect of finance lease receivables, with £28m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables (2022 - £25m in non-current [oans and receivables
and £4m in current other recelvables). Minimum lease payments receivable are £4m within one year, £11m between
one and five years and £17m in more than five vears (2022 - £4m within ane year, £16m between ong and five years
and £9m in more than five years).

The finance legse receivables relate to property, plant and equipment leased to a joint venture of the Group [see nole
30).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group has no assets and liabilities classified as held for sale at vear end. In the prior year, the Group's north China
sugar business was classified as held for sale. The proposed buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of this year andl
the Group has since recognised a £15m non-cash exceptional impairment charge fo write down the property, plant
and equipment in that business.

18. Inventories

ARF Consalidated Group
2023 [ e 2023 D077
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials and consumatles 599 &7 405 407
Work in progress 78 Y 78 70
finished goods and goods held forresale -~ _ 25380 2538z 253 = 2619
3.207 3259 3,246 3.296
Wrile down of inveniories (123) {115} {124) {115]

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no inventories (2022 - £7m) classified as assets held for sale (see
note 17},

19. Biological assets

C_Sonso dalec Grog

T Graw g
core Or?:er :o
imn £m £
At 18 Septernber 2021 79 & 85
Transfered o inventary [113) 113) 1124]
Purchoses - 5 5
Other disposals - 1) 1}
Changes in fair value 124 10 134
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 1 8
Al 17 September 2022 97 8 105
Iranstered 16 inventorny 1121 (14} [135)
Purchases 3 é 2
Impairmennt {7) - (7]
Changes in fair value 135 N 146
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange {19 - (19]
At 14 Seplember 2023 88 11 97

Impairment

The methodology used fo assess current biological assets for impairment is the same as that described tor impairment
assessments of goodwill, See note ¢ for further details.

In the year there was a £7m (2022 - Enil} impairment of current biological assets in llove Mozambique due ta the severe
flooding and damage to the sugar crop fields (included within exceptional iterns).

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane s determined using inputs that are unobservable, using the best information available in
the circumstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measurement.
The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 16 September 2023:

South Alica Malawl Zambia Eswatini Tanzanic Mozambique
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 5729 18,819 15,700 10,580 9,578 -
Estimated yield (fonnes cane/hectare) 67.9 100.1 114.0 920 80.2 -
Average maturity of growing cane 45647 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 46.2%, -

The following assumpiicns were used In the defermmahon of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 17 September 2022:

Tamic Es achrn TansaTio AL L

Sauth Alrica Gl
Expected area 1o harvest (hectares) 4028 19,207 16,163 5,419 2612 5.802
Estimated yield {fonnes cana/hectare) &7.9 103.7 115.9 9.5 726 710
Average malurity of growing cane 47.6% 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 46.2% 72.4%
A 1% change in the unobservable inputs could increase or decrease the fair value of growing cane as follows:

Co e - T T B
1% % +1% 1%

£m £m LT £

Estimated sucrose conlent 1.4 (1.6} 1.2 11.2)
Estimated sucrose price 1.9 (1.9} 1.4 11.4)
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

ABF Cormsclicaled Group
2023 2022 2023 2027
Ne-a £m £m £m i
Cash
Cash at bank and in hand 481 674 532 779
Cash equivalents 976 1,447 1,064 1.447
Cassh and cash ecuivalerts o 28 1457 2121 1,59 2226
Reconciliation to the cash flow statement
Bark overdrafis o 21 {69) (126} (69} 1124)
Cash and cash equivalents in Ine cash flow sialement nass 1995 1,527 2,100
Cast and cash equivalents on the face of the balance sheet 1,457 2121 1,5%6 2,226
o 1457 2,121 1,596 2,226

Cash at bank and in hand generally earns interest at rates based on the daily bank deposit rate.

Cash eguivalents generally comprise deposits placed an money markets for periods of up to three months which eam
interest at a short-term deposit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that have a maturity of less than or equal to

three months and are ot fixed rates.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value.

21. Loans and overdrafts

A8F e Co"sol\rmrreqw(}rouu
2023 2 2023 P
Noe £m £ im i
Current loans and overdrafts
Secured loans - 1 1 1
Unsecured loans and overdrafis 168 156 148 156
- e 168 157 169 157
Non-currentloans
securad loans - - - ]
Unsecured loans 394 480 394 480
T "' 39440 394 481
28 562 637 543 438
h : ARF Com',o!m:ﬁed Group .
2023 7027 2023 37
MNote £m £m £m £m
Secured loans
- GBP flogting rate - 1 1
- Other floating rate - I - 1
Unsecurad bank loans and overdrafts
- Bank overdrafts 20 69 126 69 126
- GBP fixed rale 392 390 392 390
- UsSC floating rate 8 8 a 8
- UsD fixed rate 81 87 81 87
- EUR floating rate ) 2 1 ?
- Other floatng rate g 13 9 13
- Other fixed rale 2 10 2 10
28 562 637 563 638

Secured loans comprise amounts borrowed frorm commercial banks and are secured by floating charges over the assets
of subsidianes. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

22. Trade and other payables

ABF Corsalidated Graug T

2023 2022 2023 2022

£m £m £m £m

Trade payables 1177 1.362 1,191 1.377
Acerugls e V7S 1,288 1296
2,448 2637 2477 2673

Deferred ncome and ofhernon—ﬂmcmcio\Doyc_]bles - 505 477 523 492
2,953 3114 3,000 3,145

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no trade and cother payables (2022 - £14m) classified as liabilities
held for sale {see note 17).

For payables with a remaining life of less than one year, carying amount is deemed to reflect fair value.

In a small number of businesses, the Group utilises supplier financing arrangements to enable participating suppliers, at
each suppher's sole discretion, to sell any or all amounts due from the Group to a third-party bank egrier than the
invoice due date, at better financing rates than the supplier clone could achieve. Payment terms for suppliers are
identical, irespective of whether they choose to participate. The Group recefves no benefit from these arrangements.
Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third-party
bank as akin to amounts owed to the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within trade payables and
associated cash flows are included within operating cash flows, as they continue to be part of the Group's normal
operating cycle.

Al year end. the value of invoices sold by suppliers under supply chain financing arangements was £75m {2022 - £45m).

23. Provisions

I I jaared Group
De*

Regtrac arg CONICes on Oreer Tealual
im £ im L
Al 17 September 2022 55 20 38 113
Created 21 2 &7 90
Utilised 139) (1) {7 {64)
Releqsed (18} - [13) {31
Effect of movements in foreign exchange o o &N - f4) 15]
Al 16 September 2023 8 & 79 103
Current 18 3 34 55
Nan-current o - 3 45 48
T 18 6 79 103

Financial liabilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years (see note 28},

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions includa business restructure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Croup's
announced reorganisation plans. These restructuring provisions are largely expecited to be utilised in the next financial
year.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amaounts due to the previous owners of businesses acquired by the Group
which are often linked to performance or other conditions.

Other

Other provisions mainly comprise litigation claims and warranty claims arising from the sale and closure of businesses. The
extent and timing of the ufilisation of these provisions is more uncertain given the nature of the claims and the pericd of
the warranties.
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24_ Share capital and reserves

Share capital
At 17 September 2022 and 1é September 2023, the Group's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 862,022
ordinary shares of 50p, ecch carrying one vote per share. Total nominal value was £431,011.

Other reserves
Other reserves are non-distributable and materially arose from the cancellation of share premium account by ABFin
1993,

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprisas all foreign exchange differences arnising from the franslation of the financial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the fransiation of liabilities that hedge the Group's net investment in forgign
subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comptises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent that they are effective cash flow
hedges, net of amounts recycled from the hedging reserve on occurence of the hedged fransaction or when the
hedged transaction is no longer expected fo occur,

25. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2023

In the first half, the ABF Agriculture division acquired Kite Consulting, Advance Sourcing and Progres, Kite Consulting is a
specialist dairy consultant and Advance Sourcing provides specialist products to create value by improving herd
performance and supports dairy farmers to improve herd efficiency and build resiience acrass the agri-food supply
chain. Progres in Finland uses a patented additive to support good health, reduce inflarmmation and stimulate recovery.
which improves gut integrity and the performance of animails.

In April, the Ingredients ABF division acquired Vital Sotutions, a German company specialising in nafural science-based
ingredients for application in dictary supplements and functional foods,

The ABF Agriculture division acquired IFCN AG, o dairy research and consulfing company in June and in August
ocquircd National Mitk Rocords plc (NMR] for £48m. NMR s the leading agri-tech supplier of manogement information
and testing services to the UK dafry supply chain, deveioping technology used to inform farming cfficiency and ammal
welfare, and quanbfy tood provenance.

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and habilities:

g R "-_-E;cqg_qi_:_e_\j__‘_«_p\Jei on acc:u'ﬂllr;r-w“ .
Nat'oral 4 <
Recordy Orler Texlel
im &r &
Net assets
Infangible assels 3 23 12 35
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 5 4 i 5
Investmenrt in joirt veriures 3 7 - 9
Cash and overdrafts 1 I 1
working capital (M {1 (
toans 2) 12) - 12)
Taxation ) o L N v R =)
Nel icentiliable assels and iabiitss 0 30 1 41
Goodwil 18 21 39
Total consideration 48 32 80
Sotisfied by,
Cash corsideration 78
Deferred consideration S ) ) ) 2
Met cash:
Cash consideration 78
Cash and cash sguivalents acguired f1]
77
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

25. Acquisitions and disposals continued
Pre-gcquisiion carrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £32m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, technology and customer relationships, o £7m related deferred tax liobility. o £6m upfiff
ta the investment in joint ventures and goodwill of £39m. Casn flow on acquisition of subsidiarias, joint ventures and
associates of £94m comprised £78m cash considerafion less £1m cash and overdrafts gocquired, £iém of deferred
consideration relating fo previous acquisitions and a £1m contribution fo an existing ABF joint venture in China.

2022

In January, the Group acquired 100% of Fytexia. o B2B specialty ingredients business in france and ltaly producing and
formulating polyphenols-based active ingredients far the dietary supplements industry. In July, the Group acdguired
Greencoat, g UK-based animal supplement and care business. During the year, the Group ofse acquired a smalf
grocery company in New Zeolond, a small ogriculfure business in Finland and a smaill ingredients business in Australia.

Pre-acquisifion camying amounts were the same as recognised vaiues on acquisifion apart from £88m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, technology and customer relationships, an £6m uph!t to inventory, a £1é6m related
deferred tax liability and goodwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of
£154m comprised £153m cash considerafion fess £10m cash and overdrofts acquired. £7m of deferred consideration
relating fo previous acquisitions and @ £4m contiibution to an existing joint venture in Chino.

Disposals

2023

The Group agreed fo sell property, plont and cquipment to its Chinese joint venture partner. Profit on sale was £3m. In
March Gledhow, the Group's 30% equity-occounted associate in lovo South Africa, formally went into business rescue.
A non-cash provision of £6m was booked on the financial guarantee held on this business” liabilities.

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in tay 2023 for £61m.

2022

The proposed sale of an ABF yeast company to the joint venture with Wilmar Intermational in China {classified as held for
sale at the 2021 year end) is not going ahead. The £10m nen-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/(loss) on
sale and closure of business has been reinstated at a cost of £11m.

The Group's investment in north China Sugoar is classified as held-for-sale af year end and an associated £19m non-cash
write-down has been charged to loss on sale and closure of business.

Tha Group also refeased £3m of clasure provisions in Vivergo in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no longer required
for a disposed Ingredicnts business in the United Stafes.

24. Share-based paymenis

The annual charge in the income statement for equity-settled share-based payments schemes was £18m {2022 - £19m).
The Group had the following principai equity-settled share-based payment plans in operation duwring the period:

Associated British Foods 2014 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 LTIP'}

The 2016 LTIP was approved and adopled by the Group at the ABF AGM held on 9 December 2014, It takes the form of
conditional allocations of shares which are released i, and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied,
typically over a three-year vesting perind,

Associated British Foods 20146 Short-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 STIP')

The 2016 STIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 November 2014, If fakes the
form of conditional allocations of shares which are released at the end of a three-year vesting period if, and to the
extent that, performance targets are satisfied, over a cne-year performance period.

Further information regarding the operation of the above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 10010 115,

Total conditional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

C Bolance
ouls anchng a*
fhe beginning Granlad! Sxpired? at ‘he end
ol the period awarded Yasled laosed of fre penod
2023 6,090,005 3,113,056 (607,140} (1,618,739}  6.977.182
2022 5419237 2445814 [(718.185]  [1.056861]  &.090.005

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to allocation under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment pians are held in a separaie
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Voting rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisable by the trustee, who is entifled to consider any recommendation made by a commitiee of ABF. At 14
September 2023 the Trust held 4,734,992 (2022 — 3.042,132) ordinary shares of ABF. The market value of these shares af the
year-end was £99m (2022 - £40m). The Trust has waived its right fo dividends. Movements in the year were arelease of
407,140 shares and the purchase of 2,300,000 shares {2022 - release of 718,185 shares and the purchase of 2,413,228
shares).
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24. Share-based payments continved

Fair values

The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by taking the market price of the shares af
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesting period. The weighted
avergge fair value of the conditional shares allocated during the year was 1,544p {2022 - 1,660p] and the weighted
average share price was 1,925p (2022 - 1.975p). The dividend yield used was 2.5% {2022 - 2.5%).

27. Analysis of net debt

Consolcated Croup

Y. NG A1

17 Sgpterrtor 1 Cain Excthange 16 Seplember

202% Loaah llow iterrs austTIen s 2023

I LM £ £m
Short-term loans 31} 13 (88) 7 (100}
| ong-term loamns {481) - 88 - (394)
Lease liabilities o - (3.275) 312 - {290) 63 (3,190}
Total liobilities from financing activilies [3.787) 325 (2] 1290) 0 (3.684)

Cuash af bank and in hand, cash equivalents ond

overdrafis 2100 (500) - - (73) 1.527
Cument investments designoted FVIPL 1.243 49 - 51 (4] 1,329
1444 [126) (2] 1239) 7] (828}
- - B - - 'éérfioh(i(ﬂe‘gg[pkg_ - e R

at [ [sFSRate At

18 Septemoer Acaasrians  angd con Case 7 Septernber

2021 Zog "oa ond dspesab renn, 022

£ im Flka) im 2 im

Short-term loans 2909 58 (23} 224 131
Long-term loans [76) (179) - [224) (2} 1481
tease iablities . G208 0 32 B {188) (98) {3.275)
Tolal lighiities from financing activities ~[3.674) 204 {31] 1186} [100) {3.787)

Cash ot bank and in hand, cash equivalents and

overcirofis 2473 [397) - - 74 2,100
Curent investments designated FVIPL 1.093 122 - (3)_ oy 1,243
{158] 71) {31] [18%} 5 {444}

Cash and cash equivalents comprse bank and cash balances, call deposits and shor-term investiments with original
maturities of three months ar less. £69m {2022 — £12é6m) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integrat part of the Group's cash management and are included as o component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement (see note 20 for a reconciliation).

Net cash excluding lease liabilities is £2,362m {2022 - £2.831m) comprising cash at bank and in hand, cash equivalents
and overdrafts of £1.527m, short-term loans of £100m, long-term loans of £3%4m and current investments designated
FVTPL of £1.329m (2022 - £2,100m, £31m, £481m and £1,243m respeciively).

£69m (2022 — £12ém) of bank overdratts plus the £100m (2022 - £31m) of short-term loans shown above comprise the
£169m (2022 - £157m) of current loans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet.

Current and non-current lease liabilities shown on the face of the balance sheet of £338m and £2.852m respectively
{2022 - £320m and £2.955m respectively) comprise the £3,190m (2022 - £3,275m) of lease liabilifies shown above.

Current investments designated FVTPL comprise term deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of
greater than three months but less than one year.

Interest paid is included within financing activities. The roll-forward of the liabilities associated with interest paid is an
opening balance of £{18}m, expense of £{129)m. payments of £119m, effect of hyperinflationary economies of £3m and
a closing balance of £{25)m (2022 — cpening balance of £(20)m, expense of £{112)m, payments of £114m and a closing
balance of £{18}m). Quistanding balances of inferest payables are included in accruals in note 22,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

28. Financial instruments

Financial instruments include £nil (2022 - £3m) of tfrade and other receivables and £nil {2022 - £14m)] of frade and other
payables which are classified as held for sale (see note 17). All disclosures in this note are given gross, before the held-

for-sale reclassificalion is made.

a) Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilifies

A Corsdloslec Gy
2023 027 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m

Financial ossets
Financial ussets at amoriised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1,457 2,121 1,596 2224
Investments - 4 - 4
Trade and other receivables 1.568 1.567 1.593 1,594
Other norn-current receivables 31 29 3 29
At fair valve through other comprehensive income
Investrnents 32 79 3z 29
At fair valve through profit and loss
Investrnents - 1,478 1,381
Dervative assets not designated in a cash flow hedging
relationship:
- curency denvatives 17 50 1 50
- commaodity denvatives - 3 - 3
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging insfruments:
- currency derivatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) 40 70 40 70
- Cross-cUency swaps 24 29 24 29
- inlerast rate derivatives 4 1 B
- commeadity denvatives R 17 323 17 o323
Tolal financial assets 3,184 4,225 4,826 5.738
Fincncial Babilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and olher payables (2.448) {2.651) (2.477) (2,687}
Secured loans - {1} m {2)
Ursecured loons and overdrafts (fair volue 2023 - £470m; 2022
—£571m) (562) (636) {562} (638)
Leqse liabilties (fair value 2023 - £3.208m; 2022 - £3.494m) (3.160) {3.252) (3.190) {3.275}
Deferred consderalion (6} (204 (6) {20)
At fair valve through profit and loss
Desivalive ubiliies not desgnated in a cash flow hedgng
relationship:
- currency dervatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) ()] (3} (6) (5)
- commeodity derivatives - {3} - 3)
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivative lahilities desionated as net investment hedging
nstfrumens:
- CHOSS-CUITENCY Swaps {7 (7} ] 7
Designated cash flow hedging retationships
Derivative labilities designated and effective as cash Row
hedging insfruments:
- cumency derivatives {excluding cross-currency swaps) “@ {17] {4) 117}
- inferest dervatives - {3) - {3}
- commodity derivatives - (52) 7o (52) (170
Total financial liabilities e ] {6,245) 16.765) (6305) (4825
Net financial liabiliies {3.061) {2.540) (1.479) {1.087)

Except where stated, carrying amount is equal to fair value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Sepltember 2023

28, Financial instruments continued
Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value
Financial instrurments caried at fair value on the balance sheet comprise dervatives and investments. The Group

classifies these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the relative significance of both objective
evidence and subjective judgements on the inputs used in making the fair value measuremenis:

Level 1: financial instruments are valued using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted guoted market prices in an
active market for identical instruments. An example of an item in this category is a widely traded equity instrument with
a normal guoted market price.

Lavel 2: financial instruments are vafued using techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. market prices
and rates) or indirectly (i.e. derived from market prices and rates). An examgle of gn item in this category is a currency
derivative, where forward exchange rates and yield curve data, which are observable in the market, are used to derive
fair value.

Level 3: financial instruments are valued using techniques involving significant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is
categorised for Investments held at fair value through profit and loss:

Conschdale:

T L Tt T T o
Level 1 Levei 2 level 3 Total Level 2 level 3 T=hol
£m £m £m £m i EZm £
Investrents designated FVTPL 1175 299 4 1.478 682 4 1,381

Included within the level 2 investments is the Group’s aggregate £145minterest (2022: £138m) in 40 {2022: 46) separate
Partnerships, each of which held investments in unquoted investments, Such investments represent the Group's
allocable share of Partnership investmenis and include interests in non-redeemable. closed-end private investment
funds that do not trade in an active market and represent illiquid long-term invastments that generally require future
capital commitments,

The fair value of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unquoled
investments are valued in accordance with the International Privale Equity and Venture Capital Valuations Guidelines
as endaorsed by the British Venture Capital Association. The basis of valuation in these guidelines include valuing
mveslrnenly ul e pice uliecenl comparalive Industry price earmings ratos discounted tor marketability and
performance of the investment, by review of comparabie M&A deais in appropriate sectors, and nel asset valuations for
asset based investments,

Because af the inherent uncertainties of valuing unguoted investments, the eventual realisation proceeds may differ
from the estimated foir value and the difference could be significant. Appropriate provisions are made against all
individual values where necessary to reflect unsatisfactory financial performance or a fall in comparable ratings, leading
fo impairment in value.

b) Derivatives
All derivatives are classified as curent on the face of the balance sheet. The fable below analyses the camying amaount
of derivatives and their confractual/nohonal amounts, together with an analysis of derivatives by the level in the fair
value hierarchy inte which their fair value measurement method is categorised,

— Censohdoied Groun

2023 2077 N
Contrectual/ Controctual!
national noticanal
amounts Level 1 Levet2 Total armounts level ] level 2 Talal
Em £m £m im i £ i £
Financial assefs
Currency derivalives 2,402 - 51 51
{excluding cross-cumency swaps) 2193 - 120 120
Cross-Cumrency swaps 84 - 24 24 94 - 29 29
Interest rale derivatives 400 - 4 4 - - - -
Cor‘nmodityﬁqgrixgwi"iye‘s_ ) 163 5 12 17 43% 3 323 324
- e 3.049 3 91 96 27 3 A4S
Financial iabilities
Curency derivafives 626 - (10} no
{excluding cross-cumency swaps) 921 - 122} {22}
Cross-curency swaps &5 - (7} {7 48 - {7} (7]
Interest rale derivatives - - - - 400 - 13} 13)
Commodity derivafives s ) (5B (5 366 - (173 (179
954 (2) (67) (67) 1.755 - |205) {205}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued
¢} Cash flow hedging reserve
The following table identifies the movements in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the pericds in which

the cash flows are expected o cccur. The perods in which the cash flows are expected to impact profit or loss are
materially the same.

2023
Curency
derlvatives
[excluding Cross-
cross- currency Interest  Commodity Y
cutienty) SwWaps Derivatlves defivotives Total ¢ . -
£m £m £m £m £m i1 Lrie h L i
Opening balance (41) - 2 {115) (154) {14) [ - 28) 143}
Losses/ (gains) recognised in the
hedging reserve 73 5 (5) 339 £12 (295} {20 3 [{234) [546)
Armount removed from Ihe hedging
reserve and included in the income
statement:
- revenue () - - (7) (13) 5 - - (4] !
- cost of sales - - - (132) {(132) - - - 105 105
- other financial {income) /fexpanse - (€] - - ()] 21 - - 2]
Amount removed from Ihe hedging
reserve and included in anon-
financial asset:
inventory (52) - - {18) (58} 258 - - 22 280
Defemed tox (2) - - {39) (40) 5 I U - .-
Closngbdonce (280 (3 2 3 2 R ENIE ]
Cash flows are expected to occur;
—within six months (15) - - 25 10 136} - 2 {105) 1139
between six months and one year (13) 2 2) 4 (13) {6} - {10] (18]
- between one and two years - - - 1 1 ! e B
(28) 2) (2) 30 (2) 141} 2 {115) 1154)

Of the closing balance of £{2)m, £{1})m is atkibutable to equity shareholders and £{11m to non-controlling interasts (2027
~ £{154]m, £(84]m affributable to equity shareholders and £(70)m te non-controlling interests], Of the net movement in
the year of £132m, £83m s atfributable to equity shareholders and £6%m to non-controlling interests (2022 - £{111)m,
£{80}m is attributable to equity shareholders and £{51)m to non-controlling interests).

The balance remaining in the commadily cash flow hedge reserve from hedging relafionships for which hedge
accounting is no longer applied is £3m (2022 - £1m}.

The balance in the cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 17 September 2022 or 16 Seplember 2023
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28. Financial instruments continved

d) Financial risk identification and management
The Group is exposed to the following financial risks from the use of financial instruments:

liquidity risk,
markeft risk; and
- credif risk.

The Group's financial risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk management policies and systems have been established and are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group. through its standards
and procedures, dims to develop o disciplined and constructive control environmeni in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many locations around the world. These operations
expose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commodity markets. Risk management
teams have been established in the Group's major businesses o manage this exposure by entering into a range of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps. and, where appropriate, options. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularly to executive managemernt.

Treasury operations and commodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined tramework of
Board-approved policies and guidelines to manage 1he Group's financial and commaodity risks. Group Tredsury waorks
closely with the Group's procurement teams to manage commaodity risks. Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure thal
adequate financial resources are available at all fimes for the management and development of the Group's
businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk and credit risk. The Group's risk management policy explicitly
forbids the use of financial or commaodity derivatives (outside ifs risk management framewaork of mitigating financial and
commadity risks) for speculative purposes.

e} Foreign currency franslation

The Group presents its financial statements in sterling. As ¢ resull of its waorldwide operations, the Group is exposed to
foreign curency translation nsk where overseas operations have a functional currency other than sterling. Changes in
foreign currency exchange rates impact the translation info stering of both the income statemeant and net assets of
these forelgn cperations.

The Group lypically finances its operations using own tunds generated in the functional currency of ifs operaltons and
where appropriate, by borrowing locally in the same functional currency. Thisreduces net asset values reported in
functional curencies other than sterling. thereby reducing the economic exposure to fluctuations in fareign currency
exchange rates on transiation.

The Group also finances its operations by obtaining funding at Group level through extemal borowings and, where they
are not in sterling, these borrowings may be designated as nel invesiment hedges. This enables gains and losses arising
on retranslation of thase foreign currency borowings to be charged to other comprehensive income, providing a parhal
offset in equity against the gains and losses arising on translation of the net assets of foreign operations.

The Group also holds cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debt. These are reported as
cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument, 1o the degree
effective, s retained in other comprehensive income. Under IFRS 9, the curency basis on the Cross-curency swaps is
excluded from ihe hedge designation and recegnised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The
hypothetical derivative is based on the criicat ferms of the debt and therefore the only ineffectiveness that might arise is
in relation to credit risk. Credit nsk is monitored regulariy and is not a significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group does not actively hedge the translation impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the income
statement (other than via the partial economic hedge arising from the servicing costs on non-sterling borowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-equity for the purposes of IAS 21, The
effect of the designation is that any foreign exchange volatility arising within the borrowing enlity and/or the lending
entity is accounted for direcily within other comprehensive income.

A nel foreign exchange loss of £2m (2022 -~ £nil} on retranslation of these loans has been laken to the translalion reserve
on consclidation, all of which was attributable to equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-currency swaps that
have been designated as hedges of its net investments in euros, whaose change in fair value of £nil to the translation
reserve, all of which was attibutable to equity shareholders (2022 - £1m has been debited to the translation reserve).
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28, Financial instruments confinued

F) Market risk

mMarket risk is the risk of movernents in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial insfrument or forecast fransaction
as underlying market prices change. The Group is exposed fo changes in the market price of commaodities. interast rates
and foreign exchange rates. Thase risks are known as ‘transaction’ {or recognised) exposures and ‘economic’ {or
forecast] exposures.

{i} Commodity price risk
Commadity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials, ihe sale of finished goods linked to market indices
and the consequent exposure 1o changes in market prices.

The Group purchases a wide range of commeodities in the ordinary course of business and has some sales contracts
which gre linked to financial market indices. Exposure ta changes in the market price of certain of these commodities
including sugar raws, energy, wheat, edible oils, saya beans, 1ea. lean hog. cocoa and rice is managed through the use
of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primarily to convert floating
prices to fixed prices. The use of such contracts to nedge commeodity exposures is governed by the Group's risk
management policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury. Commodity derivatives also provide a way o
meet customers' pricing requirements whilst achieving a price structure consistent with the Group's overall pricing
strategy.

Some aof the Group's commodity forward cantracts are classified as "own use’ contracts, since they are entered into,
and continue to be held, for the purposes of the Group's ordinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical
delivery of the commoaodity concernad. Own use cantracts do not require accounting entries until the commadity
purchase actually crystallises. Where possible, other commodity denvatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
[typically with a one-lo-one hedge ralic), but there are same commoedity derivatives for which the strict requirements of
hedge accounting cannct be satisflied. Such commaodily derivatives are used only where the business believes they
provide an economic hedge of an underlying exposure. These instruments are classified as held for frading and are
marked to marke! through the income statement.

The majority of tne Group's forward physicat contracts and commaodity derivatives have maturities of less than one year.

The Group's sensitivities in respect of commaodity derivatives for a +/- 20% mavement in underlying commaodity prices are
£Yem (2022 - £62m) and £{13)m (2022 - £{57)m), respectively.

(i} Interest rate risk
'nterest rate risk comprises two primary elements:

interast price risk results from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating interest rates
therefore affect the fair value of these fixed rate financial instruments; and

interast cash flow risk results from financial instruments bearing floating rates. Changes in floating interest rates affect
cash flows on interest receivable or payable,

The Group's pelicy is to manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant
change ininterest rates does not have o materol negative impact on the Group's cash fows.

Al 16 September 2023, £475m (85%) (2022 - £487m and 74%) of total debt was subject to fixed rates of interest, the
majorty of which is the 2034 public bond (fixed rate of 2.5%). Floaling rate debt comprises other bank borrowings
bearing interest rates for various time panods up to 12 months, by reference to the relevant market rate for the currency
and location of the borowing.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current asset investrmeants are subject to fioating rates of interest, typically
fixed for periods up ta 3 months by reference 1o the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing or
investment.

£400m of 12-month stering interest rate swaps have been enfered into so thal the tloating interest rate received on an
equivalent balance of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is fixed for the 12-month period to September 2024,
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28. Financial instruments continued

(iii} Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and consequently in many foreign currencies. As a result, it is exposed to
movemenls in foreign cumency exchange rates which affect the Group's transaction costs. The Group also publishes its
financial statements in sterling and is therefore exposed to movements in foreign exchange rafes on the translation of
the results and underlying net assets of its foreign operations info sterling.

Translation risk is discussed in section e} on page 54.

Transaction risk

Cumrency transaction exposure occurs where d business makes sales and purchases in a currency other thanils
functional currency. It also arises where monetary assets and liabilities of a business are not denominated in its functional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's policy is fo match fransaction
exposures wheraver possible, and to hedge actual exposures and firm commitments as soon as they accur by using
forward fareign currency confracts.

The Group uses derivatives {principally forward foreign currency confracts and fime options) to hedge its exposure 1o
movements in exchange rates onits foreign currency trade receivables and payables. The Group does not seek formal
fair value hedge accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead, such derivatives are classified as held for frading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the retranslation of the
foreign currency trade receivables and payables.

Economic (forecast) risk

Tha Group principally uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in exchange rates on
its highly probable forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on aroling 12-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percentage on an individual basis with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and
prevailing morket conditions. The Group designates currency derivatives used to hedge its highly probbable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS ¢, the spot componentis designated in the hedging relationship and
forward points and currency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income — cost of hedging. The
cost of hedging value during the period and at the balance sheet date was not material. The economic relationship is
based on crifical terms and a one-to-one hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective, gains and
losses are deferred in equity until the torecast transaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are recycled either
to the income stalermant or 1o the non-financial asset acquired.

The majority of the Groun’s rureney derivatives hove original maturities of less than one year.

The Group's most significant currency fransaction exposures are:
sourcing for Primark - costs are denominated in a number of currencies. predominantly US dollars, euros and sterling.
sugar sales in Brifish Sugar to movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate.

Elsewhere, a number of businesses make sales and purchase a variety of raw materials in foreign curencies (primarily US
dollars and euros), giving rise to transaction exposures. In al other material respects, businesses tend to operate in their
functional currencies.
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for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

The table below illustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the consalidated balance sheet and ceonsolidated
income statement by disclosing separately by risk cateqgory, and each type of hedge. the details of the associated

hedging instrument and hedged item.

Consolidated Gl‘:)‘Up T

2023
Change in fair Change in fair
Carmrying valye of hedging valve of hedge
arnount Furthest instrument used ta item used jo
Contract assels/ raturity Hedge delermine hedge defermine hedge
noticnal  (liabikties) date ratic ineffectiveness effectiveness
£m Em £m o £m £m

Current

Designaled cash flow hedging relahonships:

— currency dervatives [excluding Cross-curency swaps) 2024 34 Sep 24 100°% 35 (36)

- CrOss-CUMency swaps 34 24 Mar2d 1005 [ [6)

- commodity dervalives 427 (35) Sep24 100% (35) 35

- interes! rate derdvatives 400 4 Sep24 100% 4 {4)

Designated net investment hedging relationships:

—currency derivatives (Cross-curency swaps) 65 (7] Mor24 100% - -

Non-cumrent

Designated cash flow hedging relotionshizs:

- currency derivatives [excluding cross-curency swaps) 21 - Apr25 100% - -

- commeodity denvatives 1 - Feb 25 100% - -

- o . _.. Comsozatec Group
oA o -
Change i ‘o

Carmng wiue ot hedgng ]

cmroun” Furibies® deraused e
Corract mzalst racthory badge detorric o £
rohonal |heasithes] szl featiey oo

£ £ m %

Cumrent

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

-curency derivatives (excluding cross-curmency swaps) 2102 54 Sep 23 100% 54 {54)
Cross-CUITency swops 739 152 Aug 23 100% 152 1152)
commodity derivatives 400 3] Aug 23 100% (3] 3

Non-current

Designated cash flow hedging relationships:

- cumency derivatives lexcluding cross-curmency swaps) 32 [ Sep24 100% {1 ]

— CIOSS-CUMency swops 24 % ror 24 100% 14 {14y

- cormimuodity derivatives 20 1 Jan 24 100% 1 1}

Designated net investment hedging relationships:

- curmency denvatives (Cross-curnency swaps) &8 [7] Mar24 100% (3) 3

Hedging relationships are typically based on o cne-to-one hedge ratio. The econemic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrurnent is analysed on an ongoing basis. Sources of possible ineffectiveness include changesin
farecast transactions as @ result of timing or vatue or, in certain cases, different indices linked to the hedged item and
the hedging instrument. As at 16 September 2023, £2,045m of forward foreign currency contracts designated as cash
flow hedges were outstanding (2022 — £2.134m). largely in relation to purchases of USD (£1,702m} and saies of EUR
(£203m} with varying maturities up to April 2025. Weighted average hedge ratfes for these contracts are GBPUSD: 1.264,
EURUSD: 1.098 and GBPEUR: 1.145. Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.26. Commodity derivatives designated as cash flow hedges related to a range of underlying hedged items,
with varying maturities up to February 2025.
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28. Financial instruments continved

The analysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure to financial assets and liabiities by curency of denomination is as

follows:

; ) Cene’dated Group

2023
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 351 22 32 405
Trade and other receivables - 50 56 19 125
Invesiments - - - - -
o o - 401 78 51 530
Financial liabilities
Trade and olher payables (7) (381) (41} (&) (445)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts - {81} - 1 (80}
o (7) (442) (41} (5) (525)
Curre m:y derivatives
Gross amounts receivable &7 1.8%0 12 446 2,535
Gross amounts payable (3} (1461) {29%9) {(179) (4642)
S é4 1,729 (187) 287 1,893
B i 47 1,468 {150) 333 1,898
- T - - Consoloaed Groun, _
2022
Srerley S ool Cara Dtaen
.M LT Im £ 1
Financiai assels
Cuosh and cash equivalents 1 84 13 38 138
Trade and other recervables - 55 54 24 133
Investments L - I 49 - 149
- - | 290 67 62 4
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (29} 1512) 138} {17) (596]
Unsecured icans and overdialls - 90 - {90
) 129} 1602) [38) 117) {684
Currency derivatives o
Gross amounts receivable ?3 2,143 98 254 2.590
Gross armounts payable (2} [202) ) [‘42m§]" N 57 {68%)
B 91 1.94] 330)_ 199 1,901
- 43 1629 [201] 244 1630
The following majar exchange rates applied during the year:
T Avertge rale Closngiae
2023 2772 2023 2002
US dollar 1.22 1.2¢9 1.24 1.14
Euro 1.15 1.18 1.14 i.14

The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact that o 10% strengthening of the Group's fransactional curencies
against local functional currencies would have had on profit and eguity, The analysis covers currency translation
exposures at year end on businesses’ financial assets and fiabilities that are not denominated in the functional currencies
of those businesses. A similar but oppesite impact would be felt on both profit and equity if the Group's main operating

currencies weakened against local functional currencies by a similar amouni.

The exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses an franstaling the financial statements of subsidiaries into sterding is
not included in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income statement, and the gains and losses are
recorded directly in the translation reserve in equity [see below for g separate sensitivity). This sensitivity is presented
before taxation and non-controlling interests.
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28. Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

s w0 m

impagten impact an Impact on

profil for iolal proft fo

. th iod i the peiod

10% strengthening aqainst other curencies of ¢ F‘E"‘.,:Om eq"éﬁ e Ic::-

Sterling 1 [

LS dollar 21 164 19
Furo (2) (19} 119} {41}
Cther 29 32 16 22

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Group's profit before tax if the average rates used to transtate
the results of the Group's foreign operations inte stering were adjusted fo show a 10% strengthening of sterling. A similar
but opposite impact would be felt on profit before tax if sterling weakened against the other currencies by a similar
amount.

2023
impact en
profit far o] i
) th iod 0 per o
10% strenglihening of sleding against © pe’?m " pt:r;:n
US dotlor (24) g}
Euro (22) {3
Ofher (27) [

g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties to financial instruments do not perform according to the terms of the contract or
instrument. The Group's businesses ore exposed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, suppliers, and
frem financial institutions.

The immediate credit exposure of financial instruments is represented by those financial instruments that have a net
pasitive farr value by counterparty at 16 September 2023, The Group considers its maximum exposure 1o credit risk to be:

Conschdaled Group

2023 W2z

£m £m

Cuoshand cash equivalenls 1.5%6 2,226
Investmerits at amartised cost - 4
nvesiments at far volue through profit and 1oss 1478 1,381
Trade and other receivables 1,593 1594
Other non-current receivables 3 29
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive Income 32 29
Dervative assets at far value through profit and loss n 53
Derivative assets In designated cash flow hedging retationships 78 415
o 4819 5,731

The significant majority of cash balunces and shorl-term depaosits are held with strong investrent-grade banks or
financial institutions.

The Group uses market knowledge. changes in credit ratings and other metrics to identify significant changes to the
financial profite of its counterparties.
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28, Financial instruments continued

Trade and other receivables

Significant concentrations of cradit risk are very limited as a result of the Group's large and diverse customer base. The
Group has an established credit poficy applied by each business under which the credit status of each new custorner is
reviewed before credit is advanced. This includes external credit evaluations where possible and in some cases bank
references. Credit limits are established for all significant or high-nsk customers. which reprasent the maximum amount
permitted to be outstanding without requiring additicnal approval from the appropriate level of manogement.
Culstanding debts are conlinually monitored by each business. Credit limits are reviewead on a reqular basis. and af least
annually. Customers that fail 1o meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may only fransact en a prepayment
basis. Aggregate exposures are monitored al Group level.

Many customers have been transacting with the Group for many vears and the incidence of bad delbts has been low.
Where appropriate, goods are sold subject to retention of fitle so thal, in the event of non-payment. the Group may
have a secured claim. The Group does not typically require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group provides forimpairment of financial assets including trade and olher receivables based on known events,
and makes a collective provisicn for losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majorty of the provision
comprises spacific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, gross trade receivables are assessed regularly by each business locally with
reference to considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical locatian of
each customer, and days past due (where applicable).

Expected losses are determined based on the historical experience of write-offs compared o the level of trade
receivables. These historical loss expectations are adjusted for curent and forward-loaking information where if is
identified to be significant. The Group considers factars such as nationat economic cutlocks and bankruptcy rates of the
countries in which its goods are sold to be the most relevant factors. Where the impact of these is assessed as significant,
the historical loss expectations are amended accordingty.

The Group considers credit risk to have significantly increased for debts aged 180 days or aver and expects these debts
to be provided for in full. Where the Group holds insurance or has a legal right of offsef with debtors who are also
creditors, the loss expectalion is applied only (o the extent of the uninsured or net exposure.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, indicators of which may include
the failure of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure to make contractual payments within 180 days past
due.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for rade and other receivables at the reporting date by gecgraphic region of
arigin was:

Consatde e Lrgap

2023 e

£m £

UK 409 506
Europe & Afica 398 385
The Americas 214 230
Asia Pacific o o 370 373
1.593 1,594

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

Caonsaliclted Graup

2023 2022
£m im

Not overdue 1,144 1,134
Up to one month past due 124 141
Between one and fwo months past due 30 31
Between two and thiee maonths past due 10 12
More than three months past due 30 30

Expacted loss provision e (28) (27}
T T e T T 330 1321

Trade receivables are stated net of the following expected loss provision:

Consglaated Grous

7623 2022

£m im

Cpening balance 27 24
Increcse charged to the incorme statement 7 &
Amounts released {2) {4}
Armnounts written off (2) {1}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange e @ 2
Closing batance 28 27

No trade receivables were written off direcily to the Income statement in either vear.
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28, Financial instruments continued
The geographical and business ine complexity of the Group, combinad with the fact that expected credit loss
assessments are all performed locally, means that it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit losses.

In relation ta other receivables not forming part of rade receivables, a similar approach has been taken 1o assess
axpected credit losses. No significant expected credit loss has been identitied.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Banking relationships are generally selected for their credit status, global reach and their ability to meet the businesses’
day-to-day banking requirements. The credit risk of these institulions are monitored on a continuing basis, Operating
procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be agreed with Group
Treasury. The Group has not recorded impairments against cash or cash equivalents, nor have any recoverability issues
been identified with such balances.

h} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations assaciated with its financial
liabilities as they fall due. Group Treasury is responsible for monitoring and managing liquidily and ensures that the Group
has sufficient headroom in its committed facilities to meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has
access to uncommitted facilities to assist with short-term funding requirements.

Available headroom s monitored via the use of detailed cash flow forecasts prepared by each business, which are
reviewed at least quarterly. or more often, as required. Actual results are compared to budget and forecaslt each
period, and varances investigated and explained. Particular focus is given 1o management of working capital.

The Board's treasury policies are in place to maintain a strong capital bose and manage the Group's balance sheet io
ensure long-term financial stability. This includes maintaining access to significant tatal iquidity comprised of both net
cash and undrawn committed credit facilities. These policies are the basis for investor, creditor and market confidence
and enable the successful development of the business.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given in section i} on page 42.

The following table analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities ot the balance shaet
cdate and compares them to carrying amaounts:

befv:Z:i between betweean
Due within 4 months Tand 2 2and 5 Dve aofter  Contracied Carrying
4 months and 1 year years years 5 years amount amount
Nove im £m £m £m £rrt £m £m
Non-derivalive financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 {2,409} [£8) - - - (2.477) (2,477)
Secured loans 21 - ()] - - - {1} (1}
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 2t (80) {101) (13} (30) (4560) (684) (562)
Lecre habilities 27 (199) (212) (40%) (1,065) (2,100} (3.985) {3.170)
Defered consideration 23 (2) m 3) - - (8) (6)
Derivative financial liabilities
Currency derivatives (excluding cross- {4) - - 3) - {7 {10}
currency swaps) (net payments)
_ Commeodity derivalives (el paymenis) ______(48) (5) L) O ¢ S -)
Tolal financial liabilities (2.740) (388) (426) (1,098) (2,5460) (7,212} {6.298)
D.e ’ o DLC‘ DU%?__-“ T B -
between batween Letneen
Crez wilbin 4ot I ang 2 Zandb Due after . Corvacled Carang
GIroneh ard 1 yewr yEars WEONS b yearns CITGUnT amourit
Nate £m im £m im &m ir L
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and ofher payables 22 12.65%] (28) 12,487} 2.687)
Secured loans 21 - 1) 1) - - 2 12}
Unsecured loans and overdrafls 21 {153) 7} {103} 131 1470) [774) (636)
Legse liabiities 27 {200] [217) 1413} {1.127} [2.404) 14361} [3.275)
Deferred consideration 23 {4} 112} (1} 13) - {20} {20)
Dertvative financial liabilities
Currency defivatives [excluding cross- (15] (2) 1 - 1n8s) (22)
currency swaps) (nel payments)
- Commodity derivatives {net payments) (170} 1} 12 - - {173) (173)
Interest rate derivatives (nel payments) {3) - - T - [3) (3]
Total financial liabilities {3.204) [278) {521} (1.061] (2874}  [8.038] (5.818)
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28. Financial instruments continved
The above tables do not include forecast data for iabilities which may be incurred in the future but which were not
confracted at 16 September 2023,

The principal reasons for differences between carying volues and contractual undiscounted cash flows are coupon
payments on the fixed rate debt to which the Group is already commitied, future interest payments on the Group's
lease liabilifies, and cash flaws on derivative financiol instruments which are not aligned with their fair value.

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borrowing faciliies available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available ot 146
September 2023, in respect of which ¢ll conditions precedent have been met, amounted 1o £1,516m (2022 - £1.567m).

_ _ Comsolaaled (oap S

T om o Az .

Facility Drawn Undrawn Fachity Dreran Hnsrawr

£m £m £m £ £m £m

Commilted Revolving Credit Facility 1,500 - 1,500 1.500 - 1.500
Pubilic Bond due in 2034 3%0 390 - 390 320 -
145 private placement 81 81 - 87 a7 -
llovo 29 15 14 77 12 45
Other o 3 1 2 8 2
T 2,003 487 1,514 2,064 497 1 567

Uncommitted facilities available at 14 September 2023 were:

Consoickiad Groun

2023 B 07T
Facility Drawn Undrawn =zl Do LI coaer
£m £m £m £rm1 i Lm
llover 115 50 &5 188 9% 89
Azucarera 33 1 32 34 2 34
Ching 35 - 35 39 - 39
Moneymarkel lines - - - 100 - 100
Other 180 25 155 162 40 122
363 76 287 525 141 3a4

In addition to the abave facililies there gre also £149m {2022 - £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the
purposes of issuing letters of credit and guarantees in the nomal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m due in 2034. included are defered financing costs totalling £10m which
have been capitalised against the bond and are to be amortised overifs term.

Uncommitied bank borrowing tacilities are normally reaffirmed by the banks annually, although they can be withdrawn
al any ime.

Refer to note 10 for details of the Group's capital commitments and 1o note 29 for a summary of the Group's
guarantees.

J) Capital management

The capilul shuclure of The Group is presented in the consohdated balance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capital management. capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attibutable to equity shareholders. totaling
£8,195m {2022 - £8.106m). The consolidated statement of changes in equity provides details on equity and nofe 21
provides details of loans and overdrafts, Short- and medium-term funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan
and overdraft facilities, both committed and uncommitted, with o range of counterparties and maturities. Longer-term
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond the private placement notes and committed syndicated lean facilities.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and fo
enable successful future development of the business. The Board monitors return on capital by divisicn and determines
the overall level of dividends payable to shareholders,

From time to time the trustee of the ABF Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust purchases ABF shares in the market to
satisfy awards under the Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back into the market. The Group
does not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

29. Contingencies
Litigation and other proceedings against the Group are not considered material in the context of these financial
statements.

Where Group companies enter into financial guarantee contracts to guaraniee the indebtedness of other Group
companies, the Group considers these fo be insurance arrangements and has elected to account for therm as suchin
accordance with IFRS 4. In this respect, the guarantee contract is treated as a contingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the relevant Group company issuing the guarantee will be required to make a payment under
the guarantee.
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29. Contingencies continved

As at 16 September 2023, Group companies have provided quarantees in the ordinary course of business amounting fo
£1,724m (2022 - £1,754m),

In 2021, a Thai court ruled in favour of ABF's Ovalting business in Thailand in o legal action it brought against one of its
suppliersin respect of a contracival dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 2019 the supplier had
overcharged Ovaltine Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 billion Thai baht (£50m: 2022 - £52m). The relevant
contractual relationship bebweesn the Group and its supplier terminated at the end of 201%. The Group has not yet
recorded an asset in respect of this matter as the defendant is appealing the judgment. Since the balance sheet date,
a proclamation from the appeal court in Thailand has been made regarding the appeal by the defendant that reverses
the previous judgement that was given in 2021. We are currently reviewing next steps with legal counsel.

30. Related parties

The Group has a controlling shareholder relationship with its subsidiary company. ABF, with the frustees of the Garfield
Weston Foundation and with cerlain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. Further details of the controling
shareholder relationship are included in note 32, The Group has o related party relationship with its associates and joint
ventures (see note 32) and with its directors. In the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered into
by the Group have been contracted cn an arm's length basis.

Material transactions and year end balances with related parlies were as follows:

) 2023 7032
ricte £000 £250
Dividends paid by Withington Investments Limited and Asscciated British Foods plc {"ABF)
and received in a beneficial capacity by:
[l trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and their close family 1 15,954 16,217
(i} directars of Wittngton Investments Limited who are not frustees of the Foundation and
ther close family 2 3,405 3.334
Sales to and commissions paid to companies with common key management personnel on
normal frading terms 3 9,912 16,871
Amounts due from companies with commaon key management personnel 3 1,028 2.898
Sales 1o joint venlures on nomal frading terms 40,645 5411
Soles to assooates on normal frading terrms 88,753 73.360
Purchases from joint ventures on normal trading terms 482 267 436,467
Purchases from associates on normal trading ferms 97.844 13.879
Amounts cue from joint ventures 45,065 48,655
Amouynts due from associales %.045 2,451
Amounts due 1o joint ventures 17,609 30214
Ammounts due fo associales 7,161 594
Provision for doubtiul detts on omounts due from associates {300) 1300]

1. The Gariicld Wes*on Foundaton {"he Foundarion’) is an Enghsn cnaritable frust, es*ablished in 1958 by 1ne lae W Garfield ‘Weston. The
Foundaiion has no drect interest in the Company. but as a* 14 Seplerrber 2023 was the benehcial awner of 483.073 sharas {2022 683 073
saares) in Wittingtor Inves'ments Limiited reoresenting 79.25% (2022 79.23%) of the Company’s issued share copifal and is, thereore, the
Comeoany's ulimate controling party. At 16 Seatemibyer 2023 tustees of the Foundahon comprised ning grondconilgren of tna late W Garlield
weston of wnan five are children of the late Garry H, weston,

2. Detalls of the dractors of Wittingtan Investmenis Limited are given on gpage 7. Directors’ remuneration is desclosed innote 5

3. Tne company witn comman key management cersonnal is the George Weston Linited groun in Canada,

Amounts due from joint veniures include £32m (2022 - £29m) of finance lease receivables (see nete 16). The remainder
of the balance is trading balances. All but £4m {2022 - £4r) of the finance lease receivables are non-current.

Details of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates are set out in nate 32,

31. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50, 1otal value of £74.6m, wili be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023.

32. Group entities

Control of the Group

The trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation {'the Foundation']are controlling sharehoiders of the Company. Certain
other individuals, including certain members of the Weston family who hold shares in the Company are, under the Listing
Rules, treated as acting in concert with the frustees of the Foundation and are therefore glso freated as controiling
shareholders of the Company.
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32. Group entifies continued
Subsidiary undertakings

Alist of the Group's subsidiaries as at 14 September 2023 is given belaw.

ABF announced a share buyback programme of £500m in November 2022, In the financial year, ABF purchased 23.7
rmillion ABF shares for £448m and the shares bought back were cancelled. Since the financial year end, a further 2.8
milllion ABF shares were purchased, completing the total £500m buyback programme. ABF has announced the
continuation of a buyback programme, targeting an additional amount of £500m over the next 12 months.

Given the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF plc al 16 September 2023, the effective ownership of
subsidiciies is 56.2% except where ownership percentages are shown. These percentages give the Group's ultimate
interest and therefore dllow for situations where subsidiaries are owned by partly ownad infermediate subsidiaries. Where
subsidlicries have different classes of shares, this is largely for histoncal reasons and the effective percentage holdings
given represent bath the Group's voling rights and equity holding. All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group's
financial statements. Al subsidiaries with an effective holding of less than 50% are subsidicries of ABF plc. Since ABF plc
has greater than 50% effective ownership of these subsidiaries, and the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF

plc. the Group has effective control of these subsidharies.
- T o o % effectlive holdng

Supsicdior, andertacng. ot 58 27

Telectve holimg

Sunaichary wraerckings If not 96.9%

United Kingdom

Weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Streel, Londan,
WIK 4QY, United Kingdom

AB. Exploration Limited

A.B.F. Holdings Limited

A.B.F. Nominees Limited

A.B.F. Properfies Limited

AB Agr Limited

AB Foods Australio Limited

AB Ingredients Limited

AB Mauri [UK) Limited

AB mMaun China Limited

AB Mauri Europe Limitedt

AB Sugar China Holdings Limired
AB Sugar China Limiled

AB Sugar China North Limited
AB Sugar Lirmited

AB Technology Limited

AB World Foods [Holdings) Limited
AB Word Foods Limited

ABF (No. 1) Uimited

ABF (No. 2§ Limited

ABF (No. 3) Limited

ABF BRL Fincince Lid

ABF Energy Limited

ABF Europe Finance Limited
ABF European Heldings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ABF Food Tech investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Products Lirmited
ABF Green Fark Lmifed

ABF Grocery Limited

ABF HK Finance Limited

ARF Ingredients Limited

ABF Investiments plc

ABF Investrments (No.2) Limited
ABF Japan Limited

ABF MXN Finance Limited

ABF Owversens Limited

ABF plc

ABF PM Limited

ABF UK Finance Lmited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ABF ZrAW Finance Limited

ABN {Overseas) Limiled

ABNA Feed Cormpany Limited
ABNA Limited

&4 Wittington Investments  Financial Stalements 2023

Acetum UK Limited {previously Aliec
Technical Centfre Limited)

Agriines Limited

Alled Bokeries Lmited

Alied Grain (Scotland) Limited
Alied Grain {South) Limited

Alied Grain [Southem) Limited
Alied Grain Limited

Allied Mills (No. 1) Lirmited

Alied nills Limited

Adlinson Limited

Associated British Foads Pension Trustees
Limited

Atrium 100 Properties dmited
Alriurn 100 Slores Holdings Limited
Adrium 100G Stores Limited

B.E Internatfional Food: Lirmited
Banbury Agriculiure timited

British Sugar {(Overeas) Limited
British Sugar plc

B3SO {China) Limited

Cereal Industies Limiled

Cereform Limited

Dairy Consulting Limited

Davijon Food Limited

Dorset Cereals Lmited

Eastbhow Securifies Limifed
Elsenham Quality Foods Limited
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & Grain Lirmited

Food Investments Limited

G. Costa (Holdings) Limited

G, Costa and Company Limited
Germain's LK) Limited
Greencoal Limited

Graencoat Formm Limited

H 5 Limitec!

llovo Sugar Africa Holdings Lirmited
John K. King & Sons Limited
Kingsgale Food Ingredients Limited
KO2 Limited

LeallC Limited

Maun Products Lmited
Mountsfield Park Finance Limited
Natural Vetcare Limited

Nutrition Trading {International) Limited
Mutrition Trading Lirnited

Patak {Spices) Limited
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32. Group entiti

Sabtsiciary unzetakings

Defectveholidng

% effecive holding

Subsidicary ncer ok ngs I ot 56,27

Patok Food Limited

Patak's Breads Limited

Patak's Foods 2008 Limited
Premier Nulrifion Products Limited
Pride Qils Public Limited Company
Prirmcrk (UK.} Limited

Primark Austriar Lirmited

Primark Mode Limited

Primark Pension Adminisiration Services Limited
{dissalved 24 Qctober 2023}

Primarrk Stores Limited

Primary Diets Lirmited

Primciry Nulrtion Limited

Pro-Active Mufrition Limited

R. Twining and Company Limited

Reflex Nutrtion Limited

Roses Nufition Lid

Seedcole Systermn: Lmited

Serpentine Securifies Limited (dissolved 26
September 2023)

Shep-Fair Products Limited

Spectum Aviation Limitad

Speedibake Limited

Sunilest Bakenes Limiled

The Bakery School Limited [dissotved 3 October
2023)

The Bilington Food Group Limited

The Home Grown Sugar Company Limiled
The Jordans & Ryvita Cormpany Limited
The: Natural Sweetness Company Lmited
The Roadmap Company Limited

The Silver Spoon Company Limited

Tip Top Bokeries Limited

Tndent Feeds Limited

Twining Crosfield & Co. Limited

Vivergo Fuels Limited

w. Jordan & Son (Silo) Umited

W, Jarcian [Ceredis) Limited

worcham Cravel Company Limited (The)
Westmil Foods Limited

weston Biscuit Company Limited {The)
Weston Foods Limited

Weston Research Laboratories Limited
Worldwing Investments Limiled

Vernon House, 40 New North Road,
Huddorsficld, West Yorkshire HD1 SLS. Uriled
Kingdom

Proper Nutty Limited

Fox Taibot House, Unif 4 Greenways Business
Fark. Belinger Ciose, Chinpenham, Wiltshire,
SNT5 18BN United Kingdom

National Milk Records Limited

National Livestock Records Limited

National Milk Records Trustee Company Umited
Nordic Siar Lid

Norfhern Treland

| College Piace Norith, Bellast, BTT 68G.
Urited Kingdom

James Nelll, Limited

Unit 4, 211 Castle Road, Randalstown, Co.
Antim, BT41 2EB, United Kingdom

Jordan Bras. (ML) Limited

Nutition Services (International] Lmrted
Vistavet Limited

Scofland

32 Ketvin Avenue, Hilingfon Park, Giosgow.
(552 41T, United Kingdom

MNohonal mMilk Laboratones Limited

180 Glentanar Road, Glasgow, G22 7UP,
United Kingdom

ABN [Scotland] Limted

Miller Samuel LLP, RWF House,

3 Renfiold Street, Glosgow, G2 5E4
United Kingdom

Korway Foods Limiled

Korway Holdings Umited

Patak's Chitled Foods Limited

United Kingdom — Non ABF
weston Centre, 10 Grosvenor Streel, Lendon,
WK 4Q¥, United Kingdom

Clinton Farms Limited 100%
[dlissolved 19 September 2023)
George Weston Limited {domrnant) 100%
Richmaond Hill Hotel [Operations) Limited 100%
WINDL Offices Limited 85%
wittingtoin Investments (Ahren) Limited 100%
Withnglon Investments [BPA Il Limited 100
{dormant)
wittington Investments {BSPF) Limited {dormant) 100%
wittinglon Invesimenis (BY M) Limited [dormant) 100%
witlinglen nvesiments {Careploces) Limited 100%
|dormant)
wittingten Investments (FAPI) Limited (dormant} 100%
wittington Investments (FAPIHY Limited 100%
[dormant)
witlington Investments (FIPL) Limited (dormant) 10052
witlington Investments (Next Wave} Urmited 100%
[dormant)
Wittington investments (Properties) Limited 100%
willington Investmenis [Reof) Limited (domnant] 100%
Wittington nvestmenls (Richrmond Hil Hotel} 100%
Limited
Wittington Investments Finance Limited 1007
196 Totlenham Couwrd Road, London, WIT 7LQ
Heat & Son Limited 100%
Heal's Holdings Limited 100%
Heal's Pension Fund Trustees Limited 100%
Heal's plo 1007
Hesals {1810} Limnited 100%
181 Piccadilly, Londor, WIA TER
F. & p. Limited 1007
Fortnum & mason {Export) Limited 100%
Forinum and Masen [London) Limited 1005
Forinum and Mason Hospifality Limited 100%
Fortnum & mMason Plc 100%
Fortnurs Limiled 100%
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32. Group entities continued

T v eflechve hodng
ungdertakings I* no” 58.2%

Sty
United Kingdom — Non ABF — qudit exermpt

The following subsidiary companias of wittington Investmenils
Limited {nole that Wittington Investmenls [BSP) Limited is o
subsicliary of Wittington Investments (Finance) Limited} have
availed themselves of the audit exemption for subsidiary
company under s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2006 for the
financial year ending September 14ih 2023,

As the parent company (or ullimate parent company in the
case of Wittington Investmenis (RSP} Limited), Wittington
Invesiments Limited guarantees all gutstanding fiabilities to
which each subsidiary company listed below is subject as af
September 16th 2023:

Westan Cenfre, 10 Grosvenan Sfreat, L ondon,
WI1K 4QY, United Kingdom

Subsichary unaertakngs
Australia
Building A, Level 2, 1] Talovera Road,
Norih Ryde. NSW 2113 Austrolia

AB Maur Overseas Holdings Limited

AB Maur Pakistan Pty Limited

AB Mauri ROW Holdings Pty Lirmiled

AB pMauri South america Pty Limited

AB Mauri South west Agia Pty Limited

AB Mauni Technology & Development Pty
Limited

AB mMauri Technology Pty Limited

AB wWarld Foods Pty Ltd

Anzchem Pty Limited

AusPac Ingredients Phy Lid

CCD Animal Health Ply Ltd

Dagan Trading Phy. Lid

Food Investments Pry. Limited

George Weston Foods (Victona) Pty Lid
George Weston Foods Limited

Indonesian Yeast Company Pty Limited
taciurn Fermentotion Biad Pty Limited

Mauri Fermentation Chile Pty Limited

Mawur Fermentation China Piy Limifed
Mauri Fermentation India Pty Limiled

rauri Fermentation Indonesic Pty Limited
rMaur Fermentation Malaysia Pty Umited
Mciur Fermentation Philippines Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Vietnam Pty Limited
Mawn Yeast Australia Pty Limited

NE&C Enferprises Py Lid

Semol Ingredisnts Pty Limited

The Jordars and Ryvita Company Awstralia Py
Ltd

Yumi's Quality Foods Py Lid

35-37 South Corporate Avenue, Rowville,
VIC 3178, Australic

AB Food & Beverages Australics Ply. Limited
170 South Gippsfand Highway, Dandenong.
VIC 3175, Ausiralia

ABF Wynyard Park Limited Partnership
Auslria

Wollzeille T2, QG 1010 Vienna, Ausing
Primarrk Austria Lid & Co KG
Krottenbachsirasse, 82-88/5ig 1/Top 5. 11590
Vienna, Austrict
Nutrlabs GmibH
Bangladesh
Lovel 13 Shanta Westom Tower,

Bir Uttam adir Shawkat Road, 184 Tejgaon A,
Dhaka 1208, Banglodesh

Twinings Ovaltine Bangladesh Limited

witington Investments [Apollo) Limited 100%
{Company number 08637983)

Avery Row Management Limited 1005
{Company number 11379308)

Listergate Student Holdings Limited 100%
{Company numiser 11289745)

Howard Investments Limited 100%
{Company numizer 03729125)

WILH Investments) Limited 100%
[Company number 04224010)

Wittington investments [Bestpor) Limited 100%
{Company numiser 057246095)

wittington Invesiments {BSP VIl Limited 100%
[Compary number 055838048)

wittington Invesimenis [B3P] Limitad 1005
{Company number 10122727)

wittington Invesirmenis {(Developments} Limited 100%
{Company number 07727 700]

wittington Investments {Dunedin ) Lirmited 100%
{Company number 08307 734)

wittington Investments {Dunedin) Limited 100%
{Company number 05875249

wittington investments {Grophite] Umiled 108
IComparny numizer 08443407]

Witington Investments (Harbourvest) Limited 100%
{Company number 046432271)

willington Investments {OCP} Umited 100%
ICompany number 06432285)

wittinglon Investments PEF {Euro) Limited 100%
[Company nurmber 08336015)

Wwittington Investments PEF (GBP} Limited 100%
{Company number 08111797)

Wwitlington Investments PEF {USD] Limited 100%
f[Company number 05094325)

wittington Investments (Privale Equity] Limited 100%
[Company number 09973685)

wittington Investrment {Sand Aire) Limited 100%
[Company number 04615376)

wittingten Investments [VO1) Limited 100%
[Company number 06576342)

witinglon Investments [WHEB] Limited 100%
[Company number 06574301)

wittington Invesimerts [WPX) Limited 100%
[Company number 06343087)

Argentina

Mariscal Antonio dosé de Sucre 632 2nd Floar,
Buenos Aires 1428, Argenting

AR daur Hispanoamerico S.A.

Surgras S.A [in liquidation)

Compahia Argenting De Levadungs 5.41.C.
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32. Group entities continued

Sobgdhery undertnangs
Belgium

Inclustiepark 2d, 9820 Merelbeke, Belgium

AB Maun Belgium NV

Chaussee de la Hulpe 177720, 1170 Bruxclios.
Belgium

Primark SA

Hefec veho

fretds

Stbddany Lrderfakings

Brazil

Avenida Tieté, [-233 Baranca do Rio Tiefé,

City of Pederneiras, State of Sao Paulo.

CEP 17.280-000, Brazit

AB Brasil Induslia e Camércio de Alimentos Lida
Alomedo Madeira 328, 20th Floar. Room 2005,
Alphavile  Barueri, Sao Pauio 06454-010, Brazil
AB Enzimas Brasit Comercial Lida

Avenida Dra. Ruth Cardoso, n.®7.221, 11° Faor,
Rocm 1101 {porte), Condominic Edificio
Birrnanin 21, Pinheiras, CEP 05425-902, City of
Sdo Pavlo. Stafe of 5Go Paul, Braz!

AB Vista Brasil Comércio De Alimentagio
Animal Lida

Canada

Biake, Cassels & Graydon LLP, 199 Bay Street,
Suite 4000, Toronto, Ortano M5L TAS, Canada
AB maurt {Canada) bimited

Chile

Mircflores Streef No. 222, 28 Floor, Sanfiago,
Chiie

Calsa Chite Inversiones Limitada

China '

No. T Tongoheng Streel, A Cheng Districh,
Harbin, Helfongjiang Province, Ching

AB (Harbin) Food Ingredients Co.. Lid. {(in
fiquidation)

North Huang He Road. Rudong

New Economic Development Zone,
Nantong City, Jiongsu Province, Ching

AR Agri Animal Nutnfion {Nantorng) Co.. Lid
AR Agr Arimal Nutdfion {Rudong] Co.. Lid.
No 28, South Shunjin Road, Yinkai Disfric,
Tongehuarn, Shacny Province. China

AB Agri Animal Nutition (Shaanxi} Co., Ltd.
Room 7-1068. No. &8 Shijiu Hubel Rocd, Churxi
Street, Gaochun Disfrict, Nanjing City, Jiangsu
Frovince, China

AB Agri Pumeixin Tech (Jiongsu) Co. Lid.
Chuangxin Road, Tonggu Industny Zone, Sandu
Town, Tonggu County, Jiangxi Province, China
AR Agn Pumeixin Tech [Jiongs) Co. Lid.

Room 2802, Roffles City Changning.

fo, 1189 Changning Rood. Changring Disfrict,
Shanghat, 200051, China

AB Enzymes Trading [Shanghai) Co., Ltd

Room 2803, Roffles City Changning.

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changring District,
Shanghc, 200051, China

ABMNA Management [Shanghal) Co.. Lid.
ABNA Trading [Shangha) Co., Lid

Room 2906 kafflcs City Chongning,

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changning District.
Shanghai, 200051, China

Associated Bifish Foods Holdings (Chinaj Co., Lid

Unit 006, Roorn 401, Floor 4, Buiding 1, No., 15
Guanghua Roadl, Chaoyang Distict, Bejing,
Ching

AB Mauri (Beiing) Food Sales and
Marketing Company Linited

Buiding 1, 35 Chifeng Road | Yangpu District,

Shanghai 200092, Ching

AB Mauri Foods (Shanghai] Company Limiled 51%
868 Yongpu Road, Pujiong Towrn,

sinhang District, Shoanghai 201112, Chinag
ABNA [Shanghai) Feed Co., Lid.

14 fuhai Road, linghai Development Zone,
Ticnjin, Ching

ABNA [Ticmjin) Feed Co, Lid

Shu Shan Modern Indusirict Zone of Shou
County, Huainan Cily, Anhuw Province, China
ABNA Feed [Anhui} Co., Lid.

145 Xincheng Road, Tengao ECONQIMic
Dovelopment Zone. Anshaorn,

ticoning 114225, Ching

ABMA Feed [Liaoning) Co., tid.

17 Xiangyang Streel, Tu Township, Chayou
Qianai. Inner Mongoha, Chinc

Botian Sugar Industry [Chayou Qiangi] Co., Ltd.
No. 1 Botian Road, Economic Developmaent
lone, thangbet County, Zhangijiokow City,
Hebel Province, Ching

Botian Sugar Industry [Zhangbei) Co., Lid.
Room 1110, No.388, Changjiang Road,
Nangang Concendrated District, Econamic
Development Zone, Harbin, Ching

Bofian Sugar Indusiry Co.. Lid.

I Industricl Norfh Street, Zhangjiakou, Zhangbei
County, Hebei Province, China

Hebei Maun Food Co.. [d

B lancun Road, Fconomic and Technical
Developmont Zone, Minhang, Shanghaof
200245, Ching

Shanghal AB Food & Beverages Co., Lid

No. 68-1, Shuangliong Road, Fushian Disict,
Yarntai City, Shandong Provinee, China

Yantai Maurt Yeast Co., Lid.

Colombia

Cra 35# 34A-84, Palmira, Vaile, Colombia
Fleischmann Foods S.A.

Ry

Czech ﬁébﬁbﬁc
Nadraini 523, 349 01 Stibro, Czech Repubilic
Badit Tachov s.r.o.

Palladium, Na Poiici 1079/3a, Prague 1, 110 00,
Czech Republic

Prirmicirk E(g@gjgy 51,0,

Denmark

Skiernvej 42, Trastrup, 6920 Videbhcek, Denmark
AB Neo A/S

Middelfortveg 77, Baring, 5446 Asperup.
Denmaork

Cowconnect ApS
Ecuador

Medardo Angel Siva 13 y Panamd, Manzana
12, B Recreo. Hoy Alfaro, Durdn, Guayas,
Ecuodor

ABCALSAS.A.

Eswatini

Ubombo Sugar Hmited, Old Main Road,

Big Bend, Eswatini

Bar Circle Ranch Limited 34%
llovo Swaziland Limited 34%
royen Ronch Limited 34%,
Ubombo Sugar timited 34%
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32. Group enfities continued

Subsichary unclerlokings

if mot 56.2%

hary enaertakrgs

Finland

Tykkimdientie 15t (PO Box 28], Rojarmdki,
FH5200, Finland

AB Engyrngs Oy
Tykkirndientie 150 (PO Box 57), Rajamdki,
052010, Findond

Enzymes Leasing Finkand Oy

Koskelontie 19 B, Espoo, FHI2920, Finlond
Almetrics Reseorch Oy

AB Vista Finland Qy

france

40/42, avenue Georges Pompidou. 69003,
atyon, Fronce

AB mMaun France

25 Rue Anclole France, 92300 Levallois-Ferret,
france

Twinings & Co SAS

11 Rue do mMilan, 75009, Paris, France

ABFl France SAS

Centre Commercial Régional Créteil Soleil,
Niveau 3, 101 Avenue du Général de Gaulle,
24000, Créteill, Fronce

Priimark France SAS

845 Chemin du Vallon du maire, 13240,
Septermes les Valions, France

5P Pherma 3438

IAF Via Europa, 3 rue d' Athenes, 34350 Vendres,
France

Fytexia Group

lyleaa

Gemany

Feldhergstrasse 78, 64293, Dormstadt, Gormany
AB Enzyrmes GrmbH

Schauenburgersirasse 116, 24118, Kiel, Germany
ICFN AG

Wonoshoker Zolisfrasse 59, 22041,

Hamburg, Germany

ABF Deutschland Holdings GmibH

Ohly GrmioH

Ohly Grundbesitz GrmbH

Rheinische Presshefe- und Sprtwerke GmibH
Kennedyplatz 2, 45127, Essen, Germany

Primcrk tode Ltd. & Co KG
Piimark Property GmibH
Hausinger  Sfrasse 4-8,
Germany

Vital Soluhions GmibH
Westendsirasse 28, 60325, Frankfurt am Main,
Germany

Wander GrmbH

Mare-Kahle-alcc 2, D-53113, Bonn, Germany
u\f\yffggt_r_p_i\l Foods Europe GmibH

40764, Langenfeld,

Greece
28, Dimitriow Soufsou Sir, Athens, GR 11521,
Greece

PSH Teal Single Member S.A.

Guernsey

Dorey Courd, Admiral Pork, 54, Petor Port,
GY1 Z2HI, Guermsey

Talsman Guernsey Limited

4B Wittington Investments  Financial Statements 2023

Hong Kong
S5IF. Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road
Kowioon, Hong Kong

Associcted British Foods Asia Pacific
Holdings Gmiled
Hungary

Karolyl utca 12. 3. em., Budaopest, 1053, Hungary
Primark Udetek Kodatol! Feleldsségu’ Tarsasag
{Primark Uzdetek Kit.)

India

#218 & #1219, Bommasandra - hgany bink Raad,
Anekdl Taluk, Bangalore, 560105, india

AB Maur India Private Limited

First Fioor, Regent Sunny Side, 80 Ff Road, 8th
Block, Koramangaola Bengaluru, Karnafoka,
560030, Indic

SPI Specialties Phama Private Limited
G3/41, New Budge Budge Trunk Road, O1d
Dokghar, Kokata, West Bengal, 700141, India
Twinings Private Limited

Indonesia

Wismo GKBILE 3G, Suite 390, N 28 Ui Jend,
Sudirman, Jokorta | indonesio

PT AB Food & Beverages \ﬁdqnesic {in Eiquidgﬁ@n)
Ireland S a '

47 Mary Street, Dubin | reland

Abdadle Finance Limited

Primark Holdings Unlimited Company

Primark Pension Trustees Limited

I Stokes Place, §t Stephen’s Groeon, Dubtin 2,
fretond

Allied mills Ireland Limited

Unit 5. Hebron House, Macdonagh Juncharn,
Kilkenny, R95 191Y, reland

Intellync Technology Limited

Arthur Ryan House, 22-24 Pamel Street.
Dublin 1, fefand

Primairk Limited
Primark Austia Limited
Primark Mode Limited

13 Classon House, Dundrum Business Park,
Dunchum, Dublin 14, D14X9F9 ol

Nutritional Advanced Femulas {reland) Limited

Italy
Vidle Monte Nero, 84, 20135, Milan, Haly

AB Agn ltaly Srl

Via milano 42, 27045, Casteggio, {Pavial, taly
AB G taly S p A

ABF Italy Holdings Sl

Largo francesco Richini 2/A, 20122, Mitan, ltaly
Primark Itaby Sirl.

Via RizzoHo 46, 41126, Modena (MO), taly
Acetaia Fini Modena Sl

Via Sandro Pertinn 440, 401314, Caovezzo (MO,
Mtaly

Acetum S.p.A. Societd Benefit

Via Garibaldi 84, Magenia, 20013, Milan, italy
ALP Immabiliare S.rl.

Via Gran Sasso, 33, Corbetia, 2001 1. Milon, ftaly
BNatural Srl.
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32. Group entities continued

T oFertee holding

Sy Unoe akings

ol 56 25

Sabadiary andertakngs

Malawi
Hlovo House, Churchill Road, Limbe, Malaw
Drweangwa Sugar Corporation Limited

llovo Sugar {Malawi] plc
Malawi Sugar Limited

43%
43%

Malaysia T
Unit 30-01. Level 30, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite,
Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.8, 59200 Jalan
Kernchi, Kualka Lumpur, Malaysia

A_B_F\A'gu”ri'Molcwrsm Sdrj’. Bha.

2%

Malia
171 Old Bokery Street, Valletta, VLT 1455, Malta
Relax Limited

39%

Calsa Perd S.AC.

Mauritius

10th Floor, Standord Chartered Tower,
19 Cybercity, Ebene, Maunifius

llovo Group Financing Services

llove Group Holdings Limited

llove Group Markeling Services Limited
Kilembero Holdings Limited

Sucorma Holdings Limited

Mexico

Poseo de la Reforma 1015, Fisa 6, Suife/Oficing
06wW123, Colonia Lomas de Santa Fe. Delegacion
Cugimalpa de Morelos, Mexico City, 05348, Mexico
AB CALSAS A de CV.

Avenida favier Bomos Siera 495, piso 7 oficing 07-102,
Col. Sania Fo, Alvaro Obregon, Ciudad de Mexico.
01219 Moxico

ACH Foods Mexico, S.de RL de Cv.

Mozambique

KM75  ENI.  Maciana,  Distilo
Provincia de Mapuio, Mosarnbique
nMaragra Agucar, S.A,

de  Maonhica.

Netherands

Mijlweg 77, 3316 BE, Dordrech!, Netherlands
AB Mauri Netheriands B.V.

AB Mauri Netherlands European Holdings BV,
Foods Internaitional Holding B.W.

Van Oldenbameveliploals 36, 3012 AH, Fotferdam,
Nethertands

Primnark Fashion B.Y.

Prirmark Nethedands B.v.

Primark Stil B,

Weena 505, 3013AL Rollerdom, Metheronds
AB Vista Eurape B.V.

7122 15 Adatien,
Netherands

Germains Seed Technology B.V.

Qude Kerkstraat 55 4878 AK. Eften-Leur, Netherlands
taaur Technology B.Y.

Loarderhoogtweg 25, 1107 EB Amstordam,
Nethertands

Westmil Foods Europe B.V.

Dinxperosestraatweg 122,

New Zealand

Building 3. Level 2. Central Business Park, 666 Greal
South Road, Blersie, Aucklond 103], New Zealand

Alled Foods [NZ) Lid

AUsPaC Ingredients NI Limited

George Weston Foods [NZ] Limifed

57 Forge Roud, Siverdale 0932 New Zeclond
Pod's Pies Limited

Nigeria

23 Oha Akinjobi Street, GRA, keja, Lagos, Nigena
Twinings Qvaltine Nigeria Limited

Pakistan

21KM Ferozepur Road, 2 K Hocdkors Drain, Lehore,
Pakistan

AB Maun Pakistan {Private] Limiled
Peru

Av. Republica de Argentina No. 1227, 21 Lo
Chalaca, Calao, Pery

34%

Philippines
86 F Rodrigues Jr. Ave., Ugong Norfe, QCL 1604,
Fosig City, Metro saniic, Phiippines

AB Food & Beverages Philippines, Inc,

1207-1202 Prime Lond Bullding Market Street,
madigal Business Pork, Ayala Alabang,
wuriintupa, 1770, Philippines

AB Maun Philippines, Inc.

Poland

Preemystowa 2, 67-100 Nowe SO Lubuskie, Poland
AB Foods Polska Spdlka 7 ograniczonc
cdpowiedziclinoscia (AR Foods Polske 5p. 2 0.0
Towarowa 28.00-839 Warsaw, Poland

Primark Sklepy spolka z ograniczona
odpowiedziainoscia [Primark Sklepy sp 2.0.0)

ul. Rabowicka 29431, 62-020. Swarzedz - Jasin,
Paolond

R. Twining and Company Spétka z ograniczond
odpt))wiedz_io\noscio (R. Twining ana Company Sp 2
0.0

Ul Gidwna 3A. Bruszczewo, 64-030, Smigiel. Poland
AB Neo Polska spolka z orgariczona
odpowiedzialnoscia [AB Neo Pokka Sp. z.0.0)
[previously AB Agr Fﬁs_l_(_c_x_s_p_, _Z:(_J._O_:J___

Porfugal

Avenida Salvador Allendle, n.? 99, Lisboa Oeiros,
JuliGo da Barra, Paco de Arcos e Caxias, 2770-157,
Paca de Arcos, Portugal

AB Maun Portugal, S.A,

Ruo Castitho 50, 1250-071, Lisbon, Porfugal

Lojas Primark Portugal - Exploracas, Gestao e
Administracao de Espacos Comercials SA.
Romania

District 1, 165 Calea Floreasca, One Tower, 12th
Floor, Bucharest, Romanic

Primark Magazing S.R.L. {previcusly P.S.R. Indiga)
Rwanda N
Nycrugenge District, Nvarugenge Soctor,
Kigaoli City, Rwanda

Wovo Sugar (Kigafi) Limited

Singapore

80 Robinson Road, #02-00, 068898 Singapore
AB Mauri Investments [Asia) Pre Lid

112 Robinson Rood #05-01, 068902 Singapore
AB Vista Asia Ple. Limited

Slovakia

Staromesiska 3, 817 03 Brofislova - Stare Mesto,
Stovakia

Primoark Stewakia s.r.o.

Slovenia

Bleiweisove cesta 30. Lubliona, 1000, Slovenia
Frimark Trgovine. frgovsko pedjetie, d.o.o.

56%

54%
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% efectve ~clang

% elad five holdng

subsdiary undertacergs ot 56 2% Subsgiony underfaangs if rol hé 7%
South Africa fanzama
1 Nokwe Avenue. Ridgeside. Umhianga Rocks. llovo Tanzania Limited
Kwarzulu Naial, 4320, South Africa Kilombero Sugar Comparny Limited 42%
CGS Investments (Pty) Limited Thailand
Eost afican Supply [Pty) Limited 11ih Floor, 2535 Sukhumvit Rood, Kwaong
Glendale Sugar [Py} Lid Bangohak Khet Prakhancng, Bangkok, 10260,
) . Thailand
llovo Distributors {(Pty) Limited AB Food & B Thaitand] Ui
llovo Sugar {South Afnca} Proprietary Limiled Oold' evirglges [ 10‘ and) Lid.
llovo Sugar Africa Proprietary Limited ABF HQ ings (Thedlanc Lid .
liprop (Ply) lmiled I Empire Tower, 24ih Floor, Unif 2412-2413,
'Prop {Mly) Lim South Sothorn Road, Yannawa, Sothom,
Lacsa {Pty) Limited 39%  Bangkok, 10120, Thaiand
MNoodsberg Sugar Company {Pty] Lid AB World Foods Asia Lid
Reynolds Brothers {Pty) Lid 229/110 Moo 1, Teparak Road!, T. Bangsaolhong,
S.A. Sugar Distributors [Pty) Limited A, Bangsaothong. Semuiprakarn, 10540, Thailond
Spain Josol Asic Pacific Limited [in liquication) S
Calle _Corde{?oi Marcelo Spinoia. 42, 28016, Turkey
Madid, Spain Aksokcd Mahalies, Kavakpinar, Kume Eviern
AB Azucarerd Ibena, S.L. Sociedad Unipersonal N, 5 Bandirma- Bolikosi, 10245, Turkoy
AB Vista lberia, 5.4 Maur Maya Sanayi AS.
Calle Levodura, 5 14710, Villamibia, Cerdaba, United Arab Emirates
Spain Office 04° Jafza LOEB 15 Jebo! All Freczone,
AB Mauri Food, 5.A Dubal, PO BOX 174620, United Arab Ernirates
AB Maur Span, S.L.U. AB Mauri Middle East FZE
ABF Iberia Holding S.L. United States
C/ Escultor Coomenie n®. 2. Entreplanta. CT Corporaton System. 818 West Seventh Street,
Benavenie, Zamona, Spain Suife 930, Los Angeles CA 90017, United States
Agroteo S.A. 30%  AB mMaur Food Inc.

Cafle Comunidad de Murcia, Parcela LIE-T-03,
Plataforma Logistica de Frago, 22520, Huesca,
Spoin

Alternative Swine Nutrition, S.L.

Calie Escoles Pies 49, Planta Baja, 08017
Barcelona, Spain

CR Heglthcare Espana. S.L.U.

Avienda Virgen do Monfsemat, 44 Costeliol
08719, Barcelona, Spain

Germains Seed Technology, 5.A.

Plrza Pablo Ruiz Picasso $/N, Tore Picasse,
Plarita 37, Madrid, Spoin

Nlowvo Sugar Bspana, S.L.

Gran Via, 32 5o 28013, Madhid, Spain
Primark Tiendas, 5.L.U.

8 2 Cale Via Serviciol. 2 CP. 19190 Torce,
Guaadalgiara, Soain

Primark Logistica, S.L. Sociedad Unipersondl
Sif Lanka

124 Templers Road, Mount Lavinia. Si Lanka
AB Mauri Lanka [Private) Limited

Sweden
Retzius vdg 8 171 65, Soina, Sweden
Lorodan AB

Switzerland
Eabrikstrasse 10, CH-3176, Neuesnegg. Swilserdond
wanderAG .

Taiwan

3F-1, Wo 161, Sec 4, Nanking £ Rd, Taipei City
104, Taiwan (Province of Chinaf

AB Focd and Bevgrqges To'\wquniulnc.
Tanzania

Msolwa aMill Dffice, Kidaiau, Kiombero Disirict,
Tanzania

llgvo Distillers {Tanzania) Limited
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The Corparation Trust Company, Corporation
Trust Center. 1200 Orange Siieet. Wimington DE
19801, United States

AB Agr US. Inc.

AB Enzymes, Inc.

AR Vista. Inc.

AB Word Foods US, Inc.

ABF North America Corp.

ABF Noarth Amenca Holdings. Inc.
Abitec Corporation

ACH Capitai Ventures, Inc.

ACH Food Companies, Inc.

ACH Jupiter LLC

BokeGood, LLC

Gearmains Seed Technology. Inc.
PGP Intermnational, Inc,

Primark US Caorp.

Prosecco Source, LLC

SPI Pharma, Inc.

5Pl Polyals, LLC

Twinings North America, Inc.

C T Corporation System, 155 Federal Street Suife
700, Boston. MA 02110, United Statcs

Primark GCM LLC

C T Corporafion Systern, 330 N.Brand Bhvd.,
Glendale, Calfornia 91203, United States
PennyPacker, LLC

158 River Road, Unit B, Ciiffor, N} 07014,
United Stafes

Balsamic Express LLC

158 River Road, Unif A, Chfton, NJ 07014,
United States

Modena Fine Foods, Inc.

251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808, United
States

Fytexia Corp.
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v efechve olaing

Teeleclve halding

Sunsidiary anaoriakings il no 36.2% Sunsidary ondertaki-gs IF ot 58 2
Uruguay ABF PM Lirmited
Cno. Carlos Antonio Lopoz 7547, [Company numiber C0484887)
Morfevideo, Uruguay A.B.F. Properties Limiled
levadura Uuguaya $.4, [Company number 00483361}
Venezuela ABF UK Finance Limited
Oficinas Once 3 (N° 11-3) y Once 4 (N° 11-4). [Company numier 07267 422)
Tomre Mayupan, Centro Comercicl San Luis, ABF US Holdings Limited
Av.Princiool Urbanizacion San Luis, cruce con {Company number 05659249
Colle Comercio, Caracos. Bolvarian Repubic ABF ZMW Finance Limited
of venezuela {Company number 13485724)
Ahmemlt?% F\e\schmonn, C.A.: 7 ABN (Oversess) Limited
Comparic de Almentos Lahinoomencang {Company number 00145374)
de Venszuela (CALSA] 5.A. ; S
= Afrium 100 Properties Umiled
Vlefr;un:)o i Kb Street {Company number 04502487)
Unit 2, 100 Nguyen Thi Min, ai Sireet, : [
ward 6, Distict 3. Ho Choi Minh City, Vietnam Eﬁ)‘ﬂj Ler?ysr:iﬁy;‘?gzég&ig”ed
Pa— P F
AB Agri Vietnam Comp011y L\m\‘re_*d_ Alriurm 100 Steres Limited
La Ngo Commune, Dinh Quan District, Dong {Campany nurmber 05007953
Nai Province, Viefnam - L
s ; British Sugar {Overseas) Lmited
A8 Maur Vietnam Limited I . 37% . (Compgny number 02400085j
ifoTblab I Estates Plot No. 1180 Lubomb BSO {China} Limiled
okamboio Estates Plot No. o Lubomba ber 03799408
Racd, Off Greal North Road, Zambic (Comnpany number 03759608)
o G. Costa {Holdings) Limited
llove Sugar (Zambia) Limiled (Company nurmber 03679738)
Manga chs PLC o 4%% Mountsfield Park Finonce Limited
Tukunka Agricuitural Limited 42% {Company number 07882348)
fambic Sugar ple 2% Twining Crosfisid 8 Co Limited

ABF — audit exempt
In accordance with section 4794 of the Companies Act
2006 {the 'Act'), and subject to comphance with the
requirernents of that scction including the provision of o
statutory guarantee from Associated British Foods plc, the
following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of
the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts in
respect of the financial year ended 16 September 2023:

Sooachary andertakings

[Company numiber 00144200}
Worldwing Investments Limited
[Company numiber D27 78854)

A.B. Exploration Limited
[Company number D0487323)
AB Maur China Limited
(Company number 12109070}
AB Maur Europe Limited
{Company numter 02833738}
AB Sugar China Heldings Limited
[Company number 0?4683646)
AB Sugar Ching Limited
{Company number §94491483)
ABF [Mo. 1) Limited

[Company number 04648120)
ABF [No.Z) Limiled

[Company number 0334687%9)
ABF (No.3) Limited

[Company number 00155305)
ABF BRL Finance Lid
[Company number 1 1001902)
ABF Finance Limited
[Company numiber 34459735)
ABF Food Tech Investmenis Limited
[Company number 00172141)
ABF Funding

{Company numlber 05380813)
ABF HK Finance Lirmited
{Company number 077461084)
ABF Japan Limited
ICompony numiser 00452278)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

32. Group entities continued

Joint ventures

A list of the Group's joint ventures as at 16 September 2023 is given below. All joint ventures are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Jounl ventues % holding loitventres holdig
United Kingdom Room 408, &th Floor, 1379, Bocheng Rood, Pudong
wWoston Cenlre, 10 Grosvenaor Stroel, London, Neaw Distiict, Shanghal, Ching
WIK 4QY, United Kingdom AB Mauri Yihai Kery Food Marketing (Shanghal] Co.,
Frontier Agricutture Limited so%  Lid S0%
Boothmans [Agriculture) Limited 509, Ta Ha Comprehensive Indushial Park, Fuyu County
h - Economic Development Arca, Qiginar, Helongiong
Forward Agronomy Limited 50% Provinee. Chino
© PP [Agriculivre) Limited S0% AR raur Yibai Kerry (Fu Yu) Yecst Tachnolagy Co.,
GH Grain Limited 50% Lt 0%
GH Grain {MNo. 2] Limited 0% 9fonggong Road, Shage Vilage, Nanpu Town,
Grain Harvesters Limited 50% Quangaong Area, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, Ching
Intracrop Limited 50% AB Mauri Yihai kerry [Quanznou] Yeas! Technology
Nomix Limited 50%  Co.Lid, 0%
North Wold Agronomy Lirnited 50% Infersaction of;iqorong Avenua and Zhou_shon
Phoenix Agronomy Limiled 0% Q%‘gn% Gang Disiict, Zhoukouw, Henan Province,
SOYL Limitect o SUF AR Maui Yiha Kerry [Zhoukou) Yeas! Technology
The Agronomy Partnership Limited 0% Co. Lo 0%
Berth 36, Tes! Road, Eastern Docks. Southompton, Xinshie inclusiicd Zone, Machona Town, Donaeucn
Hampshire, SOT4 3GG. United Kingdom C;Z;nggo;jg fProvmc-é, Ch(fno G fown. Longguen,
Southarmpton Giain Terminal Limited S0 A Mauri Yinai Kerry {Dongguan} Foed Co., Lid 50%
Riverside Wissingion Roqd, Naylond Colchesler, Fnland T o -
Essex, CO& 4LT, Unted Kingdom . Tvkkimdentie 15b (PO Bax 57), Rejormdk]
Angla Grain Holdings Limited 0% FIN-05201. Finland
Anglia Grain Services Limited S0% Roal Oy 0%
Northants Apc, Rushion Rooad. Kettoring, NNT4 TR RFance T
; g
England. Umteg K‘”Q_C“?m 52, Chemin du Mouin, 695701, Caron, Darailly,
WNepvara Oot Milling Limited 50% France
Unit 8 Burnside Business Park, Bumside Road. Marke! Syrchronis 50,
Brovyton, TR 3UX, United Kingdom German
B.C.W [Agriculture] Limited S0% Brodio 4 29368 Werne, Germmarny
Witham St Hughs, Lincoln, LNG 9TN, United Kingdom UNIFERN’A GmblH s Co’KG 0%
hormix Enviro Limiled 0% INA Nahvmittel GmbH 50%
Fagle Labs incubatar, 28 Chesterton Road, UNIFERM V. I GrbH 5%
Cambiidge, CB4 3AZ, United Kingdom M Verwdailungs Gm A
Yeigro Lid 509 iﬁfg g é‘?Bi&H Werne, Germaony o
Kingseat, Newrmacher, Abercleenshire, ABZ1 OUE i w2 e ©
Eurcagkem Limited 50% relan
Lothian Crop Specialisis Limited B - 503/; iggf:échrse E;?gnsa(:oumry Cluly, Rathcore, Co. Meaalh,
Unded-ngdom ~ Non ABF Independent Milk Latboratones Lid 0%
Protogis House, Blythe Gale, Blythe Valley Pork, Jopan
Salibll, BRO 8AH
38F Atago Green Hils Mon Tower, 2-5-1 Atago,
Tango Real Estate LLP L. 80% Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-6236, Japan
Second Floar, 1 Wateroo Street, Bimingham B2 578 Twinings Janan Co Lt 0%
Nurton Developments [Quintus) Lmited 50%, i’_o_l-dng' pan & _ _ &
Australia . .
1 1-31
Buiding A, Level 2. 11 Talavers Rocel, Norih Ryde gg;’;gﬁ'ﬁ%&g ok 9. miesjsc, KOD 61-313.
NSW 2113, Australio I
Fortnum & Masons Ply Limited 33% :;—I;er—:-r—:-fgggkg Seloo I S
Chile . .
. . , ., Umh 3
Ave, Bolmaceda 3500, Valdivia, Chile Lngyj;\?gg?i?g(’jlggirgfimlgg anga ROCks
Levaduras Colico 3.A. e e 0% Glendale Distiing Company 50%
China §5c"n T T T e
1828 Tigjueshan Road, Huangdac Distict. Qingdao, €/ Ruimunda Ferndnder. Vilaverde 28, Madrd,
Shandong Province, Ching Seain
Qingdao Xinghua Cereal Oil and Foodstuff Co.. Ltd 25% Compania de Melazas, § A. fin iquication] 50%
1 East Ren Min Road, Regiment 46, Cocodala, United States
Xinjcing, Chirng . .
e The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust
AB Maur Yinai Kerry (Cocodala) Food Co. Lid. _ Cenfer. 1209 Orange Sireet. Wimnington DE 19801,
forevicusly Xinjiang Maur Food., Lid) 50% United States
Room 607, éth floor. 1379, Bocheng Road. Pudong Stratcs Foods LLC 509,
New Distict, Shanghai, China - :
- L Stratas Receivables ILLC 50%
AB Mauri Yihai Kery Investment Company Limiled 50% : e
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

32. Group entities confinved

Associates

A list of the Group's associates as af 16 September 2023 is given below. All associates are included in the Group's

finmncial statements using the equity methad of accounting.

o

) .ol:hnic;r

Associates T -"7; he ehing Associalos
United Kingdom PT Inclo Fermex 49%
Pacioll House, Duncan Close, Maultan Park industricl P.T1. Jaya Fermex 49%
Estate, Northampion, NIN3 oW, United Kingdorn PT Sama Indah 497,
Bakers Basco Limifed 20% srael T T
Patemaster House, 65 31. Pauls Chuchyard, 2. Harokmim st. Holon Azrefl Cenler Buiiing B, lsraol
London, EC4mM BAB. United Kingdom A C ST Lic 437
C. Czamikow Limited 43% TR i
Carmnikow Group timited 43% ;
. . 1 L 2- , i
C. Ceamikow Sugar Futures Limited 43% ércr BOLQOQ;G‘, 25210 122 pifan. ol .
C. Czamikow Sugar Limited 43% ZICmikaw Tana ar - e
Sugarworld Limited 43y Rewo
United Kinad D I & M Bank House, Secand Ngong Avenue,
Parker ¢ 9 olish. 28 C h Road, §t PO Box 10517, Nairobi 00100, Kenya
crker Cavenaish nurch Road, Stanmaore ) . L
' ’ 7
Middlosex, HAT 4XR. S\zcm:nrow East Africa Limited o 437
vanneck Residential LLF 2% N“‘S’”P'f‘s,d | o Kermed Sheot Port L
Unit | Woodley Park Estate, 59-69 Reading Rood, M%UH.’F;SJ “eni Johin kennedy Siree). rort Lous,
Woc?diey, Recjc.jmg, RGS 3AN Sukpak Limited 30
Davidson Holdings Limited 28% Mexco P
?S;Srich!;ciﬁHGoff Range Beverley Way, New Malden, Jaime Baolmes #8 Loc. 3-A, Los Morcles Polanc, Mexco
et e g, O 11510 Mexico
The Advenfure Expenence Limite /3 C. Cramikow Sugar (Mexico)]. S.A de CV. 43%
7 Sovay Court, London, WC2R OEX New Zealand B
I imi % . -
_Londor? Theaire Company Holdings Limifed 197 /0 KPMG, 18 viaduc! Horbour Avenuc, Maritimao
Australia ‘ i Square, Auckland, New Jecland
283 Ragstall Road, Binkicy SA 5253, Austraic New Food Coalings {New Zecland] Uimited 50
Big River Pork Pty Lid 20% Philippines - o
Murray Bridge Bacon Mty Lid 0% Unit A, 103 Excelence A Carmera
. ; , it A, f venue, Carmetay
32 Dawvis Road, \A'{efhenﬂ Fork, Sydney NSW 2144, Austratc . Inclustil Park 1. Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna,
Ne: Food Coalings Ply Lid % New Food Coatings [Philppines] Inc. 50%
Bahrain , , ‘ SF Don Jacinto Building, Dels Rosa cor, Solcedo
Su;lfe‘NoA 1959 Diplomatic Commercrol Qfﬁce, Tower B, Streels. Legaspi Village. 1229 Makak Cily, Phiipgines
Buiicling No. 1565, Road 1722, Diplomatic C7 Phiioo | 437,
Area/Manama 317, Bahram -2 Phlippines, Inc. i s
Czarnikow Supply Chain Sales for Food & Beverage Slng?pore ) o
Ingredients Bahrain S.P.C. A3, 3\Phﬁup Street, #14-07 Royal Group Building,
Brazil e T §ingapore (148653
) . C. Czamikesw Sugar Ple. limited 43%
Av Dos Vinhedos, 71, floor T, room 1101, Uberandia, south afica ™ R
Minas Gerais, Brazl
2C Energic S.A. 297, 1 Gledhow Mill Rood, Gledhaow. K.w.ao‘ukuzo, 4450
Avenida Presidente Juscelno Kubitschek .- 2.041, 11° Cledhow Sugar Company (Pty) Limited 307%
andar- Vile Olimpia, CEP 04.543-011, Sac Paulo. Brasil Tanzania
Czamikow Brost Ltda 4% 7ih Floor Aman Place, Ohio Siresl, PO Box 38568, Dar-
Av Pres Jusceling Kubitschek, 2041, floor 11, G0 es-Soloam, Tanzanic
Paule. Brezl Cramikow Tanzania Limited 43%
CeEnergy Comercidlizado Re De Ftancl S.A L 21% mMsokwa Ml Office, Kidatau, Tanzania
China Kilombero Sugar Distibutors Limited 20%
Room 17A01, 232 Zhong Shan 6th Road. Guangzhou Thailand T T
City. Guqngdong Frovince. S1018C. China - 909 Moo 15, Teparak Rood Tambol Bangsaothong,
C. Czarnikow Sugar (Guangzhou) Company Lt 43%  king Amphur Rangsaoihong, Samuforakam, Thollond
Columbia Newly Weds Foods (Thailand] Ltd 50%
Cl 16 Sur #43a-49, F Poblado, Medelin, & Poblado, 1203, 121h Floor, Melropolis Building,
Medclin, Antoquic, Colombia 725 quhumvir Rd. Norih Kionc:fon, Waltana, Banokok,
Cromikow Colombia S.AS. 43%, Czamikow {Thailand) Limited 43%
India 7 © Uniled States
Plot Mo N46, House No 4-9-10, Hmi Nagar, Hyderabad 333 5F 2nd Avenue, Suite 2860, Micmi, FL 33131, USA
1G, 500076. india C. Czomikow Sugar Inc. e _43%
Huokan Energy % Private Limited 34% Vietnam
House MNo. 1-8-373/A, Chiran Forf Lane, Begumpet, 5th Floon IMC Tower, 62 Tan Quang khal, Tan Dinb
Hyderabod, 500003, India ward, Distict 1, Ho ChiMinh City, Vietnam
C. Cramikow Sugar (India} Private Limited _43%  Cromikow (Vietnom) Limited 43%

Indonesia
Kompiex Purf Muliara Blok AZ1-22, it Grya Utama,
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Company balance sheet
at 14 September 2023

2023wz
Reslaled!

Mol £m £
Non-curent assets
Investment property 1 - 3
Irvestments i subsicliaries 2 1,042 1.042
Investments in associotes 3 2 3
Deferred fax assets 4 2 2
Tre and other receivabl 3 1,045 918
D ’ 2,071 1,968
Current assets ) '
Trade and other recelivables ! 5 5 2
Other investrents & K1 78
Income tax - 7
Cash and cash equivalents _ o 9 ) 57
- B ~ 45 C 54
Current liabilities
Trade and other paoyables 7 27 18]
Income fax - - (1) -
Net current assets i T o ‘ 17 78
Non-cument liabilities - S
Employee bengfitsiabillies & 6
Netossels ' - 2102 2,039
Ecjuity
Called up share capital 2 - -
Share premium accaunt 3az 382
Retained eamings S ) 4720 657
Total equity atfribulable to equity shareholders 2,102 2,039

The Company's profit for the 52 week period ended 14 September 2023 was £190m (52 week period ended 17
September 2022: £284m).

The financial statements on pages 74 1o 7% were approved by the Board of directors on 15 December 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:

il

[
NN

Sir Guy Weston
Chairrnan
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

Shave o Siwbm ”W.' Ei'*f;d 1(31;:?\
wpray BATERTILA oIrnings ey
i Ly in L1
Balance at 18 September 2021 - 382 1.474 1.856
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the period 284 284
Remeaosurements of defined benafil schermes 4 4
Defered tax associated with defined benefit schemes 1] (1)
lthe.r comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or 3 3
055
Tolal comip);é'ﬁéﬂr{swéw income for the penod - = - -7
Transactions with owners i o )
Dividends paid to equily shareholders (104) {104)
Balance ot 17 September 2022 382 657 2,039
Total Wci:omprehehrsiv;income o o
Profil for the perod - - 190 170
Remeasurements of defined benefit scheres - - - 1 1
Defered tax asscciated with defined benefit schemes - - - —
IOrher comprehensive income - items that will not be reclassified tw profit or - - 1 1
[s}3
Tolal comprehemive income for the peried e - 191 191
Transactions with owners
Dwidends paid to equity shareholders T - - [128) {128}
Balance at 16 September 2023 i - 382 1,720 2,102
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Company accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are presented in sterling,
rounded to the nearest million {except where otherwise
indicated}. They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, except that Other Investmeants are stated af their
fair value, and in accordance with FRS 101 and the
Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions available in
relation to financial instruments, capital management.
presentation of third balance sheet for retrospective
rastatements, presentation of a cash flow statement,
standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and
certain related party transacticns. Where reguired,
equivalent disclosures are givenin the cansolidaled
financial statements.

As permitted by section 408[4) of the Companies Act
2006, a separate income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the Company has not been
inciuded in these financial statements. The principal
accounting policies adopted are described below. They
have all been applied consistently to all years presented.

Going concern
The conclusion to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements is autined in the
Directors' report on page 8 and in the consolidated
accounts on page 18,

Investment property

Investment properfies are held at cost less provision for
impairment, Impairmeant is determined by reference 1o
the fair value of property estimaled either by
independeant valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residual
value of major components of the property is less than
current book value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiares and associales are stated af
cost less any provision for impairment.

Impairment
The carrying amount of the Company's investmeants in
subsidiaries and oiher assels are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
inclication of impairment. If any such indication exists. the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Animpairment
charge isrecognised in the income statement whenever
the camrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of maney and the risks specific to the asset.

Animpairment charge is reversed if there has bean o
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, but anly fo the extent that the new
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amaortisation, if no impairment charge had been
recognised.

7é wittington Investments  Fincncial Sta-emenis 2023

Financial assets and liabilities
The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities
when it becomes a party fo the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrument.

frade and other receivables

The Company records frade and other receivables inificlly
at fair value and thereafter ot amortised cost. This
generally results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectation of losses wilhout regard to
whether or not a spedific impairment trigger has
occurred.

Trade payables

The Company records trade payables initially at fair value
and thereaffer at amortised cost. This generally results in
recognition at nominal value.

Other investments

Equity investments where the Company does not have
significant influence, control orjoint control are measured al
fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL), and are carried in the
staterment of financicr position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit and loss.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Company operates one defined contribution and
one unfunded post-employment plan. For the unfunded
plan, the amount charged in the income statement s the
cost of benefits accruing to employees over the year, plus
any benefit improvements granted fo members by the
Company during the year. If also includes interest
expense calculated by applying the fability discount rale
to the pension liability. The present value of liahilities is
disclosed as a liability in the balance sheet. Any related
deferred tax {to the extent recoverable)} is disclosed
separately in the bolance sheet. Remaasurements are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
Contributions payable by the Company in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged 1o operating
profit as incurred,

Income tax

Income tax on profit or loss for the pericd comprises
current and deferred tax. Income fax is recognised in the
incorne statement except to the extent that it relates to
items taken directly to equity. Cument tax s the fax
expected fo be payable on faxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted durng the
period, together with any adjusiment to lax payable in
respect of previous years,

Defermed tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assefs and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for faxation purposes. A deferred tax assetis
recognised only to the extent that it is probable ihat
future faxable profits will be avallable aganst which the
asset can be utilised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and short-term investments with
original matunties of three months or less.



Notes fo the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

1. Investment Property

1
At 18 September 2021 3

Addifions -
A7 September 2022 3
Disposals (3

AlléSeplember2023 T -

2. Investments in subsidiaries

Lsted nlistec T(‘i‘liw]!
AT 18 Seplember 2021 345 677 1.042
Additions -
Al 17 September 2022 345 &97 1.042
Additions L - - -
At 15 September 2023 345 497 1,042

Investrents in subsidiary undertakings are shown at cost less amounts written off. investments include 403,341,215
ordinary shares of 5 15/:0p (2022 - 403,341,215} each in Associated British Foods plc. equivalent to 52.5% of the issued
share capital of that company, which is listed on The Londen Stock Exchange. At 16 September 2023 the market value
of the holding was £8,.394m {2022 - £5,342m). Associated British Foods plc is incorparated in Greaot Britain and registered
in England. Through its subsidiary, Howard Investrments Limited, the Company holds a further 28,173,893 (2022 -
28.173.893) shares in Associated British Foods ple, representing 3.7% of the issued share capital of that company. A fist of
trading subsidiary underiakings is given in note 32 of the Company s consolidated financial statements. The holding
company stiucture is complicated and does not necessarily reflect the management Grouping in which the companies
are listecl.

3. Investments in associates

in

Al 18 September 2021 2
Additions 1
A7 Septermnber 2022 3
Impairment (1}
At14 September 2023 - 2
A list of associate undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's conselidated financial statements.
4, Deferred tax assets

- - T T
At 18 September 2021 3
Effect of changes in tax rate onincome statement "
Al 17 Seplamber 2022 2

Effect of changes in fax rate onincome statement
AL 16 September 2023

Finance Bill 2022 which was substantively enacted on 24 May 2022 incregsed the main rate of corporation tax in the UK
to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023, Deferred tax fablility on the balance sheet has been measured at 25% which is the
rate expected o apply when the taxddiability is settied.

5. Trade and other receivables

2027
2023 iTestoted)
£m L
Non-current
Amounts owed by subsidiary underfakings * 1,043 218
Cther detstors T 2 -
- - 1,045 918
Current i
Amounts owed by subsiclicry underfakings ! E -
Other debtors S o - 2
T & 2

I Fo wwng ocer aa of the Caichratan of otercorpary ra o venes albe oanent vacr Dienagemant Bnea denit @z carsea neaunls owee s by bt oty unae ok ngs whickh a e noe

B Rel e 15 ena st wlbn e nead 12 mont e ant shoo o hove been 2 css e d o3 non cotey otwel ok

iy o 1A T The comporalvie 20100 By Deen st

roa gy

The diractors consider that the carrying amount of debtlors approximates to their fair value,
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

6. Other Investments

Listec: Uristed
Investrrents Inwestmenly
£ i
Al 18 September 2021 29 |
Fair vaiue loss A [} 12}
At 17 September 2022 28 - 28
Foir valve goin-——— 7 - - 3
At 14 Seplember 2023 3 - 31

The Group classifies these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy outined on page 52, The table below
analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is categorised for
Investments held af fair value through profit and loss:

Comops 2522
Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Tatal Lewve | Level 2 level 3 Tolal
£m £m £m £m £ im im im
Investments designated FVTPL 31 - - 3N 28 28
7. Trade and other payables
o - - 2023 il
£m i
Amounts falling due within one year
Accruals and defered income - 1
Amounts due fo subsidiory undertakings L 27 7
27 18
The directors consider that the carrying amount of creditars approximates to their fair value.
8. Employee benefits liabilities
e e e e e
At125eptember202] e 1
Curenti service cost ]
Actuarial gain e P |
At 17 September 2022 - o 7
Curreni service cost -
Acluarial gain L R 1) ]
Al 16 September 2023 ]

The Company operates one unfunded post-employment plon which is accounted for In the same way as the Group's
defined benefit retirement schames detailed in note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. Applicable acluarial
assumptions are stated on page 39. The Company's unfunded liability forms part of the Group's £26m [2022: £29m)
unfunded UK liakilifies disclosed on page 41.

9. Share capital and dividends

Share capital

Nerinal Ve ae

3
Autharised - At 14 September 2023 and 17 Seplember 2022 200.0 450,000
lssued and fully paid - At 16 September 2023 and 17 September 2022 842,022 431,011
Dividends

Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 1o the consalidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

10. Related parties

The Company has a controling shareholder relationship with the trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with
cerlain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. The Company has a related party relationship with its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and directors. In the course of normal operations, related party fransactions
entered intc by the Company have been contracted on an arm'’s length basis.

tmaterial fransactions and yvear end balances with related parties (excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were as follows:

2023 2677
£'000 £°500
Dividends paid by Wiftinglon Investments Limited and received In a heneficial capacity by:
(i} Trustees of The Garfield Weston Foundation 4,745 3.856
i) Directors of Wittington Invesiments Limited who are nof Trustees of The Foundation 1,246 1.012

See note 30 fo the consclidated financial statements for further details.

11. Other information
Emoluments of directors
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides details of Directors remuneration.

Employees
The Company had an average of 32 employaes in 2023 (2022 - 32}, Remunerafion was £3.2m (2022: £4.2m).

Auditors' fees
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides delails of the remuneration of the Company’s
auditors on o Group basis,

12. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £86.50, total value of £74.6m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023,
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